
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CRIME & DISORDER SUB- COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 

7.00 pm 
Wednesday 
18 July 2018 

Committee Room 1-
Town Hall - Town Hall 

 
Members 6: Quorum 3 
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Bob Perry (Chairman) 
John Tyler (Vice-Chair) 
Tele Lawal 
 

Michael Deon Burton 
Timothy Ryan 
Melvin Wallace 
 

 
For information about the meeting please contact: 

Victoria Freeman  01708 433862 
victoria.freeman@onesource.co.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 

 

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 
 

 
What is Overview & Scrutiny? 
Each local authority is required by law to establish an overview and scrutiny function to 
support and scrutinise the Council’s executive arrangements. Each overview and scrutiny sub-
committee has its own remit as set out in the terms of reference but they each meet to 
consider issues of local importance.  
 
The sub-committees have a number of key roles: 
 

1. Providing a critical friend challenge to policy and decision makers. 

 

2. Driving improvement in public services. 

 

3. Holding key local partners to account. 

 

4. Enabling the voice and concerns to the public. 

 

The sub-committees consider issues by receiving information from, and questioning, Cabinet 

Members, officers and external partners to develop an understanding of proposals, policy and 

practices. They can then develop recommendations that they believe will improve 

performance, or as a response to public consultations. These are considered by the Overview 

and Scrutiny Board and if approved, submitted for a response to Council, Cabinet and other 

relevant bodies. 



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 

 

 

  

 

Sub-Committees will often establish Topic Groups to examine specific areas in much greater 

detail. These groups consist of a number of Members and the review period can last for 

anything from a few weeks to a year or more to allow the Members to comprehensively 

examine an issue through interviewing expert witnesses, conducting research or undertaking 

site visits. Once the topic group has finished its work it will send a report to the Sub-Committee 

that created it and will often suggest recommendations for the Overview and Scrutiny Board 

pass to the Council’s Executive. 

 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
The areas scrutinised by the Committee are in exercise of the functions conferred by 
the Police and Justice Act 2006, Section 19-22 and Schedules 8 & 9. 
 

 



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 

 

 



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS  

 
 (if any) – receive. 

 

3 DISCLOSURE OF  INTEREST  

 

 Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this 
point of the meeting. 
 
Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the 
consideration of the matter. 
 

4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING (Pages 1 - 16) 
 
  

i) To approve as correct the minutes of the meetings held on 29 August 2017 and 

30 November 2017 and authorise the Chairman to sign them.   

ii) To receive the notes of the inquorate meeting held on the 27 February 2018. 

 
5 CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - QUARTER 4 (2017/18) (Pages 17 - 26) 
 
6 TRI BOROUGH POLICING MODEL AND CURRENT POLICING PROVISION IN 

HAVERING (Pages 27 - 28) 

 

7 HAVERING COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2018/19 REFRESH 

(Pages 29 - 84) 
 

8 HAVERING COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP, ANNUAL STRATEGIC 
ASSESSMENT 2017 (Pages 85 - 136) 

 

9 CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME 2018-19 (Pages 137 - 142) 

 

 
 Andrew Beesley 

Head of Democratic Services 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

CRIME & DISORDER SUB- COMMITTEE 
Town Hall, Main Road, Romford 
29 August 2017 (7.00  - 9.00 pm) 

 
 
Present: 
 
Councilllors Ian de Wulverton (Chairman), David Durant (Vice-Chair) and 
Brian Eagling 
 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Garry Pain, Councillor Ray 
Best and Councillor John Mylod 
 
 
 
12 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 22 June 2017 
were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 

13 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  
 
It was confirmed that neighbourhood police teams remained based in 
Havering wards. There would be two ward officers for each ward and other 
neighbourhood officers could be tasked around the borough. Safer 
neighbourhood teams worked on all a rolling shift pattern to avoid all three 
officers being away at the same time. A Member felt that this was not the 
case in the Harold Wood ward where all officers did sometimes appear to 
be off at the same time. It was suggested that problems of this type should 
be reported to the Community Safety team. 
 
The figures reported to the Sub-Committee indicated that Dedicated Ward 
officers spent around 90% of their time on ward-based duties. It was 
acknowledged that these officers had spent a considerable of time on 
training recently but this was likely to reduce.  
 
Average response times for I and S calls had deteriorated from 21 to 28 
minutes although this was also a problem in other areas of London. The 
Chief Superintendent added that separate response lines for each of the 
three local boroughs would be reintroduced from September 2017 and the 
relevant performance information would be brought to each meeting of the 
Sub-Committee. The relevant target was to respond to 90% of emergency 
calls within 15 minutes although this was only currently being met on 40-
50% of occasions. 
 
Response times had improved slightly in recent weeks and an extra 
Superintendent would be introduced in September. Performance was also 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 29 August 2017 
 

 

scrutinised by the Tri-Borough Project Board and by the Mayor of London. 
The Tri-Borough model was being evaluated and the pilot would not be 
rolled out to the rest of London if performance was not considered to have 
been good enough. 
 
Resources had been increased during the handover period in order to 
reduce the number of missed calls and this had led to the I-call target now 
being met on 67% of occasions. In the first quarter of 2017/18, only 11 of 
1,050 calls received had related to Traveller incursions. It was confirmed 
that a group of Travellers who had recently entered the car park of Tesco 
Gallows Corner had been evicted within 24 hours. 
 
The Chief Superintendent confirmed that he would consider requests to 
close roads to prevent flytipping but considered this to be a last resort. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the report on performance indicators.  
 
 
 
 

14 STREET TRIAGE - REPORT FROM HEALTHWATCH HAVERING  
 
A director of Healthwatch Havering explained that the organisation’s report 
on the NELFT street triage scheme had been referred to the Sub-
Committee by the Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Committee. This was 
in order to seek to obtain a response from Police representatives to the 
issues raised in the report. 
 
It was explained that in response to a large number of people with mental 
health problems being taken into police custody, NELFT had established a 
scheme whereby police could call out NELFT triage staff if they found a 
person having a mental health crisis. The scheme operated throughout 
Havering and Outer North East London. 
 
The Healthwatch report had made recommendations to the Council, NELFT, 
London Ambulance Service as well as the Metropolitan and British 
Transport Police. The recommendation made to the Police (prior to the 
introduction of the tri-borough model) asked the Police to support the street 
triage scheme. 
 
It was noted that, if the scheme was not used, officers had to stay with 
patients until they were assessed in hospital etc which could take up a large 
amount of Police time. It was suggested that a similar scheme to that used 
for people who had fallen could be established whereby a nurse was sent 
with a paramedic to the scene. It was further suggested that nurses could 
be used to drive ambulances in certain circumstances but this would require 
a change in the existing law. 
 
The scheme had run for last 18 months and was the first such street triage 
scheme to operate in the UK. The Chief Superintendent confirmed that 

Page 2



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 29 August 2017 
 

 

Police officers received enhanced safeguarding training  including on mental 
health issues. There was also a mental health team included in the 
safeguarding team. It was noted that the street triage service did not yet 
operate on a 24:7 basis. Healthwatch would discuss with the Chief 
Superintendent the operation of the scheme on a tri-borough basis.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the report by Healthwatch Havering and the 
responses given by the Chief Superintendent.   
 
 

15 UPDATE ON TRI-BOROUGH MODEL  
 
The revised structure included four Superintendents leading different 
functions as well as the introduction of a fifth Superintendent to cover HQ 
functions. A Chief Inspector would also be introduced back into the model to 
cover across all the functions. It was clarified that the HQ function pulled 
issues such as Police resources and performance together across the three 
boroughs. The Council was represented on both the Pathfinder Project 
Board and the Oversight Board that reviewed the tri-borough model. 
 
The figures on total Police sickness days applied only to three borough 
overall and the Chief Superintendent had asked for the equivalent details for 
Havering only. It was noted that the overall figures had improved in recent 
months. There were a total of 47 Police officers on long term sickness of a 
total staff of 1,341. A forty hour week was worked. Between 15 and 25 
Havering officers were absent through sickness on any given day.  
 
A total of 556 officers were available on emergency response. This did 
however include some 39 staff on maternity leave, suspension etc. There 
were also approximately 30 staff on restricted duties. The Chief 
Superintendent felt that the staffing resources were broadly sufficient and 
that leadership was an issue to improve performance.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the update.  
 

16 REPORT FROM SUPERINTENDENT RESPONSIBLE FOR 
NEIGHBOURHOODS  
 
It was noted that the Metropolitan Police was required to make savings of 
£400 million by 2020. The tri-borough model had been introduced but 
arrangements at a local level were still bespoke to each borough. This was 
felt to be a more efficient way of working but required a cultural change 
whereby officers would retain ownership of a whole investigation. This way 
of working had not been used by the Metropolitan Police for the previous 20 
years. 
 
Officers emphasised that the three boroughs wished to work under the new 
model but also wanted to use the local neighbourhood model.  The focus for 
neighbourhoods would be at the individual ward level and Havering had not 
lost any Inspectors who dealt with partnership and neighbourhoods work.  

Page 3



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 29 August 2017 
 

 

 
The partnership and prevention teams would cover a number of local issues 
including anti-social behaviour and licensing issues. The schools and youth 
section would be launched in September 2017 and efforts were being made 
to reduce sickness levels in this team. 
 
There were plans to give each officer a laptop or tablet in order that more 
work could be carried out at the crime scene. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the update regarding neighbourhoods. 
 
 

17 REPORT FROM SUPERINTENDENT RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING 
VULNERABLE PEOPLE  
 
The use by Police of a safeguarding car allowed the correct officer to attend 
incidents quickly. This allowed better crime scene management and meant 
assistance could be given to vulnerable victims more quickly. Numbers of 
outstanding suspects were increasing and it was felt this was due to more 
victims pressing charges and a higher number of occurrences of domestic 
abuse.  
 
Due to funding issues, it was not possible to use electric bicycles in Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams. Even the manual bicycles used by the Teams cost 
£200 per year to maintain. Many members of the public also preferred local 
Police to be on foot.  
 
The Chief Superintendent agreed that there was a movement of people into 
East London. He wished to maintain existing resources but felt this was 
unlikely. Members agreed, feeling that Police numbers were not keeping 
pace with the rising population. It was clarified that the failure to meet 
response time targets was about equal across the three boroughs.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the update on protecting vulnerable people.  
 

18 VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS  
 
In quarter 1 of 2017/18 there had been 565 domestic abuse offences in 
Havering compared to 575 in the same period of the previous year. A 
domestic abuse incident was classified as such even if no crime had been 
committed. It was also noted that a review of the law on domestic violence 
was expected to be announced by the Government. 
 
The Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) strategy was in its final 
year and the new strategy was expected to be brought to the Sub-
Committee and to the Community Safety Partnership in October 2017. A 
more preventative approach was planned with work undertaken in schools 
on healthy relationships etc. Issues such as trafficking, modern day slavery 
and child sexual exploitation would also be covered in the strategy. 
 

Page 4



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 29 August 2017 
 

 

Officers agreed that most victims of domestic violence stayed in their homes 
which was not easy to resolve at times. Resources for services to deal with 
VAWG had been maintained. A refuge was currently provided by Havering 
Women’s Aid and this contract was due to be recommissioned this year. 
The SOLACE Women’s Aid charity provided support groups and 
counselling.  
 
The existing victim support scheme in key services was funded until at least 
July 2018. It was confirmed that around 20% of domestic abuse victims 
were male. A total of sixty domestic abuse champions had been trained to 
advise colleagues on this area and an annual conference was planned to be 
held in November.    
 
Officers added that all domestic violence cases were risk-assessed and the 
most high risk cases were referred to the domestic violence Multi-Agency 
Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) which comprised representatives of 
the Council, Police, Probation Service, the health sector and other agencies. 
There had been an increase in the number of MARAC referrals but fewer 
cases were now referred more than once. There had not been a domestic 
violence homicide in Havering since 2003 – an indication that risks were 
managed well.  
 
Police looked at the frequency and severity of domestic abuse carried out 
by repeat perpetrators and sought to manage high risk individuals. Sarah’s 
Law whereby an individual’s history of domestic violence could be disclosed 
to a family was used in Havering. Refuges were situated locally and had 
good facilities.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the position.  
 

19 URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business raised.  
 

20 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
By a majority vote (Councillors de Wulverton and Eagling in favour; 
Councillor Durant against) it was resolved that the public should be 
excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that it was likely 
that, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of 
the proceeding, if members of the public were present during those items 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information within the meaning 
of paragraph 7 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 29 August 2017 
 

 

 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 6



 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

CRIME & DISORDER SUB- COMMITTEE 
Committee Room 3B - Town Hall 

30 November 2017 (7.00  - 8.07 pm) 
 
 
Present: 
 
Councilllors Ian de Wulverton (Chairman), Robby Misir (substitute for Councillor 
Ray Best) and Garry Pain. 
 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor David Durant, Councillor Ray 
Best and Councillor Brian Eagling 

 
 

23 MINUTES OF THE MEETING  
 
The Sub-Committee agreed to defer the item to the next meeting.  
 

24 CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - QUARTER 2 (2017/18)  
 
There had been an improvement in the percentage of minimum strength 
being met since Pathfinder had stabilised, with 76% of shift in July having 
met the minimum strength, 90% in August and 96% in September.  The 
minimum strength per shift had been reduced from two sergeants and 
sixteen constables to one sergeant and nine constables, subsequently 
freeing up three sergeants and fifteen constables.  There had been no 
abstractions for Sergeants during September and minimal PCSOs.   
 
Police officers had received enhanced training on police roles with the 
introduction of Pathfinder, received training on body cameras and would 
receive training on the new PC laptops when introduced.   
 
During Quarter 2, alterations were made to the tri-borough model, including 
outstanding calls being managed on an incident list for each borough, rather 
than as a single incident list for all three boroughs, as was the case when 
the pilot began.  The impact of these alterations was now beginning to be 
seen in the performance achieved.  The Sub-Committee congratulated the 
Police Authority on the percentage of I-grade and S-grade calls achieved in 
target time, in Havering.  It was explained that the 2.5-3.5 minutes of the 15 
target for ‘I’ responses was lost when answering the initial call and 
additional time was taken if the call needed to be connected to the language 
line. 
 
A discussion on Fire Brigade keys pursued, during which it was explained 
that it would be impractical for all deployed response officers to hold keys 
and it would raise concern if a high number of keys were in circulation.  The 

Page 7



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 30 November 2017 
 

 

Police Authority agreed to give consideration to holding keys in the 
command car.   
 
In Quarter 2 of 2017/18, there were 1,548 Computer Aided Dispatches 
which had an opening code that related to anti-social behaviour in Havering, 
with 1,026 being ‘closed’ as anti-social behaviour.  Six of these dispatches 
related to five separate traveller incursions, a reduction from the previous 
quarter.  The previous year, traveller incursions drove 100 calls, however a 
dedicated Inspector covers had taken the responsibility for the three 
boroughs. 
   
The Sub-Committee noted the report on performance indicators. 
 

25 METROPOLITAN POLICE REPORT ON INVESTIGATION  
 
The number of outstanding named suspects was significantly high, which 
was a trend in the east, Waltham Forest and Newham, due to the number of 
foreign national offenders and the high amount of mobility in and out of the 
country. 
 
Habitual knife carriers were being targeted and officers would be carrying 
out intense weapon sweeps and intelligence-led operations to confiscate 
knives and tackle those wanted in connection with knife-related offences 
and violent crime.  The Sub-Committee requested that narrative be provided 
to prevent public misconception of data that related to current gun and knife 
crime rates.   
 
Rape and serious sexual offences had increased by 16.3% overall over the 
past year, with sanction detection rates up by 54.5%.  This was significantly 
higher compared to other boroughs with a detection rate of 54.5%.   
 
Robbery offences had increased by 81% from the previous year, however 
small numbers reflected high percentiles.  Burglary was a key focus on the 
lead up to the Christmas period. Good news stories included an arrest for 
possession of a prohibited weapon, an arrest for possession with intent to 
support and being carried in a stolen vehicle and an arrest made in respect 
of two persons driving into pedestrians with a car. There were on-going 
operations including ‘Winter Nights’, ‘Be Safe’, ‘Operation Bumblebee’ and 
‘Operation Sceptre’.     
 
The Sub-Committee noted the report on Investigations. 
 

26 HAVERING COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP'S PARTNERSHIP 
PLAN 2017/18 TO 2019/20  
 
The Havering Community Safety Partnership comprised of five responsible 
authorities who, by law, were required to work together to tackle crime, 
disorder substance misuse and reoffending.  There was a statutory 
requirement that the Havering Community Safety Partnership produce an 

Page 8



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 30 November 2017 
 

 

annual strategic assessment of these issues in coordination with a 
community safety strategy or plan.   
 
The strategic themes and cross cutting area identified were protecting 
vulnerable individuals/victims, supporting the most prolific and/or high harm 
offenders and creating safer locations.  Throughout this work, a key cross-
cutting area would be community engagement and public confidence.   This 
would enable communities to report and receive information, and be part of 
potential solutions.  This would also help to close the gap between 
perceptions of crime and actual levels of crime in the borough.   
 
The Sub-Committee noted the Community Safety Plan 2017-2020 that was 
approved by Council on the 12th July 2017. 
 

27 SERIOUS GROUP VIOLENCE AND KNIFE CRIME STRATEGY 2017-
2021  
 
Since the introduction of a Tri-borough Gangs Unit, the borough have 
benefitted from having access to a resource which proactively monitors and 
disrupts the boroughs high risk gang nominals.  It had been recognised that 
there was an emerging pattern of gang behaviour and the borough had 
lobbied the Mayor of London to fund work to address the increase in gang 
membership in the borough.   
 
The Sub-Committee discussed the updated Serious Group Violence and 
Knife Crime Strategy 2017-2021. The snapshot of offences on a rolling 
twelve month basis from July 2014 to July 2017 in Havering, highlighted an 
increase in knife crime, knife crime with injury, robbery and gun crime.  
Whilst data might show that knife crime was not linked to gangs, there was 
a local awareness of the migration of gang members into Havering from 
other boroughs.   
 
The Sub-Committee were aware of the significant increase in crimes linked 
gangs and youth offending (including knife crime, knife crime with injury, 
robbery and gun crime). Research revealed that only 11% of Havering 
Trident Gangs List were under 18 years of age and 20% on the Habitual 
Knife Crime (HKC) list. Moving forwards, there would be a need to look at 
resources for the over 18’s, as the majority of those identified fell outside of 
the area that received most support/attention. 
 
The Sub-Committee were made aware of the Chance Scheme, that was 
introduced to complement existing work and encourage better information 
sharing between agencies. The Scheme used a multi-agency approach to 
improve focus on how youth anti-social behaviour could best be addressed 
at the earliest stage with the aim to prevent individuals entering the criminal 
justice system. 
 
The Sub-Committee were made aware of the various risk management 
panels linked to Gangs and Serious Group Violence.   The delivery structure 
of information and intelligence flow for the East Area Gangs Panel and 

Page 9



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 30 November 2017 
 

 

Serious Group Violence Panels was received and the Action Plan – Serious 
Group Violence and Knife Crime 2017-20121 was noted. 
 

28 REDUCING REOFFENDING UPDATE  
 
The Sub-Committee received an update on progress in delivering the 
Reducing Reoffending Action Plan 2016-2020; an update on the work to 
address Integrated Offender Management (IOM) in Havering; and an update 
on the progress of the Drugs Intervention Panel. 
 
The Action Plan focused on prioritising accommodation; education, training 
and employment, finance and debt; and enforcement and compliance.  In 
Havering in 2016-17, the IOM Panel worked with 95 nominals, with 76% of 
the cohort not having re-entered custody.   
 
During the presentation, it was highlighted that the Havering Community 
Safety Strategic Assessment had shown that 40% of acquisitive crime in 
Havering came from Class A drug users alone.  The Drug Intervention 
Panel (DIP) used a multi-agency approach to facilitate access to drug and 
alcohol services, as evidence showed that successful treatment would 
significantly reduce users’ cycle of offending and keep communities safer. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the progress to date against the Reducing 
Reoffending Action Plan 2016-2020, Integrated Offender Management 
Panel and Drugs Intervention Panel. 
 

29 URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were none. 
 

30 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Agenda Item No. 12, Exempt Minutes of the Previous Meeting, was deferred 
to the next meeting. 
 

31 EXEMPT MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The Sub-Committee agreed to defer the item to the next meeting.  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 10



 

NOTES OF A- MEETING OF THE 
CRIME & DISORDER SUB- COMMITTEE 

Committee Room 3B - Town Hall 
27 February 2018 (7.00pm – 8.50pm) 

 
 
Present: 
 
Councilllors Ian de Wulverton (Chairman) and Brian Eagling 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor David Durrant. 
 
The meeting was not quorate however those present agreed that the meeting 
should continue on an informal basis.  The Chair requested that if possible, a 
meeting be arranged to transact the business on the agenda before the end of the 
municipal year. 

 
32 MINUTES OF THE MEETING  

 
The minutes of the meetings held on the 29 August 2017 and 30 November 
2017 were unable to be agreed due to the meeting not being quorate. 
 

33 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS QUARTER 3 2017/18  
 
The committee received police resourcing information on the number of 
shifts where minimum staffing strength had been met.  Shifts where 
minimum strength was met for Havering Response Teams was above 90% 
for October, November and December 2017.  The last week of January 
2018, 100% of shifts had met the minimum strength.  Havering was in the 
top seven of the thirty two London boroughs for safety. 
 
The committee were presented with data on the number of working days 
lost to aid abstractions from ring fenced roles and Neighbourhood Officers 
abstracted by rank.  Where the Police Authority had made the decision to 
abstract officers out of the borough, the Local Authority were informed.   
 
The percentage of Dedicated Ward Officers (DWOs) time spent on ward, 
during October to December 2017, was received.  It was explained that 
there would continue to be variance due to leave and sickness.    
 
Members received data on the percentage of I and S grade calls that were 
reached in target time, and the local authority received data on a weekly 
basis.  In Quarter 3 of 2017/18 there were 1,150 Computer Aided 
Dispatches (CADs), which had an opening code which related to Anti-Social 
Behaviour (ASB) in Havering.  Of these, 701 CADs were ‘closed’ as ASB.  
None of these 701 related to traveller incursions.  There had been a steady 
increase in response times since September 2017, with over 90% of call 
achieving target in December 2017 and 100% of domestic violence calls 
having achieved target.   
 

Public Document Pack

Page 11



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 27 February 2018 
 

 

Further scrutiny of all calls received over Quarter 3, 2017/18 and 
comparison of the local authority’s record of traveller incursions revealed 
that 15 calls received were in relation to two incursions, one call for an 
incursion in Rise Park Boulevard, and another 14 calls related to an 
incursion at Grenfell Park / Roneo Corner.  A number of vehicles had been 
ceased from these locations as a consequence of flytipping. 
 

34 ROMFORD'S NIGHT TIME ECONOMY  
 
Members were provided an update on issues which related to the night time 
economy in Romford.   
 
Non Domestic Violence with Injury accounted for 7% of Total Notifiable 
Offences for Havering, with a year on year increase being recorded since 
2014.  However, the speed of increase had diminished significantly over 
recent years, with 2016-17 showing a 2% increase.  It was explained that 
the increase was not solely due to the night time economy, but included 
offences such as shoplifting.  Romford Town Centre remained a crime 
hotspot in Havering, especially with the influx of people into the area at 
weekends and the night time economy. 
 
The Safe and Sound Night Time Economy Partnership in Romford 
continued to operate and was supported by the Metropolitan Police Service, 
Trading Standards, Licensing and Streetscene.  The Partnership recently 
won the Pubwatch of the Year Award and had been shortlisted as a finalist 
for the Outstanding Security Partnership UK OSPAs. 
 
The Town Link Radio Scheme was in operation to protect victims, by 
locating vulnerable people and to communicate with concerned parties such 
as the Police or Street Pastors, and to share information with each other.  
Furthermore, door supervisors were in receipt of weekly briefings by the 
Police.  Taxi marshalls operated the rank in Romford town centre during 
peak times to assist with the dispersal of people from the town centre.  The 
mandatory use of Scan Net had been included as a condition on all 
licensing applications and/or review of on-licensed premises in Havering.  
However in recent months, it had been identified that some fake ID cards 
were getting through the ID scanner. The Street Triage scheme in South 
Street was funded by MOPAC and assisted with the reduction in 
unnecessary ambulance calls.  The Drugs itemizer was frequently used in 
licensed premises in the town cente not as an enforcement tool, but as an 
educational tool.  The use of detection dogs had been funded as part of a 
recent night of action.   
 
A number of counter terrorism workshops had taken place over the last year 
and an emergency evacuation exercise, which would involve the night time 
economy, would take place later in the year.   
 
In January 2017, Romford was successful in its application to the Home 
Office as part of its second round of Local Alcohol Action Areas.  The 
Romford area was changing, with an influx of residential dwellings into the 

Page 12



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 27 February 2018 
 

 

town centre and large restaurant chains being attracted to the area.  This 
subsequently added to the pressures on the police town center teams as 
the coverable space increased. 
 
Night Czar Amy Lamé, appointed by the London Major Sadiq Khan, had 
visited Romford in February 2018 to view the nightlife scene in greater 
London.   
 

35 METROPOLITAN POLICE ON RESPONSE  
 
Members received a report on from BCU Commander Sean Wilson on 
response time performance.   
 
Despite many challenges due to early structuring and the number of team 
members across the three boroughs, since September 2017, I and S call 
performance for the Basic Command Unit (BCU) had improved significantly. 
 
Officers had been issued with tablets and keyboards to enable them to 
complete reports outside of the police station.  However, some signal black 
spots in Havering had proved to be an issue. 
 

36 BCU UPDATE FOR LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING FOR THE LONDON 
BOROUGH OF HAVERING  
 
The Basic Command Unit (BCU) model was at the stage to be rolled across 
the Metropolitan Police, with the 32 boroughs merging into 12 BCUs. 
 
Neighbourhood policing had seen an increase in ring fenced dedicated ward 
officers, in addition to town centre officers.  With the expansion of demand 
in the Romford Town Centre and reduced funding, consideration was being 
given by the London Chamber of Commerce to the expansion of the 
Metropolitan Special Constabulary.  
 
Scope had been given for initiatives such as Operation Mexico, whose focus 
was burglary and which had proved successful, with 52 suspects having 
been arrested since the 2nd January 2018, with 54 offences having been 
charged, which included 31 charges for burglary. 
 
BCU Commander Sean Wilson was requested to provide an update on the 
community contact sessions to members at a future meeting.   
 
In response to questioning, it was noted that proposals for ward hubs in fire 
stations, schools and supermarkets were underway and that a full update 
would be provided once a decision had been taken.   
 
A discussion on the access of the hub at the corner of Farenden Road and 
Straight Road and the difficulties community officers were experiencing in 
accessing the premises pursued.  This would be followed up by the Basic 
Command Unit.   During discussion, the option of ‘pull ups’ was suggested. 
 

Page 13



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 27 February 2018 
 

 

37 CRIME AND DISORDER SUB-COMMITTEE - ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18  
 
Members received the 2017/18 Annual Report of the Sub-Committee. The 
report summarized the work of the Sub-Committee during the 2017-18 
municipal year. 
 
The approval of the final version of the report would be delegated to the 
Chair, for submission to Council in March 2018. 
 

38 REPORT OF THE CRIME AND DISORDER SUB-COMMITTEE TOPIC 
GROUP: TO REVIEW HOW THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM DEALS 
WITH OFFENDERS WITH MENTAL HEALTH ISSUES  
 
At its meeting on the 24 September 2015, the sub-committee agreed to 
establish a topic group to look at how people with mental health issues were 
supported by the Justice System.  The sub-committee had indicated that 
information should be sought from the North East London NHS Foundation 
Trust, the Clinical Commissioning Group, Public Health as well as obtaining 
an understanding of what happens in the custody system and how 
magistrates handle complex cases.   
 
Members received a report which detailed the scrutiny work undertaken by 
Members in reaching its recommendations.   
 
The approval of the final version of the report would be delegated to the 
Chair, for submission to the Overview and Scrutiny Board. 
 

39 DRAFT REPORT OF THE CRIME AND DISORDER COMMITTEE: 
INCREASE IN UNLAWFULL TRAVELLER ENCAMPMENTS TOPIC 
GROUP  
 
At its meeting on the 28 July 2016, the sub-committee agreed to establish a 
topic group to scrutinize the number of places originally provided in 
Havering for Travellers, how this had grown and how it was predicted to 
grow in future as well as the reasons behind these changes. 
 
Members received a report which detailed the scrutiny work undertaken by 
Members in reaching its recommendations.   
 
The approval of the final version of the report would be delegated to the 
Chair for submission to the Overview and Scrutiny Board.  
 

40 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
The meeting was not quorate therefore those members present were unable 
to take a decision as to whether to exclude the press and public.  
 

Page 14



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 27 February 2018 
 

 

41 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The exempt minutes of the meeting held on the 29 August 2017 were 
unable to be agreed due to the meeting not being quorate. 
 

42 ANNUAL STRATEGY ASSESSMENT  
 
Members received the Strategic Assessment 2017, which was approved by 
the Havering Community Safety Partnership on the 16th January 2018.   
 
The contents of the assessment included performance and recent trends, 
Crime Harm Index, Community Safety Problems and suggested priorities 
and recommendations. 
 
The assessment highlighted an increase in robbery, sexual offences, 
weapon enabled crime, motor vehicle crime and serious youth violence.  
Youth violence rate per 1,000 had seen Havering move from the 9th worse 
in London to the 8th worse.  The CSE rate remained the 2nd worse in 
London; and the taking of motor vehicles had seen a 47% increase on the 
previous year, moving Havering from 12th worse in London to 4th worse.  
 
Burglary dwelling and domestic violence with injury had both seen less than 
1% change on last year’s level.  The burglary dwelling rate had improved on 
the previous year, from 8th to 19th. 
 
There had been a 10.6% reduction in violence with injury, 26.4% reduction 
in hate crime and 41.8% reduction in business crime, despite a rise in 
shoplifting.  Other areas which had increased included burglary non-
dwelling, violence without injury and damage to dwellings. 
 
Those in their mid-teens to mid-thirties were at greatest risk of victimisation 
from harmful and high risk problems, with the greatest increase in the 14-17 
age group.  30 and over were at greatest risk of household / home based 
acquisitive crimes.  Domestic abuse and sexual offences were more likely to 
be reported by females, whereas serious wounding and robbery were more 
likely to be reported by males.  The overall breakdown of all violence was 
35% female and 65% male.  Domestic abuse had the highest level of repeat 
victimisation, at 28.8%.  Cash, phones, credit cards and jewellery continued 
to be the most stolen items, with iPhones accounting for 60% of the phones 
stolen in all crime types.  Ford were the most stolen, and stolen from, 
vehicles. 
 
Crime offending rates were above average for those aged 14-39, with the 
peak offending age being between 16-24.  For more serious violence and 
sexual offences, the predominant age range was 16-30, but for domestic 
abuse the predominant age range extended into the forties.  Males 
accounted for a total of 80% (suspected) offenders, ranging from 68% - 95% 
depending on the category of crime.  Categories of crime where offenders 
were most likely to know victims were sexual offences and domestic abuse.  
 

Page 15



Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee, 27 February 2018 
 

 

Top categories which had impacted across Havering were domestic 
violence, violent crime and youth violence, burglary, sexual offences and 
anti-social behaviour.  Top contributory factors in the commission of crime 
were alcohol harm, drug use/misuse and domestic abuse perpetration. 
 
The key priorities identified from the assessment were: 
 

 Protecting vulnerable individuals/victims. 

 Support the most prolific and/or high offenders. 

 Create safer locations. 

 Community engagement and public confidence. 
 
The recommendations from the assessment were: 
 

 To retain the strategic priorities agreed for Havering the previous year. 

 To maintain a strong focus on reducing re-offending, especially for adults 
and those involved in gangs. 

 To reduce repeat victimisation, especially violence against women and 
girls, child sexual exploitation and anti-social behaviour. 

 To reduce substance misuse and the harm it causes. 

 To reduce problems in communities experiencing disproportionate levels 
of crime. 

 To improve feelings of safety through communications. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 16



 
 

   CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
18 July 2018  
 

 
Subject Heading: 
 
 

Crime and Disorder Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Performance 
Indicators - Quarter 4 (2017/18) 
 

SLT Lead: 
 

Jane West (Chief Operating Officer) 
 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

Kit Weller, Community Safety Analyst, 
Community Safety and Development 
Team, 01708 433 465, 
kit.weller@havering.gov.uk 
 

Policy context: 
 
 

The report sets out Quarter 4 performance 
for indicators relevant to the Committee. 
 

Financial summary: 
 
 

There are no direct financial implications 
arising from this report.  However adverse 
performance against some performance 
indicators may have financial implications 
for the Council.  
 
All service directorates are required to 
achieve their performance targets within 
approved budgets.  The Senior 
Leadership Team (SLT) is actively 
monitoring and managing resources to 
remain within budgets, although several 
service areas continue to experience 
financial pressures from demand led 
services and these are raised through 
standard budget monitoring processes. 

 

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council 
Objectives 
 
Communities making Havering                                                                                                    [X] 
Places making Havering                                                                                                                [X] 
Opportunities making Havering                                                                                                   [] 
Connections making Havering                                                                                                     []      
 
 
 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

 
SUMMARY 

 
 
The report provides information on performance against the indicators previously 
selected for monitoring by the Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Sub-
Committee during Quarter 4 (January – March 2018). 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
That the Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the contents 
of the report and makes any recommendations as appropriate. 
 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 

 
 
Deployable Police resources compared with establishment 
 
Information has been requested by the Committee on the following police 
resourcing information: 
 

1) Shifts where minimum staffing strength is met  
 
A request was made for this information to the relevant Metropolitan Police 
department, but owing to different departments now being involved in preparing 
staffing information compared to previous reports this data was not received in time 
for publication in this report.  The MPS has committed to preparing the data in 
readiness for the meeting. 
 
 

2) Working days lost to aid abstractions from ring fenced roles / 
Neighbourhood officers abstracted by rank 

 
For those officers posted to Dedicated Ward Officer (DWO) roles, the number of 
working days lost due to abstractions each month is as shown in Table 1, based on 
converting the figure provided in minutes into eight-hour working days.  As can be 
seen, levels of abstractions were relatively low in Quarter 4 compared with 
Quarters 2 and 3 (no data was provided for Quarter 1). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

Table 1.  Working days abstracted by rank 
 PC PCSO Acting Sergeant 

Days 
Abstracted 

Not 
Abstracted 

Days 
Abstracted

Not 
Abstracted

Days 
Abstracted 

Not 
Abstracted

July 48.63 
(7.3%) 

616.8 
(92.7%) 

34.2 
(9.6%) 

323.8 
(90.4%) 

1.25 
(8.2%) 

14 
(91.8%) 

Aug. 195.9 
(29.9%)  

458.6 
(70.1%) 

27.5 
(8.3%) 

303.8 
(91.7%) 

2.4 
(14.6%) 

14 
(85.4%) 

Sep. 79.5 
(13.4%) 

511.7 
(86.6%) 

16.9 
(5.6%) 

284.9 
(94.4%) 

0  
(0%) 

19.3 
(100%) 

Oct. 232.6 
(36.4%) 

407.1 
(63.6%) 

96.8 
(32.3%) 

202.8 
(77.7%) 

7.3 
(32.4%) 

15.2 
(77.6%) 

Nov. 151.3 
(21.7%) 

545 
(78.3%) 

63.3 
(18.5%) 

279.3 
(81.5%) 

0 
(0%) 

18.2 
(100%) 

Dec. 49.8 
(8.9%) 

509.2 
(91.1%) 

7.8 
(2.4%) 

316.9 
(97.6%) 

2.6 
(15.2%) 

14.5 
(84.8%) 

Jan. 36.8 
(5.5%) 

639.9 
(94.5%) 

13.8 
(4%) 

331.9 
(96%) No one is shown in the 

data as performing as 
an Acting Sergeant 

during Q4 

Feb. 37.8 
(5.8%) 

609 
(94.2%) 

7.3 
(2.3%) 

313.2 
(97.7%) 

Mar. 21.5 
(3%) 

676 
(97%) 

5.8 
(1.8%) 

335.8 
(98.2%) 

 
 

 
 
 

3) Number of officers abstracted for aid, court and training (eight-hour 
working days) / officer roles abstracted 

 
The number of officers abstracted for each duty is difficult to provide in a simple 
form due to various shift patterns being worked such as part-time or compressed 
hours, or an abstraction only taking up part of a shift.  Therefore the number of 
officers abstracted would not have provided a uniform representation and the figure 

0

50

100

150

200

250

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Working days abstracted by rank

PCs

PCSOs

Acting Sergeants

Page 19



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

is instead shown in Table 2 as the number of eight-hour shifts for which each role 
is abstracted from ward duties.  As can be seen, January to March saw the lowest 
levels of abstractions in the nine months monitored so far. 
 
As can also be seen, the vast majority of abstractions are to attend training.  
Certain training commitments which officers attend are mandatory, and other 
training courses may either benefit Havering, or provide a contingency measure for 
the borough or London as a whole (such as public order training or driver training).  
   
Table 2. Working days abstracted by type and role.    
 Aid Local Aid Training Court Staffing-up 

PC PCSO PC PCSO PC PCSO PC PCSO PC PCSO
Jul - - 4.25 13.5 41.4 20.7 - - 2.4 - 
Aug 11.9 - 36.1 2.6 76.6 24.9 - - 71.4 - 
Sep 2.25 - 8.9 1.25 55.6 14.7 1.1 - 11.6 - 
Oct - - 161.3 70.1 65.5 23.7 5.8 1.1 - - 
Nov 19.4 5.9 83.3 40.1 51 20.4 1.1 - - - 
Dec 13.1 - 11.6 5.5 27 4.7 1.3 - - - 
Jan 2.9 - - - 33.9 12.9 - 0.9 - - 
Feb 7 - - - 28.4 7.3 2.4 - -  
Mar 3.5 1.3 - - 13.5 4.6 4.5 - - - 
 
 
 

 
 
Table 3 (below) displays the percentage of DWOs’ time spent on each ward during 
January, February and March 2018.  Quarter 2 data has also been provided, for 
comparison. Figures for all wards improved in Quarter 4 compared with Quarter 3, 
in many cases significantly. 

15

101

8

Reasons  for abstractions (days 
during Quarter 4)

Aid

Training

Court

Page 20



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

 
All figures have been calculated using the amount of time PCs or PCSOs are 
abstracted from their ward-based duties, compared to the total time they are shown 
working for.  This data may not be the most accurate reflection of work carried out.  
For example, if a particular ward was under-staffed, or an officer on a ward was on 
leave, then the ‘total minutes on duty’ figure used to calculate the percentage 
would be less than a fully-staffed ward where (for example) the full complement of 
officers had taken no leave or sickness throughout the reporting period. 
 
 
Table 3. Percentage of DWOs’ time spent on ward 

 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

PC PCSO PC PCSO 

Brooklands                     91% 86% 98% 100% 

Cranham                        70% 84% 86% 96% 

Elm Park                       57% 74% 91% 96% 

Emerson Park                   74% 82% 99% 100% 

Gooshays                       79% 81% 95% 98% 

Hacton                         75% 67% 96% 96% 

Harold Wood                    73% 80% 97% 98% 

Havering Park 79% N/A* 94% 100% 

Heaton                         79% 74% 96% 97% 

Hylands                        79% 84% 98% 96% 

Mawneys                        88% 79% 91% 98% 

Pettits                        86% 80% 96% 93% 

Rainham & Wennington        71% 86% 91% 98% 

Romford Town                   85% 81% 100% 98% 

South Hornchurch               80% 98% 92% 99% 

Squirrels Heath                72% 86% 98% 96% 

St Andrews                     80% 80% 98% 97% 

Upminster                      80% 93% 97% 96% 

Total 97% 98% 
   *Data shows no record of PCSO ‘minutes on duty’ for  
  This ward during this reporting period 
 

Page 21



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

 
 
4) Working days lost to sickness (FTE) 
 
This figure was provided for the Havering Operational Command Unit up until 
Quarter 1 2017/18. From Quarter 2 onwards the figure is provided for the whole 
East Area Basic Command Unit, rather than individual boroughs, hence the PC 
and PCSO figures being much larger as they reflect three boroughs’ worth of staff 
rather than one.  As can be seen, sickness absence increased in each quarter of 
2017/18, and was significantly higher, particularly for civil staff, in Quarter 4 than in 
any of the preceding quarters. However it is not clear what proportion of staff were 
absent from the Havering borough. 
 
 
Table 4. Full-time-equivalent days lost due to sickness  

2016  2017 

Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4  Q1  Q2  Q3  Q4 
Civil Staff 96  41  13  10  223  135  181  400 
PCSO 186  174  146  74  171  274  304  320 
Police 1447  1306  1517  1645  2880  5904  6080  6124 

 
 
 
 

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

105%

B
ro
o
kl
an
d
s

C
ra
n
h
am

El
m
 P
ar
k

Em
er
so
n
 P
ar
k

G
o
o
sh
ay
s

H
ac
to
n

H
ar
o
ld
 W

o
o
d

H
av
er
in
g 
P
ar
k

H
ea
to
n

H
yl
an
d
s

M
aw

n
ey
s

P
et
ti
ts

R
ai
n
h
am

 &
 W

en
n
in
gt
o
n

R
o
m
fo
rd
 T
o
w
n

So
u
th
 H
o
rn
ch
u
rc
h

Sq
u
ir
re
ls
 H
ea
th

St
. A

n
d
re
w
s

U
p
m
in
st
er

% DWOs' time spent on ward (Q4)

PCs

PCSOs

Page 22



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

Response times to Immediate (I) and Significant (S) Grade Incidents 
 
The MPS has a target to reach 90% of “Immediate” (I) graded calls within 15 
minutes of the call being made. The MPS target for “Significant” (S) graded calls is 
to reach 90% within one hour of the call being made.  
 
Data is no longer available from the police for each borough each month, however 
is now provided as a rolling average for I and S grades of calls met within target 
times, and also for domestic abuse calls in each of these gradings, across the 
whole BCU area. The rolling average is provided from 4 September, when 
revisions to the tri-borough model came into effect.  
 
I-grades: As at the end of March 2018, rolling averages sat at 83.5% for all I 
graded calls, and 88.9% for Domestic Abuse I graded calls, across the whole BCU 
area.  This is better than the position reported at the end of Quarter 3 for the 
Havering borough only (when the figures were 78% and 80% respectively) but 
remains slightly below target. 
 
S-grades:  As at the end of March, local performance against target response 
times was at 84.7% for all S graded calls, and 91.7% for Domestic Abuse S graded 
calls.  This is also better than the position reported at the end of Quarter 3 for the 
Havering borough only (when the figures were 83% and 79% respectively).  It is 
also slightly above target – for the first time – in respect of Domestic Abuse calls, 
but remains slightly below target for S graded calls as a whole. 
 
The average response time for calls is likewise only available for the whole East 
Area tri-borough collective rather than Havering individually.  The median response 
time to I calls is 9 minutes 15 seconds (against a target of 15 minutes).  The 
median response time to S calls is 30 minutes 18 seconds (against a target of one 
hour). 
 
Percentage of anti-social behaviour (ASB) reports relating to traveller 
incursions 
 
Calls to police are recorded on the Computer Aided Despatch (CAD) system. CAD 
records are given a series of ‘opening codes’ which relate to the information the 
call handler is given, and ‘closing codes’ based on the assessment of the officer 
who actually attends. The ‘opening codes’ and ‘closing codes’ can often be 
different, such as if a member of the public telephones the police regarding what 
they perceive to be anti-social behaviour, but when police attend they find that 
criminal offences have been committed and a crime report is recorded – thus 
meaning the closing code reflects crime rather than ASB. The choice of which 
codes to use can also be subjective depending on the call despatcher closing the 
record down. 
 
In Quarter 4 of 2017/18, there were 62 calls to police regarding incursions at 13 
separate locations, however from the dates of these it appears that two received a 
repeat visit after the travellers had initially left.  These 62 calls represent 7.8% of 
the 799 incidents closed as anti-social behaviour calls within this reporting period.  

Page 23



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

For comparison, outturns were 1% in Quarter 1; 0.58% in Quarter 2 and 2.1% in 
Quarter 3. 
  
While this is the highest figure seen over the past year, with some of the incursions 
seen during Quarter 4 remaining in place for several days or weeks it is 
understandable that they resulted in a higher number of calls from members of the 
public.  As such, it demonstrates the good intentions of members of the public in 
contacting police to let them know of incursions. 
 

 
 
 

 
  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 

 
 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
 
There are no financial implications arising directly from this report which is for 
information only.  However adverse performance against some performance indicators 
may have financial implications for the Council.  
 
All service directorates are required to achieve their performance targets within 
approved budgets.  The Senior Leadership Team (SLT) is actively monitoring and 
managing resources to remain within budgets, although several service areas continue 
to experience significant financial pressures in relation to a number of demand led 
services.  SLT officers are focused upon controlling expenditure within approved 
directorate budgets and within the total General Fund budget through delivery of 
savings plans and mitigation plans to address new pressures that are arising within the 
year and regularly consider reports as part of budget monitoring and budget setting 
processes 
 
 

1.00%
0.58%

2.10%

7.80%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

% ASB calls relating to traveller 
incursions (2017/18)

Page 24



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

Legal implications and risks: 
 
Whilst reporting on performance is not a statutory requirement, it is considered best 
practice to review the Council’s progress against the Corporate Plan and Service Plans 
on a regular basis. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 
There are no specific Human Resource implications or risks arising directly from this 
report. 
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
 
This report relates to information requested by the committee rather than policy. 
There are no direct equalities implications or risks associated with this report. 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

     CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB-
COMMITTEE, 18 JULY 2018  
 

 
Subject Heading: 
 
 

Tri Borough policing model and current 
policing provision in Havering 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

Victoria Freeman, 01708 433862 
Victoria.freeman@onesource.co.uk 

 

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council 
Objectives 

 
Communities making Havering                                                                                                   [X] 
Places making Havering                                                                                                               [X] 
Opportunities making Havering                                                                                                   [] 
Connections making Havering                                                                                                     []      
 

 
 

 

 
SUMMARY 

 
 
The report details the new Tri Borough policing model and informs members of the 
current policing provision in Havering,  
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
 
The Sub-Committee are requested to note the report. 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
 

Members will be aware that a report on the Tri-Borough Policing Model and 
Current Policing Provision in Havering was requested as an item at the inaugural 
meeting of the Sub-Committee.  Police partners are keen for this matter to be 
scrutinised by the Sub-Committee and will be in attendance at the meeting to 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 

 

discuss these areas at detail. A written report is currently in preparation and this 
will be published in a supplementary agenda as soon as it is received.  

 
 

 
 

  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 
 
 
 
 
Financial implications and risks: None of this covering report. 
 
Legal implications and risks: None of this covering report. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks: None of this covering report. 
 
Equalities implications and risks: None of this covering report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
 

     CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
  
 
Subject Heading: 
 
 

Havering Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 2018/19 Refresh 
 

SLT Lead: 
 

Jane West, Chief Operating Officer 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

Kit Weller 
Community Safety Analyst 
Kit.Weller@Havering.gov.uk 
01708 433465

Policy context: 
 
 

Our vision, ‘Havering – making a Greater 
London’, is about embracing the best of what 
Havering has to offer, and how we as a 
borough can play an active role in the success 
of the whole of London. Our vision is focused 
around the borough’s communities, places, 
opportunities and connections. The Council 
has a statutory duty under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to produce an annual 
analysis of crime and disorder in the area, 
which will then be used to create a strategy to 
reduce these. This is relevant to our vision by 
ensuring the safety of our communities, and 
creating safer places; thereby improving 
opportunities for individuals and businesses. 
 

Financial summary: 
 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report which is for information 
only.  The expectation is that the financial 
implications associated with delivering the 
plan will be contained within existing 
resources.  
 

 

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council 
Objectives 
 
Communities making Havering                                                                                                    [X] 
Places making Havering                                                                                                                [X] 
Opportunities making Havering                                                                                                   [] 
Connections making Havering                                                                                                     []      
 
 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
 
The Council has a statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 
produce an annually refreshed community safety plan. This report briefs the 
Committee on the steps taken to refresh the Havering Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 2017/18-2019/20, to take into account the findings of the most 
recent Strategic Assessment Process and developments regionally and nationally 
which affect Community Safety work. A summary of new actions is provided in the 
‘report detail’ section below.  
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
That the Committee note the Community Safety Partnership Plan 2018/19 refresh 
contained at Appendix 1, which was approved by Havering Community Safety 
Partnership in April 2018. 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
 

Developments behind the refresh and additional actions 
 
1.The 2017 Strategic Assessment found no reason to alter the Partnership’s 
existing themed priorities; protecting vulnerable individuals; supporting the most 
prolific and high harm offenders; creating safer locations; and the cross cutting 
theme of community engagement and public confidence. There were however 
particular developments which were significant enough to warrant new actions in 
the plan. 
 
2.The Mayor of London released his Police and Crime Plan and Knife Crime 
Strategy in 2017, and the new Violence Against Women and Girls strategy in 
March 2018. These documents set the direction for Community Safety work across 
London and for our partners in the Metropolitan Police; therefore the Havering 
Community Safety Partnership Plan has been refreshed to acknowledge these 
strategies. Funding from the Mayor’s office is also likely to be based on local 
projects being aligned with the Mayor’s strategy, so this is another important 
reason to ensure we incorporate direction set by City Hall. 
 
Domestic Abuse / Violence Against Women and Girls (Section 1 of Action Plan) 

Page 30



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

3.Work to tackle violence against women and girls (along with all other situations 
which fall into the definition of domestic abuse) has led to a feeling amongst 
professionals locally that provisions for perpetrators could be improved, and that 
services can be developed through a perpetrator panel to either assist those who 
accept their flaws in committing acts of domestic abuse and wish to seek help; or 
to co-ordinate efforts to disrupt and deter those who refuse to change, and 
persistently cause misery for those closest to them. 
 
4.The Homelessness Reduction Act, coming into force in April 2018, will require a 
local authority to assess the circumstances of any individual presenting as 
homeless, which could lead to an increase in the number of individuals applying for 
support. It is important for departments involved in safeguarding domestic abuse 
victims to ensure that they receive the support they need, regardless of any 
potential increase in applicants for housing support. An action has therefore been 
set for us to assess the impact of the legislation locally once it comes into force.    
 
5.Modern day slavery is an issue which has been increasing in prominence 
nationally in recent years, with a drive from the Government and police forces to 
raise awareness amongst the general public and professionals who may encounter 
victims who have been trafficked; either from outside the UK or within it. Victims 
are made to carry out various types of work against their will, often with a threat of 
violence against themselves or their family. In 2016 the most commonly reported 
type of exploitation in adult victims was forced labour (44% of victims) followed by 
sexual exploitation (37%)1. For this reason, the action to develop a modern day 
slavery working group has been placed under the VAWG heading; however any 
work carried out to tackle modern slavery will be done so with consideration of all 
types forced  work; the acts of trafficking; and the criminal groups behind these. 
 
Serious Group Violence (Section 2) 
6.The monthly SGV Panel has grown in strength since being restarted in summer 
2017, aided by the intelligence collated by the CSE and Gangs Analyst. This has 
been acknowledged in the refreshed plan, with an action to develop association 
charts of groups which operate in Havering. 
7.The SGV strategy will also be re-launched, and actions will be carried out 
alongside other members of the London Heads of Community Safety group to 
tackle county line gangs, which distribute drugs out of London to provincial towns. 
 
Burglary (Section 5) 
8.The Metropolitan Police have been tackling burglary with a dedicated operation 
across the tri-borough area, and as offending patterns are not differentiated by 
boroughs neither should the support offered by local authorities; therefore 
development of a tri-borough acquisitive crime group will be supported. 
9.The Neighbourhood Watch scheme will be reviewed and an operating procedure 
devised to assist with improving information flow throughout the year. In addition to 
this, the concept of local crime prevention groups will be expanded to include street 
watch, and allotment watch; which both fall outside the remit of existing schemes 

                                            
1 HM Government 2017 UK Annual Report on Modern Slavery 

Page 31



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

yet offer an opportunity for information to be gathered, and community led action to 
deter crime. 
 
Violence With Injury (Section 6) 
10.The majority of existing actions in this section of the plan relate to increasing 
safety in the night time economy, which generates a significant amount of our non-
domestic violence with injury crime. Although the subject of child sexual 
exploitation could be placed in the protecting vulnerable people theme in section 1; 
the other actions in section 6 relate to building links with town centre business, and 
as there have been cases when hotels in other areas have been used to facilitate 
exploitation it is important that the Community Safety Partnerships Officer’s 
connections with businesses are used to increase awareness in hotel staff of signs 
to look out for which may suggest that a room is being used to facilitate crime. 
 
11.A new action to work with the Portman group to develop town centre safe 
havens aims to bring together existing services to offer increased co-ordination 
which will further reduce the impact of the night-time economy on emergency 
services. 
 
Fire Safety Working Group (Section 7) 
12.Over the previous year the Tasking Enforcement Group has developed into an 
effective multi-agency method of establishing linked or persistent sources of anti-
social behaviour and environmental crime. Inclusion of data from colleagues at 
London Fire Brigade has led to several issues being brought to the group’s 
attention and subsequent action to manage fire risks. It has been decided that this 
area of work is significant enough to warrant its own working group; therefore the 
Fire Safety Working Group has been formed. This group will meet quarterly and 
use data to establish areas receiving multiple calls to fires, or locations 
representing an increased risk if a fire was to break out (such as hoarders); and put 
measures in place to manage these factors. 
13.The group has been added to the HCSP organogram in Appendix 6 of the plan. 
 
Cross-cutting ASB reduction (Section 8) 
14.An action has been added to this section to consider options for developing 
further Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO) to tackle issues impacting on 
quality of life across the borough. This follows on from the successful 
implementation of a PSPO in Romford Town Centre which prohibits anti-social 
drinking. The tool can potentially be used to tackle a range of issues; subject to 
consultation with affected parties, and support from the Metropolitan Police. 
 
15.Other new actions acknowledge work taking place with the Home Office as one 
of a small number of Local Alcohol Action Areas nationally; developing the Best 
Bar None scheme and seeking funding for this; and co-ordinating monthly action 
nights to tackle drugs and knives in the night-time economy. The intention is to 
then evidence the positive work in the night-time economy to apply for Purple Flag 
status. 
 
Performance Monitoring 

Page 32



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

16.Existing performance measures, as detailed in the HCSP Performance Report 
will be used to monitor numerical targets. 
17.The furthest-right column of the action plan has been used in the refreshed 
document to list the reason for including or continuing with each area of work. The 
background colour of red, amber, or green denotes how the officer responsible for 
this area of work perceives that progress is being made against the objective. 
The majority of actions set last year have seen good progression made (green), 
with only two areas experiencing amber progress. These are due to the delay in 
the Mayor’s Officer releasing their VAWG strategy which meant it would have been 
unwise to produce our local strategy (Section 1.A); and issues with the information 
sharing agreement which is necessary to share data with town centre partners, 
such as photos of people banned from pubs or clubs (Section 6.C). 
 
Appendix 

1 Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan 2017/18 to 2019/20 
(2018/19 Refresh) 

2 Community Safety Partnership, Partnership Plan Equalities Impact 
Assessment 2018 

 
 

  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 
 
 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report which is for information 
only.  Delivery of the Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan will have 
financial implications but the expectation is that this will be from within existing 
resources and where this is not possible it will be raised through the appropriate 
channels. 
 
Legal implications and risks: There are no apparent legal implications from 
noting the content of the Plan. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 
There are no HR implications or risks arising directly that impact on the Councils 
workforce as this report is for information only. Delivery of the Havering Community 
Safety Partnership Plan will have HR implications but the expectation is that these 
will be from within existing resources. 
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
The Equalities Impact Assessment for the plan itself is included as a background 
document. While hate crime is likely to impact on certain protected characteristics, 

Page 33



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 
 
 
 

 

it is also known that under-reporting exists; therefore actions are in place to 
develop links with groups in order to increase confidence and tackle this. 
 
The Community Safety Partnership Plan is a broad overarching document and 
there are individual action plans concerning separate areas of work. The Serious 
Group Violence and knife crime strategy was completed in 2017 and an EIA exists. 
The violence against women and girls strategy is currently in draft format and due 
to be launched later this year; and the local strategy concerning hate crime is in the 
process of being refreshed. For each of these strategies an equality impact 
assessment will be completed, and these assessments will contain specific details 
on work to address inequalities which may exist; tackle discrimination; and 
encourage good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not. 
 
Aspects of the Community Safety Plan will target crimes against vulnerable victims, 
such as against elderly victims, or youth violence; and by doing so will look to 
address inequalities which exist in this sense of the term. 

 

Page 34



1 
 

 

Havering Community Safety 
Partnership Plan  

 
2017/18 to 2019/20 
 (2018/19 Refresh) 

 
  

Page 35



2 
 

Document Control 
 
Document details 
 

Name 
Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan 2017/18 to 2019/20 
(2018/19 Refresh) 

Version number Final  

Status Draft 

Author Kit Weller 

Lead Officer Diane Egan, Community Safety and Development Manager 

Approved by Havering Community Safety Partnership 

Scheduled review 
date 

April 2019 

 
Version history 
 
Version Change Date Dissemination 

V0.1 Initial Draft 
February 
2018 

Internal 

V0.2 amended 
February 
2018 

Internal 

V0.3 amended March 2018 Internal 

V0.4 amended April 2018 To HCSP 

Final approved April 2018 To HCSP stakeholders 

 
Approval history 
 
Version Change Date Approving body 

Final Approved April 2018 to HCSP stakeholders 

    

 
Equality analysis record 
 

Date Completed by Review date  

February 2018 Diane Egan  March 2019 

   

 
 
  

Page 36



3 
 

Contents 

 
1. Foreword 
2. Executive Summary 
3. Introduction 

A. Purpose and scope  
B. Vision 
C. Aims and objectives 
D. Timescales 
E. Related documents 

4. Authorisation and communication 
5. Implementation and monitoring 

A. Governance and delivery 
B. Action plan 
C. Monitoring action and performance 

6. Evaluation and review 
7. Further information 
8. Appendices 

A. Appendix 1: Equality Analysis 
B. Appendix 2: Related Documents 
C. Appendix 3: Data Sources 
D. Appendix 4: Membership of Havering Community Safety Partnership 
E. Appendix 5: Action Plans Linked to the Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan 
F. Appendix 6: Governance and Structure of Havering Community Safety Partnership 

Action Plan 
 

  

Page 37



4 
 

1. Foreword  

 
Thank you for reading the Partnership Plan for improving community safety in the London Borough of 
Havering.  
 
This Community Safety Partnership Plan is produced by the Community Safety and Development 
Team on behalf of the Havering Community Safety Partnership.  It sets out the plans and actions that 
the Partnership aspires to as a result of this year’s Strategic Assessment, which is an analysis of the 
crime and disorder trends in Havering over the last twelve months. 
 
The Council’s local intelligence shows that crime, disorder and fear of crime rank very highly in a list 
of public concerns amongst Havering residents and amongst the wider community that works in and 
visits the borough. This plan is the result of the focused analysis of the annual strategic assessment 
process, and sets out actions for the various partnership groups who are charged with bringing this 
plan to fruition. 
 
Every year we face tough challenges in improving community safety but the economic climate in 
recent years has made this more difficult, so it is important that we demonstrate to you that the work 
we do both makes a difference and represents good value. 
 
In light of the challenges, Havering Community Safety Partnership has continued to achieve notable 
successes in impacting on crime, fear of crime and disorder. Overall, Havering is one of the safest 
boroughs in London. This plan represents our commitment to ensuring that Havering remains a safe 
place in which to live, work or visit. 
 
The Community Safety Partnership welcomes the priorities that have been set by the Mayor of 
London, which are closely aligned with our priorities as identified throughout the strategic assessment 
process. The priorities are aligned throughout this plan and through our strategic themes and cross-
cutting areas. 
 
We look forward to continue working in conjunction with the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime to 
ensure these areas are delivered. 
 
 
 
Andrew Blake-Herbert       Jason Gwillim 
Chief Executive        Borough Commander 
London Borough of Havering      East London BCU 
Chair of the HCSP        Vice Chair of the HCSP 
 
 

  

Page 38



5 
 

2. Executive summary 
 
The Havering Community Safety Partnership is comprised of five responsible authorities1 who, by law, 
are required to work together to tackle crime, disorder, substance misuse and reoffending. There is 
also a statutory requirement that the Havering Community Safety Partnership produces an annual 
strategic assessment of these issues in coordination with a community safety strategy or plan. 
 
The strategic assessment assesses and evaluates the progress towards priorities set out in the 
community safety partnership plan, and recommends any changes required to the strategic priorities, 
if applicable, for the forthcoming years. The Havering Community Safety Partnership strategic 
assessment has identified three strategic themes together with one cross-cutting area for the 
forthcoming plan.  
 
The strategic themes and cross-cutting area identified are as follows: 
 

 Protecting vulnerable individuals/victims – we want to reduce the number of victims and 
repeat victims of crime and anti-social behaviour in Havering. Areas of particular focus, where 
volume and risk of repeat victimisation are greatest, will be violence against women and girls, 
serious group violence, child sexual exploitation and preventing hate crime and extremism. In 
addition MOPAC have set additional priorities of reducing non-domestic violence with injury 
and anti-social behaviour. 

 Supporting the most prolific and/or high harm offenders – we want to reduce the harm 
and risk of reoffending posed by known offenders residing in Havering and work with 
neighbouring boroughs to minimise the impact of offenders travelling into Havering. Areas of 
particular focus, where risks associated with reoffending and harm are highest, will be 
offenders with drug and alcohol misuse, reoffenders, and those with links to gangs. 

 Creating Safer Locations – we want to reduce the volume of crime in areas which are 
disproportionately affected. Areas of particular focus, where higher concentrations of crime 
exist, will be local town centres and retail areas across Havering and burglary hotspots. 

 Throughout this work, a key cross-cutting area will be community engagement and public 
confidence. This is to enable communities to report and receive information, as well as being 
part of potential solutions. This will also help to close the gap between perceptions of crime 
and actual levels of crime in the borough. 

 
Havering’s identified strategic priorities are broadly aligned to current and emerging regional and 
national strategies. Both within the national and regional context there continues to be a greater 
emphasis on prioritisation of crimes that present the highest levels of risk and harm, notably Violence 
against Women and Girls and Ending Gang Violence and Exploitation. In addition to this the new 
Police and Crime Plan for London has prioritised extremism, hatred and intolerance.  
 
The Mayor of London released A Safer City for All Londoners; Police and Crime Plan 2017-2021 in 
March 2017, and the London Knife Crime Strategy in June 2017. A refreshed regional Violence 
Against Women and Girls Strategy; A Safer City for Women and Girls was released in March 2018. In 
Havering, the local Serious Group Violence and Knife Crime Strategy was refreshed in 2017, and the 
local Violence against Women and Girls strategy will be finalised in coming months now that we can 
ensure our local work aligns closely with the direction set across London by the Mayor. 

                                                 
1 London Borough of Havering, Clinical Commissioning Group, Metropolitan Police, London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority and 
National Probation Service/Community Rehabilitation Company. 

Page 39



6 
 

 
The table below sets out Havering’s priorities and their alignment to regional and national strategies. 
Priority areas of each strategy are summarised by the respective strategy name. Hyperlinks for all 
regional and national strategies are included in Appendix 2. 
 
Havering strategic priorities and their alignment with current regional and national strategy/policy 
Havering Partnership Plan Regional (MOPAC) National 
Protecting vulnerable 
individuals/victims – focus on 
VAWG, gangs and serious violence, 
CSE, hate crime and extremism 

Police and Crime Plan 2017– A better 
Police Service for London 
 
Police and Crime Plan 2017– Keeping 
children and young people safe 
 
Police and Crime Plan 2017 – Tackling 
violence against women and girls 
 
Police and Crime Plan 2017 – Standing 
together against extremism, hatred and 
intolerance 
 
A Safer City for Women and Girls 
(London Violence Against Women and 
Girls Strategy 2018-2021) 

Home Office- Ending Gang Violence 
and Exploitation 2016 – exploitation of 
people for county lines, safeguarding 
associated women and girls, early 
intervention, promoting meaningful 
alternatives 
 
Home Office Ending Violence against 
Women & Girls 2016-2020 – preventing 
violence and abuse, provision of 
services 
 
Home Office- Hate Crime Action Plan 
2016-2020 – preventing hate crime, 
increasing reporting, improving victim 
support 
 
Home Office -Modern Crime Prevention 
Strategy 2016 – character (intervening 
early) 
 
National Crime Agency Strategy 2016 – 
Child Sexual Exploitation and Abuse, 
Organised Immigration Crime, Modern 
Slavery and Human Trafficking 

Supporting the most prolific and/or 
high harm offenders – focus on 
reoffending, alcohol and drugs, 
gangs 

Police and Crime Plan 2017 – A better 
Police Service for London 
 
Police and Crime Plan 2017– A better 
Criminal Justice service for London 
 
Police and Crime Plan 2017– Keeping 
children and young people safe 
 

Home Office- Ending Gang Violence 
and Exploitation 2016 – reduce 
violence and knife crime (use of tools 
and powers), early intervention,  
 
Home Office Ending Violence against 
Women & Girls 2016-2020 – provision 
of services, pursuing perpetrators 
 
Home Office -Modern Crime Prevention 
Strategy 2016 – character (intervening 
early), Effectiveness of CJS, Drugs 
(work on new national strategy), 
Alcohol – making the night time 
economy safe 
 
National Crime Agency Strategy 2016 – 
Firearms, Drugs 

Creating safer locations – focus on 
crime attractors, town centres and 
night time economy, burglary 
hotspots 

Police and Crime Plan 2017– A better 
police service for London, including 
freedom to set local priorities – in 
Havering we have selected burglary 
and non-domestic violence with injury 
(i.e. night time economy) 
 
Police and Crime Plan 2017 – Standing 
together against extremism, hatred and 

Home Office- Ending Gang Violence 
and Exploitation 2016 – protect 
vulnerable locations 
 
Home Office- Hate Crime Action Plan 
2016-2020 – reducing hate crimes in 
high risk environments 
 
Home Office -Modern Crime Prevention 

Page 40



7 
 

intolerance Strategy 2016 – opportunity (removing 
or designing out) 
 
National Crime Agency Strategy  2016– 
Cyber crime 
 
Contest Strategy 2011 – Protect and 
Prepare 

Community engagement and public 
confidence 

All regional and national strategies have communications and engagement plans 
within. 

 
Whilst we will continue to address all issues of crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour, the identified 
priorities and areas of focus are those areas which contribute to the greatest social and economic 
costs to victims and services and/or cause the greatest level of harm to Havering residents. 
 
We will continue to reduce risk and harm to local communities and maintain Havering’s position as 
one of the safest boroughs in London. The community safety partnership will make the most efficient 
use of scarce resources through partnership working, sharing knowledge of what works, replicating 
good practice and being data driven and intelligence led in our approach with a managed and 
accountable delivery structure. 
 
The strategic themes will be implemented and monitored through the existing Havering Community 
Safety Partnership structure and delivery model. Each sub-group and operational group of the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership will retain a strong link to the strategic themes and will use 
the strategic assessment and associated crime problem profiles to develop specific action plans and 
performance monitoring frameworks. 
 
The partnership plan will be implemented and monitored by the Havering Community Safety 
Partnership. The Havering Community Safety Partnership Board oversees the wider delivery and 
implementation. This group is also responsible for long term strategic work. The second tier of the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership structure contains the priority delivery groups and the third 
tier contains the operational sub-groups, as outlined below – these are all accountable to the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership Board. 
 

Havering Community Partnership Board
 
Protecting vulnerable 
individuals / victims 

Supporting the most prolific 
and/or high harm offenders 

Creating safer locations Community engagement and 
public confidence 

Violence Against Women & 
Girls Strategic Group 

Reducing Reoffending Board Business Group (Safe & 
Sound Day & Night Time 
Economy) 

Safer Neighbourhood Board 

Domestic Violence Multi-
Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference 

Integrated Offender 
Management Panel 

Tasking Enforcement Group   

Multi-Agency Sexual 
Exploitation Group 

Serious Group Violence 
Panel 

Strategic Enforcement 
Board 

 

Anti-Social Behaviour and 
Community MARAC Panel 

Drug Intervention Project 
Panel 

Fire Safety Working Group 
(New as of April 2018) 

 

Domestic Violence 
Perpetrators panel (To be 
commenced after April 2018) 

   

 
The next evaluation of the partnership plan will commence in Quarter 4 2018-19 as part of the wider 
Strategic Assessment process for Community Safety.  
 

Page 41



8 
 

This is the second year of our three year strategy and our performance targets from the Mayor’s 
Office of Policing and Crime (MOPAC) are set out following the Action Plan at the end of this 
document. The performance targets include those set out in the Police and Crime Plan for London, 
and the key local outcomes which are linked to MOPAC crime prevention fund spend. 

3. Introduction  
 

Purpose and scope 
 
Each year it is a statutory requirement that Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) across England 
and Wales must conduct a strategic assessment of crime, disorder, and substance misuse and 
community safety issues2. The purpose of the assessment is to help decision makers set priorities. It 
is also the key background document used in the development of the Havering CSP Partnership Plan.  
 
A strategic assessment for Havering was completed in January 2018 which included a 
comprehensive analysis of the level and patterns of crime, disorder and substance misuse, and 
changes in the short, medium and long term across Havering. The assessment utilised a wide range 
of data from appropriate sources (Appendix 3) and used a variety of analytical techniques such as 
‘hot spot’ mapping and creation of indices to highlight disproportionality and level of harm. The 
assessment was structured around the Problem Analysis Triangle elements of victims (including 
vulnerable people, facilities and targets), offenders and locations (including priority communities). This 
approach has enabled the partnership to identify both cross-cutting issues and underlying drivers and 
motivations for offending. 
 
The London Borough of Havering in 2017 ranked as the 9th safest borough in London (improving from 
10th in 2016) in terms of rate of total recorded crime per 1,000 usual residents (74.8 in Havering 
compared to 94.4 regionally). Within Havering, non-domestic violence with injury, and residential 
burglary, both local priorities, have fallen in the last year; however vehicle crime and robbery have 
increased over the past year.  
 
In 2014 Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabularies’ (HMIC) crime data integrity programme 
identified serious concerns about police crime recording processes nationally, including under 
recording of personal crimes such as sexual offences and violence. This scrutiny has resulted in 
much more rigorous recording of personal crimes which are brought to the attention of police, 
contributing to a steep rise in recorded levels of violence against the person, domestic abuse and 
sexual offences. 
 
In Havering, police have recorded a small increase of 0.8% in violence against the person during the 
current assessment period; 48 additional offences. Similarly, domestic abuse crimes rose 1% by 23 
offences; a small amount, however we would like to be seeing a genuine reduction in this area. Child 
sexual exploitation offences fell by 5 offences during the same period, down to 116 from 121 the 
previous year. Increases in robbery and vehicle crime in Havering have contributed to a rise in total 
recorded crime. As mentioned above, improvements in recording practices are leading to better 
integrity of recorded crime data and we are identifying more victims than ever before. However, it also 
means that there is a growing demand for services to protect and safeguard victims, and to manage 
offenders. 

                                                 
2 The Strategic Assessment is an annual statutory requirement for every Community Safety Partnership, as is the production of a local three 
yearly (annually renewable) strategy or partnership plan – S6 Crime & Disorder Act as amended by S97 and S98 of the Police Reform Act, 
and as amended by the Police and Justice Act 2006; and S1 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005. 

Page 42



9 
 

The community safety problems which were identified as causing the most harm during the most 
recent strategic assessment period are domestic abuse and violent crime (including gangs), sexual 
offences (including child sexual exploitation), burglary and anti-social behaviour. A recent public 
survey which received around 800 responses also highlighted burglary as the crime which made the 
highest percentage of respondents very concerned (82%); followed by robbery (75%) and street 
violence (72%). These responses demonstrate the value of including these crimes in our priorities and 
focussing multi-agency work on tackling them. 
 
Violence overall is the largest contributor to crime in Havering, accounting for 33% of all recorded 
crime – specific problems within this include gangs and serious youth violence which continued to 
increase in the current assessment period. Havering now has the 16th highest rate in London for 
serious youth violence, improving from 12th last year. Weapon enabled (knife and gun) crime and 
robbery involving young people as both victims and perpetrators have also risen in the last 12-
months.  
 
It is estimated that domestic abuse affects one in twenty adults in Havering, not including the number 
of children in households witnessing domestic abuse. Furthermore, currently more than a quarter of 
all cases received in the local authority Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub involve domestic abuse and 
more than one in ten crimes reported to police are domestic abuse.  
 
Whilst sexual offences are low in volume, due in part to significant levels of underreporting, the impact 
and harm caused by such crimes is great. A growing proportion of crimes of this nature in Havering 
cross-cut alongside domestic abuse and violent crimes linked with gangs. Havering has seen a 
significant rise in the volume of cases of child sexual exploitation and currently has the second 
highest rate of reported offences per 1,000 youth population of all 32 London boroughs. 
 
The key determinants of crime and repeat victimisation in Havering continue to be alcohol and drug 
misuse and reoffending levels, whilst deprivation, social inequality and mental health are influencers.  
 
Alcohol harm, particularly in respect of violence and domestic abuse is a key issue. Alcohol increases 
the risk of injury in violent crime, for which there is a high level reported in relation to domestic abuse 
and the night time economy in Havering. Half of all violence is alcohol related. Drug misuse is more 
prevalent among known acquisitive crime offenders in Havering, particularly burglary. Of the offenders 
assessed by the National Probation Service cohort for Barking and Dagenham and Havering, 78% 
considered themselves to have significant problems with alcohol contributing to violent behaviour3. 
 
Reoffending remains an issue, with pathways and needs identified for Havering offenders being 
finances and education, training and employment, coupled with the aforementioned drivers of drugs 
and alcohol. The number of adult offenders and reoffenders has been rising in Havering and across 
the east London sub-region, contrasting with declines across London as a whole.  
 
The strategic themes and cross-cutting areas for Havering based on the strategic assessment are as 
follows: 
 

 Protecting vulnerable individuals/victims – we want to reduce the number of victims and 
repeat victims of crime and anti-social behaviour in Havering. Areas of particular focus, where 
volume and risk of repeat victimisation are greatest, will be violence against women and girls, 
serious group violence, child sexual exploitation and preventing hate crime and extremism. In 

                                                 
3 Based on 2017 National Probation Service data for the combined Barking and Dagenham and Havering cohort. 

Page 43



10 
 

addition MOPAC have set additional priorities of reducing non-domestic violence with injury 
and ASB. 

 Supporting the most prolific and/or high harm offenders – we want to reduce the harm 
and risk of reoffending posed by known offenders residing in Havering and work with 
neighbouring boroughs to minimise the impact of offenders travelling into Havering. Areas of 
particular focus, where risks associated with reoffending and harm are highest, will be 
offenders with drug and alcohol misuse, reoffenders, and those with links to gangs. 

 Creating Safer Locations – we want to reduce the volume of crime in areas which are 
disproportionately affected. Areas of particular focus, where higher concentrations of crime 
exist, will be local town centres and retail areas across Havering and burglary hotspots. 

 Throughout this work, a key cross-cutting area will be community engagement and public 
confidence. This is to enable communities to report and receive information, as well as being 
part of potential solutions. This is also to help close the gap between perceptions of crime and 
actual levels of crime in the borough. 

 
Whilst we will continue to address all issues of crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour, the identified 
priorities and areas of focus are those areas which contribute to the greatest social and economic 
costs to victims and services and/or contribute to the greatest level of harm to Havering residents. 
 
Havering will continue to undergo regeneration and growth, and any future developments will consider 
designing out crime principles and the actions contained within the Community Safety Plan. 
 

Vision 
 
We will continue to reduce risk and harm to local communities and maintain Havering’s position as 
one of the safest boroughs in London. The community safety partnership will make the most efficient 
use of scarce resources through partnership working, sharing knowledge of what works, replicating 
good practice and being data driven and intelligence led in our approach with a managed and 
accountable delivery structure.  
 

Aims and objectives 

 

The aim of the Havering Community Safety Partnership is to reduce crime, disorder, anti-social 
behaviour and other behaviour negatively affecting the local environment, as well as reducing the 
misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances, reducing the fear of crime and increasing public 
confidence in our service. 

The key actions and performance measures which will ensure the Havering Community Safety 
Partnership achieves its aims and objectives are included at the end of this document. 
 
Timescales  
 
The Partnership Plan is a three-year plan which is refreshed annually as part of the Strategic 
Assessment process. We are now in the second year of this plan, which is due to end by March 2020. 
  
Related documents 
 
The work of the community safety partnership is closely linked with a number of other strategies in 
Havering. These links are detailed in the action plan attached at the end of this document; 
furthermore Appendix 2 lists all related strategies and documents relevant to this plan. 

Page 44



11 
 

4. Authorisation and communication 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998, amended by the Police and Justice Act 2006, places a duty on 
responsible authorities to produce a three-yearly (annually renewable) Community Safety Partnership 
Plan. 
 
The partnership plan is authorised to the Havering Community Safety Partnership and a final draft 
requires approval by all representatives of the responsible authorities (see Appendix 4),before it is 
made publicly available on the Havering Data Intelligence Hub. 
 

5. Implementation and monitoring 
 
The strategic themes will be implemented and monitored through the existing Havering Community 
Safety Partnership structure and delivery model. Each sub-group and operational group of the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership will retain a strong link to the strategic themes and will use 
the strategic assessment and associated crime problem profiles to develop specific action plans and 
performance monitoring frameworks. 

 
Governance and delivery 

 
The Havering Community Safety Partnership Board oversees the wider delivery and implementation. 
This group also is responsible for long term strategic work. The second tier of the HCSP structure 
contains the priority delivery groups and the third tier contains the operational sub-groups, as outlined 
below – these are all accountable to the Havering Community Safety Partnership Board. 
 

Havering Community Partnership Board
 

Protecting vulnerable 
individuals / victims 

Supporting the most prolific 
and/or high harm offenders 

Creating safer locations Community engagement and 
public confidence 

Violence Against Women & 
Girls Strategic Group 

Reducing Reoffending Board Business Group (Safe & 
Sound Day & Night Time 
Economy) 

Safer Neighbourhood Board 

Domestic Violence Multi-
Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference 

Integrated Offender 
Management Panel 

Tasking Enforcement Group   

Multi-Agency Sexual 
Exploitation Group 

Serious Group Violence 
Panel 

Strategic Enforcement 
Board 

 

Anti-Social Behaviour and 
Community MARAC Panel 

Drug Intervention Project 
Panel 

Fire Safety Working Group 
(New as of April 2018) 

 

Domestic Violence 
Perpetrators panel  (To be 
commenced after April 2018) 

   

 
See Appendix 6 for the HCSP structure chart, revised to incorporate the Fire Safety Working Group, 
and Domestic Violence Perpetrator Panel. 

 
Action plan and performance measures 
 
An Action Plan and performance indicators are included at the end of this strategy document. 
  

Page 45



12 
 

6. Evaluation and review 
 
The next evaluation of the partnership plan will commence in Quarter 4 2018-19 as part of the wider 
Strategic Assessment process for Community Safety.  
 
This is the second year of a new rolling strategy and our performance targets from the Mayor’s Office 
for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) are set out following the Action Plan at the end of this document. 
The performance targets include those set out in the Police and Crime Plan for London, and the key 
local outcomes which are linked to MOPAC crime prevention fund spend. 
 

7. Further information 
 

Please contact Diane Egan, Community Safety and Development Manager on 01708 432927 or by 
email at diane.egan@havering.gov.uk  . 

  

Page 46



13 
 

Appendix 1: Equality Analysis 
 

EIA 2018v1.docx

 
Appendix 2: Related Documents 
 
Local Documents 
 

 Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategies 

o Reducing Reoffending Strategy 2016-2020 

o Serious Group Violence Strategy 2017-21  

o Violence Against Women & Girls Strategy 2014-2017 (2018 Strategy to be released 

once the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime has set direction through its pan-

London VAWG strategy ) 

 Havering Corporate Vision  

 Havering Drug and Alcohol Strategy 2016-2019 

 Havering Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

 Havering Local Safeguarding Children Board Business Plan 2015-2018 

 Havering Strategic Assessment of Crime, Disorder and Anti-Social Behaviour 2016 

 Havering Strategic Assessment of Crime, Disorder and Anti-Social Behaviour 2017 

 Havering Strategic Problem Profiles (Restricted Documents) 

o Adult and Youth Offender Profiles 2015 

o Anti-Social Behaviour Strategic Problem Profile 2014 

o Burglary Strategic Problem Profile 2014, 2015,2016 

o Child Sexual Exploitation Strategic Problem Profile 2017 

o Non-Domestic Violence with Injury Problem Profile 2018 

o Serious Group Violence Strategic Problem Profile 2016 

o Violence Against Women & Girls Strategic Problem Profile 2016 

 Safer Havering communications plan 

 
National and Pan-London Documents 
 

 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: Reform of anti-social behaviour powers 
 Code of Practice for Victims of Crime 
 Mayoral Strategy on Violence against Women & Girls 2018-2021 – see HM Government 

national strategy on Ending Violence against Women and Girls 2016-2020 
 Home Office hate crime action plan 2016-2020 
 MOPAC Police and Crime Plan 2017-2021 
 MOPAC Safer Neighbourhood Boards Guidance 
 MOPAC London Knife Crime Strategy 
 HM Government national strategy on Ending Gang Violence and Exploitation 

Page 47



14 
 

 Modern Crime Prevention Strategy, Home Office Policy Paper 2016 
 National Crime Agency Strategic Assessment of Serious and Organised Crime 2017 
 Transforming rehabilitation reforms – reducing reoffending and improving rehabilitation 

(Statutory Partnerships and Responsibilities) 

 
Appendix 3: Data Sources 
 
Sources of data considered in the preparation of the Strategic Assessment document 

 

- British Crime Survey and supplementary tables  

- British Retail Consortium, Business Crime Survey 

- British Transport Police crime and incident raw data  

- Cambridge Crime Harm Index / Office for National Statistics Crime Harm Index 

- Crime Survey for England and Wales and supplementary tables  

- Drug Intervention Project crime and drug test outcome raw data 

- Female Genital Mutilation Experimental Dataset 

- Havering Joint Strategic Needs Assessment chapters  

- Home Office Social and Economic Costs of Crime, revised estimates 2011 

- Hospital Episode Statistics 

- Iquanta Police Performance Data 

- London Ambulance Service incident raw data 

- London Fire Brigade incident raw data 

- London Probation Assessments data 

- Metropolitan Police Computer Aided Despatch raw data (also known as Metcall or DARIS data) 

- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS data – raw crime data) 

- Metropolitan Police Performance Information Bureau (official data for ward/borough level) 

- Metropolitan Police Public Attitude Survey 

- Ministry of Justice proven reoffending data 

- MOSAIC Lifestyle Data, London Borough of Havering set 2011 

- National Crime Agency Human Trafficking Data 

- Transport for London crime and incident raw data 

- Youth Justice Statistics  

Page 48



15 
 

Appendix 4: Membership of the Havering Community Safety 
Partnership 
 
Responsible Authorities (those required to be involved by statute) 

 

- London Borough of Havering (including Public Health) 

- Clinical Commissioning Group 

- Metropolitan Police 

- London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 

- National Probation Service and Community Rehabilitation Company 

 

Other Organisations 

 

- Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Trust 

- Greater London Authority Member 

- Havering Chamber of Commerce 

- Havering Crown Court 

- Havering Magistrates Court 

- Havering Victim Support 

- Havering Women’s Aid 

- Job Centre Plus 

- Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) 

- North East London Foundation Trust 

- Safer Neighbourhood Board  

- Single Homeless Project 

- WDP 

- Youth Offending Service 

 
Appendix 5: Actions plans linked to the HCSP Partnership Plan 
 
New strategic action plans to be embedded here on completion (Serious Group Violence, Violence 
against Women & Girls). 

Reducing 
Reoffending Action 

SGV and Knife Crime 
Strategy - Final for HC

NAF Action Plan 
February 2018.docx  

Page 49



16 
 

Appendix 6: Governance and structure of the Havering Community Safety Partnership 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Action plan 
 
 
 

Violence against Women & Girls (VAWG) 
Strategic Group 

* Quarterly meetings 
* To set out a co-ordinated approach to violence 
against women and girls (including domestic and 
sexual violence) 

Integrated 
Offender 

Management 
Panel 

* Monthly 
meetings 
* Managing 
the highest 
impact and 
most prolific 
offenders 
 

Serious 
Group 

Violence 
Panel 

 
* Monthly 
meetings 
* Working 
with young 
people 
involved in 
serious crime 

Drug 
Intervention 

Project Panel 
 

* Monthly 
meetings 
* Working 
with offenders 
with complex 
drug and 
alcohol 
problems 

Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference 
 

* Monthly meetings 
* Risk manages cases of VAWG 

Anti-Social Behaviour Panel and Community 
MARAC 

 
* Monthly meetings 
* Risk manages serious or repeat cases of anti-

social behaviour and community trigger cases 

Tasking process  
 

* Bi-monthly tasking enforcement group 
* Bi-monthly strategic enforcement board 

Business Group 
 

* Quarterly strategic group 
* Focussed work around business and town 
centre crime in day and night time economy 
* Oversees 6-weekly operational groups for 
Romford and Hornchurch day and night time 
economy and borough wide business group 

Havering Community Safety Partnership (HCSP) 
* Quarterly meetings 
* Provide vision and strategic leadership, to improve the quality of 
life for existing and future residents, and visitors to, Havering. The 
HCSP brings together public, private, community and voluntary 
sectors, working in partnership to improve community safety and 
contribute to achieving the strategic objectives of Havering’s 
Corporate Plan.  

Executive Board 
* Quarterly meetings 
* Provides direction for the HCSP 

Reducing Reoffending Board 
* Quarterly meetings 
* Oversees the operational groups in delivery of 
offender based work and managing offenders 
within the community. 
 

Safer Neighbourhood Board 
* Quarterly meetings 
* Community engagement and confidence 

Report 
directly to 
the HCSP 

Fire Safety Group 
 

* Quarterly tactical group to look at locations of 
deliberate fires and options for tackling these 

Domestic Abuse Perpetrator Panel 
 

* Monthly meetings 
* Identifies repeat or significant perpetrators of 

domestic abuse  and considers actions to 
disrupt  their capacity to offend. 

P
age 50



17 
 

Action Plan 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

1. Violence 
against 
women and 
girls 
 
 

A. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; 
supporting the 
most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders;  
creating safer 
locations; 
community 
engagement 
and public 
confidence 

Refresh the violence against women and 
girls strategy and action plan. 
 
1) Carry over outstanding actions from 
previous strategy to new action plan. 
 
2) Refresh problem profile and/or needs 
assessment for violence against women and 
girls. 
 
3) Continue to co-ordinate and monitor the 
delivery of aforementioned work as part of 
the Violence against Women and Girls 
Strategic Group, with delivery accountability 
and oversight from the Havering Community 
Safety Partnership. 

Prevention and early 
identification. 
 
Provision of intervention and 
support services for victims 
and perpetrators. 
 
Protect victims. 
 
Pursue enforcement action 
against perpetrators. 
 
 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development : VAWG 
officer leads on behalf 
of HCSP 
 
Community Safety 
Analyst  
 
MPS Safeguarding 
Superintendent 
 
Resources: 
VAWG Co-ordinator 
to lead on work 
stream. 
 
Analytical resource to 
conduct strategic 
research and analysis 
to inform the strategic 
group, and provide 
the performance 
management function 

October 
2018 

MOPAC were originally due to 
release their VAWG strategy in 
October 2017. This was delayed 
until March 2018 (shortly before 
the Havering CSP Plan was 
refreshed). 
MOPAC’s VAWG Strategy will set 
direction for VAWG work across 
London, and for the pan-London 
services we work with such as 
police; therefore the HCSP agreed 
to delay the revision of the 
Havering VAWG strategy until 
after the release of MOPAC’s 
VAWG Strategy, in order to 
ensure that our local objectives 
are consistent with the Mayor’s, 
and partners’; and that we can 
work collaboratively on projects if 
opportunities arise. Now that 
MOPAC’s Strategy has been 
released, our local plan will be 
updated, and final sign-off of our 
local strategy will be October 
2018. 
 
We have established the VAWG 
strategy group locally to ensure 
oversight and co-ordination of 
work in Havering.  

B. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims 

Commission support for victims of domestic 
abuse / violence against women and girls. 
 
1) Drop-in advocacy service. 

Victims and children have 
access to a wider variety of 
support services. 
 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development : VAWG 
officer 

Project end 
March 
2019 

This is an ongoing service that is 
being delivered by Havering 
Women’s Aid and Victim Support.  
The local authority funds an IDVA, 

                                                 
4 Whilst the work of each strand is predominantly being co-ordinated by the Community Safety & Development Team, on behalf of the Havering Community Safety Partnership; responsible 
organisations for each focus area include each of the statutory bodies (Metropolitan Police, National Probation Service and CRC, Clinical Commissioning Group, London Fire and Rescue Service, 
London Borough of Havering), voluntary and third sector organisations (i.e. Victim Support, Havering Women’s Aid), registered social landlords, drug and alcohol services. 

P
age 51



18 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

 
2) Independent Domestic Violence Advisor 
(IDVA) to support high risk cases of domestic 
abuse. 
3) Seek opportunities for a tri-borough group. 
4) Explore use of perpetrator programmes 
and a perpetrator panel to consider greater 
opportunities to disrupt persistent and 
harmful perpetrators of abuse. 
5) Continue to support the male domestic 
abuse support scheme (MENDAS). 
6) Review impact of Homelessness 
Reduction Act on victims of domestic abuse 
locally. 
7) Development of a modern day slavery 
working group. 
 

Services will reduce the 
inequalities associated with 
VAWG. 
 
Early intervention and 
support to reduce escalating 
risk. 

MPS Safeguarding 
Superintendent 
 
Havering Women’s 
Aid 
 
Resources: 
£60,000 (per annum) 
London Crime 
Prevention Fund 
(£30k advocacy and 
support, £30k IDVA). 
 
 

based in Havering Magistrates 
Court (Core IDVA)  and three are  
provided as part of the MOPAC 
Pan London IDVA  Service  
Funding for the core IDVA is in 
place until March 2019. MOPAC 
are yet to confirm the continuation 
of the Pan London IDVA service 
beyond July 2018. 
There is consensus amongst local 
DA professionals that 
programmes should exist which 
help perpetrators who wish to 
address their violent behaviour; 
and for those who don’t wish to 
take responsibility for abusive 
behaviour we should explore 
options for joined-up approaches 
to proactive disruption. 
The Homelessness Reduction Act 
will place a greater duty on Local 
Authorities to assess those 
presenting as homeless, which 
could lead to a greater number of 
applications for housing support 
from people who would not have 
been eligible before. We must 
ensure that those fleeing support 
from abusers are recognised and 
given appropriate assistance in 
finding safe accommodation. 
Modern day slavery is a crime 
which is generally linked to 
organised crime, and hidden from 
public view. Co-ordinated work 
with partners such as police, UK 
Border Force, and the 
Gangmasters and Labour Abuse 
Authority will aim to address 
issues encountered in Havering. 

P
age 52



19 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

2. Serious 
group 
violence, 
gangs and 
exploitation 
 
. 

A. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; 
supporting the 
most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders;  
creating safer 
locations; 
community 
engagement 
and public 
confidence 

 
1) Launch the Havering Serious Group 
Violence strategy and Action Plan, and 
implement actions. 
 
2) Continue to co-ordinate and monitor the 
delivery of this work as part of the Reducing 
Reoffending Board, with delivery 
accountability and oversight from the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership. 
 
3) Work with London Heads of Community 
Safety to implement actions in relation to the 
MOPAC co-commissioned pan London 
service to support victims of county lines. 

Prevention and early 
identification. 
 
Provision of intervention and 
support services for victims 
and perpetrators. 
 
Protect vulnerable young 
people. 
 
Pursue enforcement action 
against perpetrators. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Integrated Offender 
Management 
caseworker 
Community Safety 
Analyst 
MPS Investigations 
Superintendent 
 
Resources: 
Integrated Offender 
Management 
caseworker to lead on 
work stream 
 
Analytical resource to 
conduct strategic 
research and analysis 
to inform strategy and 
action plan. 

Ongoing The new strategy ensures we are 
compliant with policy from central 
Government, and takes into 
account the changes in resources 
and local landscape since the last 
strategy was written.  

B. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; 
supporting the 
most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders 

Co-ordinate the work of the serious group 
violence panel. 
 
1) Ensure production, administration and 
organisation of case work is readily 
accessible well in advance of meetings. 
 
2) Ensure dedicated action plans are 
available and updated monthly for cohort 
clients brought to panel. 
 
3) Ensure the entire cohort is fully 
researched between meetings, and ongoing 
review of cohort list. 
 
4) Ensure that there is co-ordination of work 
with the Child Sexual Exploitation and 
Missing work, including provision of strategic 

Vulnerable young people are 
identified and referred 
appropriately for timely 
intervention. 
 
Perpetrators are provided 
multi-agency support, 
tailored to their specific 
needs, to provide 
opportunities to change. 
 
Perpetrators who are not 
engaging or compliant are 
pursued for judicial 
restrictions and custody as 
last resort. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: Gang 
violence and 
exploitation research 
analyst leads multi-
agency panel 
 
MPS Investigations 
Superintendent 
 
Resources: 
Analytical and 
research resource to 
prepare intelligence 
products, monitor 
progress and ensure 
effectiveness; be 

Review 
March 
2019 

The Community Safety Team has 
taken a firm hold on re-
establishing the Serious Group 
Violence Panel since the 
reintroduction back in August 
2017.  All aspects of the work 
around SGV are being looked 
into, from information gathering, to 
secure information distribution, 
through to the chairing of the 
panel.  Regular weekly meetings 
take place between the SGV Lead 
and the Gangs & CSE Analyst, 
however there are daily 
intelligence catch ups in order to 
make sure any necessary 
information or changes are known 
in advance and dealt with as soon 

P
age 53



20 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

analysis and research (updating CSE and 
Missing Problem Profile to support 
safeguarding children board and CSE team) 
 
5) Further develop use of mapping software 
to assist with understanding criminal 
networks operating in Havering. 

overall single point of 
contact. 
 
£38,502 (per annum) 
London Crime 
Prevention Fund, for 
analytical and 
research support 
 
 

as possible.  All of this together 
allows for a smooth running of the 
SGV Panel. 
Information for the SGV is now 
gathered from the Police systems, 
YOS updates, MASH information, 
Children & Adult Social Care and 
the Gangs mentoring service.. 
The work of SGV regularly 
overlaps with that of missing 
people and child sexual 
exploitation. There is regular 
information sharing between the 
CSE Coordinator and Community 
Safety in order to make sure that 
any possible joint working can be 
explored, along with using the 
SGV panel as a platform to bring 
the most vulnerable Missing and 
CSE nominals to the partnership’s 
attention. To assist in joint 
working, Community Safety 
recently completed the CSE 
Problem Profile; findings from 
which will further aid preventative 
work and help target resources to 
protecting the borough’s most 
vulnerable. 

C. Supporting 
the most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders 

Commission support for those involved 
and/or at risk of involvement in serious 
violence and offending relevant to the work 
of the serious group violence panel. 
 
1) Mentoring and outreach service to be 
commissioned to address criminogenic 
needs of clients and reduce reoffending, risk 
and vulnerability 
 
2) Young people’s victim worker to improve 
support for young victims and provide 

Reduced levels of risk and 
vulnerability. 
 
Prevent escalation to 
statutory interventions. 
 
Improve access to and 
engagement with services. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Integrated Offender 
Management 
caseworker  
 
Resources: 
£65,000 (per annum) 
London Crime 
Prevention Fund, 
credible peer to peer 

Project end 
March 
2019 

The mentoring contract went out 
for retender in June 2017, and the 
contract was won by Spark2Life 
(S2L). S2L are based within the 
YOS and they are linking in with 
the SGV, Youth Offending Service 
and Early Help.  The service is 
managed on a day-to-day basis 
by the YOS, while Community 
Safety will be responsible for 
monitoring the contract quarterly.  
2) Young People’s Victim worker 

P
age 54



21 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

restorative justice work. mentoring (£45k) and 
victim worker (£20k) 

is in place, with the worker also 
managed through the YOS. 

3. Hate 
crime and 
preventing 
extremism 

A. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; 
supporting the 
most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders;  
creating safer 
locations; 
community 
engagement 
and public 
confidence 

Safeguard and prevent those identified as at 
risk of extremism; provide a co-ordinated 
approach to preventing hate crime, support 
and supporting victims. 
 
1) Take responsibility for the Channel Panel 
process locally. 
 
2) Delivery of the prevent action plan (not 
included in Appendix 5 due to sensitive and 
confidential nature of work, separate action 
plan in place). 
 
3) Development and delivery of hate crime 
strategic action plan for Havering; aligning 
with national and regional action plan to be 
delivered at local level (Home Office Hate 
Crime Action Plan and MOPAC Police and 
Crime Plan) 

Prevent hate crime and 
extremism through 
identification and early 
referral. 
 
Improved support and 
access to services. 
 
Encourage more victims of 
hate crime to come forward 
and report. 
 
Build understanding of hate 
and extremism locally. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: Hate 
Crime and Prevent 
Co-ordinator leads on 
behalf of HCSP 
 
MPS Safeguarding 
Superintendent 
 
Resources: 
£50,000 (per annum) 
London Crime 
Prevention Fund 
(hate crime and 
prevent co-ordinator 
role) 
 
 

Review 
March 
2019 

As part of the Prevent Action Plan 
we have undertaken face-to-face 
training with over 300 members of 
staff since September 2017. 
 
In order to adapt to the developing 
needs of Prevent delivery in the 
borough, a guide to far right 
organisations in the UK and far 
right symbolism has been 
compiled, and is being discussed 
with key stakeholders prior to 
wider circulation. 
 
Work is being carried out to 
engage communities, such as the 
Youth Council; and hate-crime 
input is provided during the Junior 
Citizens scheme. Work is also 
taking place between the tri-
boroughs to increase the level of 
support offered to victims of Hate 
Crime. 
 

4. 
Reoffending 
 
NB: 
Detailed 
action plan 
addressing 
this focus 
area to be 
provided as 
part of 
specific 
strategy. To 
be added to 

A. Supporting 
the most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders 

Deliver the Reducing Reoffending Strategy 
for Havering. 
 
1) Fulfil intelligence development 
requirements of the adult offender profile. 
 
2) Co-ordinate and monitor the delivery of 
this work as part of the Reducing 
Reoffending Board, with delivery 
accountability and oversight from the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership. 
 
3) Seek opportunities to develop a tri-
borough strategy group 

Reduced levels of 
reoffending. 
 
Increased number of 
offenders in employment and 
training and improved 
employability of offenders. 
 
Improved ability to fund 
lifestyle through legitimate 
income. 
 
Tougher monitoring and 
policing of offenders who 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Integrated Offender 
Management 
caseworker leads on 
behalf of HCSP 
 
MPS Safeguarding 
Superintendent 
 
Resources: 
Integrated Offender 
Management 

Review 
March 
2020 

The Reducing Reoffending Group 
runs quarterly.  Discussions have 
taken place over a tri-borough 
group in order to reduce the 
number of meetings key 
stakeholders have to attend.  
 
 

P
age 55



22 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

Appendix 5 
of this 
document 
on 
completion. 

don’t engage. caseworker to lead on 
work stream 
 
Analytical resource to 
conduct strategic 
research and analysis 
to inform strategy and 
action plan, and 
devise the 
performance outcome 
framework. 
 

B. Supporting 
the most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders 

Address the prevalence of drug and alcohol 
related offending in Havering. 
 
1) Lead on the Drug Intervention Panel (DIP) 
and associated work streams (test on arrest, 
conditional cautioning and restrictions on 
bail, drug rehabilitation requirements and 
alcohol treatment referrals). 
 
2) Supporting offenders with drug and 
alcohol issues 
 
3) Strengthen the integrated approach to 
working with Serious Group Violence and 
VAWG work. 
 

Improved knowledge and 
awareness of the 
consequences of drug and 
alcohol misuse. 
 
Improved confidence from 
partners referring in to 
commissioned drugs and 
alcohol treatment services. 
 
Improved take up of health 
services. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Substance Misuse 
worker leads on 
behalf of HCSP and 
Health and Wellbeing 
Boards 
 
MPS Safeguarding 
Superintendent 
 
Resources: 
£50,000 (per annum) 
London Crime 
Prevention Fund 
(substance misuse 
worker) 
 
Analytical resource to 
conduct strategic 
research and analysis 
to inform strategy and 
action plan, and 
devise the  
performance outcome 
framework  
 

Review 
March 
2019 

To improve support for offenders 
with substance issues, individuals 
who are on IOM will be given an 
appointment with the local 
substance misuse support service 
in 48hours. 
 
Violence Against Women and 
Girls has not yet been looked into 
as a dedicated topic for the group, 
however is being addressed 
through looking at Child Sexual 
Exploitation, and will also be 
addressed by those who are on a 
YOS order/Licence through 
restorative justice work.  Where 
the group becomes aware of DA 
issues, the individual would be 
directly referred into the DV 
MARAC, where DA specialist 
services can provide additional 
support. 
 
The RRG is currently exploring 
the commissioning of a Charity 
Called Street Doctors, this 
organisation trains young people 
in emergency first aid specifically 

P
age 56



23 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

CRC data, Public 
Health England, 
Metropolitan Police 
Service, National 
Probation Service, 
and local drug and 
alcohol service 
(WDP).           

around stab wounds from knives, 
therefore linking with aims to 
reduce youth violence. 

5. Burglary A. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; creating 
safer locations; 
community 
engagement 
and public 
confidence 

Delivery of Safe Zones in identified 
residential burglary hotspots. 
 
1) Targeted within streets that have suffered 
enduringly high levels of burglary over a 
prolonged period of time. 
 
2) Refresh burglary problem profile 
 
3) Support development of a tri-borough 
burglary reduction group (and other 
acquisitive crimes). 

Increase awareness in high 
risk areas. 
 
Target-harden vulnerable 
properties. 
 
Reduce risk of victimisation / 
repeat victimisation. 

MPS Investigations 
Superintendent 
 
LBH Community 
Safety and 
Development: 
Community 
Development Team 
 
Resources: 
Cost of crime 
prevention materials. 
 
Analytical resource to 
identify suitable 
locations and 
evaluate 
effectiveness. 

Review 
March 
2019 

Analysis of burglaries in 2017-18 
shows that six areas which had 
been identified in 2016-17 as 
suffering from burglaries and 
worthy of Safe Zone crime 
reduction work, were no longer 
experiencing a significant level of 
burglaries in 2017-18. Local data 
shows that houses 100-150m 
from the scene of a burglary have 
a 32% greater risk of being 
burgled within the month after the 
original break-in, therefore 
improving security of areas which 
have suffered burglaries is vital in 
creating safer places. 

B. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; creating 
safer locations; 
community 
engagement 
and public 
confidence 

Implementation and development of 
Neighbourhood Watch areas, along with 
Street Watch, and new Allotment Watch 
schemes. 
 
1) Continue to increase the number of NHW 
areas in Havering. 
 
2) Update contacts list for all schemes, and 
list of all streets with schemes for analyst. 
 
3) Review how NHW works, and look to 
devise a standard operating procedure. 
 

Increase awareness in high 
risk areas. 
 
Reduce risk of victimisation / 
repeat victimisation / near 
repeat victimisation. 
 
Residents understand that 
risk can be reduced by 
increasing occupancy 
indicators, improving 
visibility, controlling side and 
rear access. 
 

Metropolitan Police 
Partnerships 
Superintendent, 
Community Safety & 
Development  
 
Resources: 
Analytical resource to 
maintain database 
and assess impact. 

Review 
March 
2019 

Over 750 Neighbourhood Watch 
schemes exist for the borough. 
NHW can assist with putting 
measures in place to prevent 
victimisation of properties near to 
those which have suffered 
burglaries, and can also improve 
neighbourhood cohesion, and give 
residents confidence to pass 
information back to police. 

P
age 57



24 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

4) Look at how we can support NHW areas 
in terms of providing useful and relevant 
information throughout the year. 

Residents aware of 
affordable devices such as 
light timer switches, window 
alarms, locks and bolts. 
 
Residents aware that risk 
significantly reduced with 
monitored alarm and CCTV. 
 
Reduction in overall burglary. 

C. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; 
community 
engagement 
and public 
confidence 

Communicate burglary prevention and 
awareness messages to residents. 
 
1) Varied communication methods to reach a 
wide segment of the population (Twitter, 
Newsletter, Press, Living, Recorder, Street 
Life, Websites). 
 
2) Messages designed to empower victims 
and raise understanding of risk factors they 
can address. 
 
3) Explore possibility of developing 
community safety pages on LB Havering 
website. 
 
4) Targeted seasonal campaigns (summer 
holidays, winter ‘light up’) 

Residents understand that 
risk can be reduced by 
increasing occupancy 
indicators, improving 
visibility, controlling side and 
rear access. 
 
Residents aware of 
affordable devices such as 
light timer switches, window 
alarms, locks and bolts. 
 
Residents aware that risk 
significantly reduced with 
monitored alarm and CCTV. 
 
Reduction in overall burglary. 

Community Safety & 
Development, 
Communications 
Team  
 
Resources: 
External 
communication 
method costs. 

Ongoing, 
seasonal 

JC Decaux board campaign has 
been utilised throughout the 
summer and Winter to facilitate 
these outcomes. 
 
The poster used for this have 
been reduced to A5 size and will 
be used for Safe Zones 
information packs 

D. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims 

Super-cocooning to be carried out following 
residential burglary offences. 
 
1) Officers to visit neighbours up to 10 doors 
either side of burglary victims to raise 
awareness of potential risk. 

Reduction in near repeat 
victimisation. 
 
Reduction in overall burglary. 

Metropolitan Police 
Partnerships 
Superintendent  
 
Resources: 
Officer time 

Review 
March 
2019 

As in 5A, this could be vital in 
preventing further victims of 
burglary, and is carried out by 
response team officers reporting a 
burglary, or by neighbourhood 
officers conducting reassurance 
patrols in following days. 

E. Supporting 
the most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders 

Ensure regular review of active burglars in 
Havering, and opportunities for their 
inclusion on IOM cohort are pursued 

Increase risk to offenders. 
 
Reduce reoffending. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Integrated Offender 
Management 

Ongoing Active repeat burglars who are 
caught, convicted and re-released 
back into the community are 
regularly monitored and added 
onto the IOM List. 

P
age 58



25 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

caseworker leads on 
behalf of HCSP 
 
Resources: 
Staff time 
 
Analytical and 
research resource to 
monitor and identify 
suitable offenders  

Contact has been made by the 
IOM Lead with the Met Police 
Intelligence Team to ensure that 
their identified prolific burglars are 
scored for referral into IOM. 
We have further been exploring 
the identification of burglars 
hidden within the MAPPA cohort. 
This is an ongoing piece of work. 
The NPS are currently undergoing 
a data clean-up in order for this to 
be explored further 

6. Violence 
with Injury 

A. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; creating 
safer locations 

Provide safeguards to vulnerable and/or 
intoxicated people within the night time 
economy. 
 
1) Continued use of town link radio, ensure 
all required persons are joined up / kept up 
to date. 
 
2) Provision of Deeper Lounge safe haven. 
 
3) Provision of Street Triage within Fiction 
night club. 
 
4) Provision of the Taxi Marshal Scheme in 
Romford Town Centre. 
 
5) Refresh Non-Domestic Violence With 
Injury problem profile. 

Protect 
Individuals/vulnerable people 
from harm. 
 
Reduce ambulance related 
call-outs. 
 
Reduce alcohol related 
violence. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Community Safety  
Partnerships Officer  
 
Resources: 
£40,000 (per annum) 
London Crime 
Prevention Fund 
(Street Triage). 
 
Costs associated with 
maintenance of radio-
link. 
 
Analytical resource to 
monitor outturns and 
evaluate project 
effectiveness. 

March 
2019 

The Town Link radio continues to 
work well in Romford and 
Hornchurch, with Upminster due 
to come online next 
 
The Deeper Lounge operates 
from South Street for two Fridays 
each month, and offers a safe 
place for those in need of respite 
during night time economy hours 
 
Street Triage: This continues to 
operate out of Fiction and Cameo 
nightclub. The contract went out to 
tender in early 2018, however the 
scheme assessed over 80 people 
in need of assistance in 2016/17, 
and 45 in the first six months of 
2017/18; all of which relieves 
pressure on the London 
Ambulance Service and enables 
resources to remain free for 
genuine emergencies. 
 
Taxi Marshal Scheme: The 
scheme runs on a Friday and 
Saturday night. Funding has been 
secured from the LIP scheme. 

P
age 59



26 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

The marshals have been tasked 
with greater interaction with the 
public and will be utilised more 
effectively in dispersing the town 
centre at night. 
 

B. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; creating 
safer locations 

Reduce the risk of injury from glass / bottles. 
 
1) Continue to ensure licence conditions on 
late premises (including new venues) require 
use of polycarbonate glasses. 
 
2) Continue to ensure licence conditions on 
late premises restrict waste removal of 
glass/bottles outside between hours of 
11pm-7am. 
 
3) Street pastors and other frontline services 
to ensure bottles/glass brought into town and 
discarded are removed from the street. 

Protect 
individuals/vulnerable people 
from harm. 
 
Reduce ambulance related 
call-outs. 
 
Reduce alcohol related 
violence. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Community Safety  
Partnerships Officer 
 
Metropolitan Police 
Partnership 
Superintendent 
(licensing),  
Local Authority 
(licensing  
 
Resources: 
Staff time 

April 2019 The Public Spaces Protection 
Order has been in place since 
November 2017 and replaces the 
Designated Drinking area (under 
previous legislation). The PSPO   
covers a wider area ( including the 
Queens Hospital site ) and 
includes two conditions to help us 
tackle disorder.  
Not to consume alcohol within the 
Alcohol Control Area (save on 
licensed premises); and 
Not to be in possession of an 
open container of alcohol within 
the Alcohol Control Area (save on 
licensed premises).   
 
The Street Pastors continue to 
dispose of glass vessels as and 
when they find them, in addition to 
their primary role of assisting 
members of the public. 

C. Supporting 
the most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders 

Remove potential offenders early to reduce 
risk of violence. 
 
1) Continue to use the Barred from one, 
Barred from all initiative to impose bans on 
potential offenders / those who commit 
violent crime in the NTE and Day Time 
Economy. 
 
2) Ensure door supervisors and CCTV are 
briefed on banned persons regularly. 

Increase risk to offenders. 
 
Protect potential victims and 
vulnerable individuals.  
 
Reduce alcohol related 
violence. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
 
Resources: 
Time commitment for 
Safe & Sound 
banning meetings. 

Review 
March 
2019 

The sharing of information 
between public services and local 
businesses in order to tackle 
crime and disorder can have huge 
benefits, however must be done 
with clearly defined procedures in 
place, and safeguards against 
misuse of data or images. 
At present the information sharing 
agreement with licensees is under 
review so that we can make use 
of new technology, and include 

P
age 60



27 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

pubwatch online, netscan and 
facewatch in the data shared. 
 
Briefings to door supervisors have 
recommenced, providing up-to-
date information from police and 
the local authority. 

D. Supporting 
the most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders, 
creating safer 
locations 

Increase risk of apprehension to deter 
potential offenders. 
 
1) Utilise town link radio system. 
 
2) CCTV and door supervisor briefings on 
banned individuals. 
 
3) NTE shifts to be equipped with body warn 
cameras where possible. 
 
4) Encourage take up of ScanNet/ClubScan 
on entry. 

Increase risk to offenders. 
 
Protect potential victims and 
vulnerable individuals.  
 
Reduce alcohol related 
violence. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development; 
 
Metropolitan Police 
Partnership 
Superintendent 
(licensing), 
 
Local Authority 
Licensing 
 
Resources: 
Staff time 

Review 
March 
2019 

From 2012 licensing applications 
and/or reviews of on-license 
premises (nightclubs) in Havering 
have included mandatory use of 
ScanNet/ClubScan ID scanning 
systems. This has been extended 
to bars/pubs, and prevents entry 
without a valid photo ID between 
9pm and close. This has meant 
that we have seen a significant 
drop in young people using fake 
ID cards to get into premises, 
however recent months has seen 
that some fake ID cards are 
getting through the ID scanner, 
hence the need for licensees to be 
extra vigilant. Scanning of ID 
allows identification of suspects by 
tracking their movement on CCTV 
footage to the last premises they 
were in, which will have an image 
of their passport or driving licence. 
From these details, police can 
then carry out any arrests (or 
witness enquiries) as appropriate. 

E. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; creating 
safer locations 

Creating safer spaces within the night time 
economy. 
 
1) Ensuring that door supervisors are 
controlling access points, screening exits 
and managing space outside venues. 
 
2) Maintain late opening refreshments to 

Increase risk to offenders. 
 
Protect potential victims and 
vulnerable individuals.  
 
Reduce alcohol related 
violence. 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development; 
 
Metropolitan Police 
Partnership 
Superintendent 
(licensing), 

Ongoing Romford has successfully been 
chosen as one of three locations 
in the country to work with The 
Portman Group on further 
developing Safe zones within the 
night time economy. Initial 
discussions will take place at the 
end of January.  

P
age 61



28 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

provide a safe space for those waiting for 
public transport to resume in the early hours. 
 
3) Maintain graduated closing times of 
premises throughout town centres so that 
customers are dispersed gradually in a 
managed way. 
 
4) Continue to develop work around Safe 
Havens. Havering has been identified as one 
of 3 areas that the Portman Group will be 
working with on developing this. 
 
5) Develop work with Hotel businesses 
around Child Sexual Exploitation. 

 
Local Authority 
Licensing 
 
Resources: 
Staff time 

 
The Community Safety 
Partnerships Officer ensures that 
agreed procedures concerning 
door supervisors and closing 
times are followed, by regularly 
working shifts covering weekend 
night times. These are often as 
part of a multi-agency team with 
colleagues from the police or fire 
brigade; to ensure any breaches 
of law or safety legislation 
concerning licenced premises can 
be acted upon. 

7. Fire 
Safety 

A. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; creating 
safer locations 

1) Establish local Fire Safety Working Group. 
 
2) Develop multi-agency Action Plan. 
 
3) Review LBH Policy on Hoarding. 
 
4) Monitor levels of deliberate fires through 
Tasking Enforcement Group 

Reduce risk to the public and 
property (deliberate fires) 
 
Reduce risk to individuals 
and responders from 
hoarding 
 
See that LFB resources are 
available to deal with 
genuine emergencies, rather 
than malicious or careless 
fires 
 
 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development, 
Metropolitan Police 
Partnership 
Superintendent, 
London Fire Brigade 
Borough Commander  
 
Resources: 
ASB Officer, Tactical 
Analyst, Community 
Safety Analyst 
providing analysis 
and research support 

Ongoing Through the work of the Tactical 
Analyst, the Tasking Enforcement 
Group has identified an issue with 
deliberate or reckless fires across 
the borough. With potential to 
cause harm, this is too significant 
to be dealt with under another 
group, therefore a dedicated 
working party has been set up to 
explore common factors in fires, 
and how partners can take action 
to reduce the number and 
potential impact of these. 

8. Cross-
cutting 

A. Protecting 
vulnerable 
individuals / 
victims; 
supporting the 
most prolific 
and/or high 
harm offenders;  
creating safer 
locations; 

1) Co-ordinate the work of the Anti-Social 
Behaviour Panel and Community Multi-
Agency Risk Assessment Conference. 
 
2) Consider options for developing use of 
Public Spaces Protection Orders to tackle 
various issues impacting on quality-of-life in 
different areas across the borough.  
 
3) Co-ordinate the work of the multi-

Reduce number of repeat 
cases of anti-social 
behaviour. 
 
Respond effectively to hate 
crime and vulnerable adults 
(Community MARAC). 
 
Working with partners to 
reduce levels of local crime 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: ASB 
Officer  
 
LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development: 
Tactical Analyst  
 

Ongoing The ASB MARAC provides a vital 
function in co-ordinating services 
around vulnerable people who 
may otherwise be outside the 
threshold of individual services. 
 
The Romford Town Centre PSPO 
prohibiting alcohol consumption 
and open alcohol containers has 
been a useful tool in controlling 

P
age 62



29 
 

Focus Area 
Strategy 
Objective 

Project/Action Outcomes Lead4 and Resources Timescale Reasons for actions 

community 
engagement 
and public 
confidence 

disciplined Tasking Enforcement Group and 
Strategic Enforcement Board. 
 
4) Co-ordinate the multi-agency business 
group (Safe & Sound). 
 
5) Refresh Safer Havering communications 
plan campaign to address seasonal and 
emerging issues and to submit the night time 
economy for purple flag status.  
 
6) Continue to work with the Home Office on 
their LAAA2 programme around Best 
practice in managing the night time 
economy. 
 
7) Develop Best Bar None and continue to 
seek funding for this.  
 
8) Coordinate monthly nights of actions 
focused on drugs and knives. 
 
9) Consider the implications of the 
Community Safety Plan, and the rationale 
behind all actions during the design and 
approval of future developments. 

using intelligence led and 
problem solving approaches. 
 
Reduction in key local issues 
(burglary, anti-social 
behaviour). 
 
Improve feelings of safety in 
business areas to support 
investment and tourism. 
 
Reduce demand on statutory 
services. 
 
 

LBH Community 
Safety & 
Development 
 
LBH Assistant 
Director of 
Environment 
 
LBH Communications 
 
Resources: 
ASB Officer, Tactical 
Analyst, Community 
Safety Analyst 
providing analytic and 
research support, 
Communications 
Officer 

alcohol related harm. 
Opportunities exist to build on 
learning from this process, and 
introduce PSPOs in other areas to 
tackle locally-significant issues. 
 
The Tasking Enforcement Group 
has developed since its inception 
in autumn 2016 and includes data 
from a variety of council 
departments and partner 
agencies; ensuring the correct 
people are informed enough to 
tackle environmental and anti-
social behaviour issues. 
 
Various issues are faced by 
businesses at different times of 
day, and this means it is beneficial 
to have separate day-time and 
night-time Safe and Sound groups 
for Romford, and Hornchurch; 
while Upminster can manage all 
issues in one meeting. A group 
will soon commence which will 
invite all other night-time-economy 
premises across the borough to 
join, ensuring information on crime 
trends and best-practice on 
improving safety of customers and 
staff is shared. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 63



30 
 

 

Ref. Description 
2016/17
Outturn  

(End-of-year)  

2017/18
Outturn  

(End-of-year) 

2018/19 
 Target 

Link to Corporate 
Vision 

Key Local Outcomes – these targets are linked to London Crime Prevention Fund projects 

Key Local 
Reduce alcohol related ambulance call-outs attended by London Ambulance Service 
between 9pm-4am Friday and Saturday. 

53* Awaiting figure Reduce Communities 

Key Local  Reduce the number of repeat victims of domestic abuse 
1557 repeat victims, 
at an average rate 

of 31% 

1146 repeat 
victims, 

provisional 
average rate 0f 

28% 

Reduce Communities 

Key Local 
Reduce levels of serious violence for the cohort supported through commissioned 
mentoring scheme 

76% of the cohort 
did not offend – with 

this figure 
prompting a  

change in the way 
SGV support is 

provided  

Awaiting figure Reduce Communities 

Key Local Encourage more victims of hate crime to come forward and report 
353 Hate Crime 

incidents 
322 Hate Crime 

incidents 
Increase Communities 

Key Local Reduce reoffending rates of individuals managed through the DIP programme cohort 

14% Reoffending 
rate for alcohol 

treatment clients; 
38% re-offending 

rate for drug 
treatment clients. 

44% Re-offending 
rate for alcohol 

treatment clients; 
14% Re-offending 

rate for drug 
treatment clients. 

Reduce Communities 

*53 attributed to alcohol in Romford Town Centre, however there were 91 calls overall, with the issues and timing meaning that these were likely to be linked to 
alcohol but recorded as a different factor ( such as vomiting, or pain) on the ambulance call system. 

 

P
age 64



Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 
 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan 

Type of activity: 

 
Multi-agency action plan co-ordinated by the Community Safety and 
Development Team 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Diane Egan, Community Safety and Development Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Havering Community Safety Partnership 

 
Date completed: 
 

28th February 2018 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

28th February 2019 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? yes 

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that would 
prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 65



2 
 

1. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 
The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the needs of 
individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its legal obligation 
under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to complete an 
EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any questions, please 
contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 
About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity 
Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan 2017/18 – 
2019-20 (2018/19 Refresh) 

2 Type of activity 

 
Multi-agency action plan co-ordinated by the Community 
Safety and Development Team 
 

3 Scope of activity 

Havering Council’s Community Safety and Development 
Team co-ordinates and leads on the development of 
policies and strategies (on behalf of the Havering 
Community Safety Partnership, from here on HCSP) 
which aim to improve the quality of life for all people in 
Havering. This is achieved by creating a safer 
environment. We aim to deliver efficient, high quality 
services that represent excellent value for money. 
 
Organisation and staffing – we work closely with key 
partners, including the Metropolitan Police, National 
Probation Service and Community Rehabilitation 
Company (CRC), London Fire and Rescue Service, 
Clinical Commissioning Group and Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime (MOPAC), to tackle crime and 
disorder within Havering. Each of these organisations 
have equality and diversity policies in place and are part 
of the HCSP governance. Priority areas of work are 
identified through rigorous needs analyses which are 
agreed annually and discussed with partners. 
 
Services to the community – HCSP is comprised of five 
responsible authorities (LB Havering, Metropolitan Police, 
Probation and CRC, London Fire and Rescue Service 
and the Clinical Commissioning Group) who, by law, are 
required to work together to tackle crime, disorder, 
substance misuse and reoffending. As stated under 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, each of 
these organisations is required to - ‘without prejudice to 
any other obligation imposed upon it – exercise its 
function with due regard to the need to do all it 
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area’. 
The act reinforces that tackling crime should be a 

Page 66



3 
 

partnership matter and organisations should achieve a 
shared strategy, with the local authority required to 
establish the Community Safety Partnership. 
 
The Community Safety Partnership must prepare a joint 
strategic assessment which analyses levels and patterns 
of crime, disorder and substance misuse; changes in the 
levels and patterns of crime, and why these have 
occurred. This is a requirement of The Crime and 
Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy) 
Regulations 2007, amended in 2011. Section 115 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 ensures partners have the 
power to share information relevant to the completion of a 
strategic assessment – power to share information for the 
purpose of reducing crime and disorder, strengthened by 
Schedule 9 (5) of the Police and Justice Act which 
introduced a duty on the aforementioned agencies. This 
duty (section 17A) requires the sharing of depersonalised 
data. 
 
Furthermore, there is a statutory requirement that the 
HCSP produce and implement a strategy for the 
reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including anti-
social behaviour and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment in contravention of laws); and a 
strategy for combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and 
other substances in the area as required by the Police 
and Justice Act 2006. The annual strategic assessment 
guides the partnership as to the priorities, based on 
analysis and information available, and highlights where 
there are gaps in information or service provision which 
may impact adversely on specific locations or 
communities. The strategic assessment is the 
background document which assists the formulation of 
the strategy (partnership plan). 
 
The strategic assessment and partnership plan are then 
used by HCSP to prioritise and allocate resources in 
respect of preventing crime and disorder. The partnership 
provides services which are designed to 1) prevent 
residents and visitors to Havering becoming victims of 
crime or anti-social behaviour, and protect those at risk of 
further victimisation; 2) manage offenders or those at risk 
of becoming involved in crime, and to provide services 
designed to increase the likelihood of desistance from 
crime, and 3) focus on geographical areas which suffer 
disproportionately from higher levels of crime and 
disorder. 
 
The strategic priorities of the HCSP for next three years 
(2017-2020) are as follows: 
 

Page 67



4 
 

 Protecting vulnerable individuals and victims, with 
focus on young people, *violence against women 
and girls, and preventing hate crime and 
extremism 

 Support the most prolific and/or high harm 
offenders, with focus on drug and alcohol needs 
and reoffending levels, and *serious violence 

 Create safer locations, with focus on *town 
centres and *burglary hotspots 

 Community engagement and public confidence, 
with communications aimed at empowering 
residents to protect themselves from victimisation 
and making people feel safe 

 
*Include local police priorities burglary and violence with 
injury, and mandatory targets domestic abuse and sexual 
offences, and weapon enabled crime 

 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? 

Changing - There is an existing Partnership Plan which 
was agreed by HCSP in 2017 and is due to run until 
March 2020. The 2017 Strategic Assessment process 
has not revealed any significant developments which 
suggest that individuals and groups likely to be impacted 
on will remain largely unchanged. There have however 
been certain types of crimes, and policy developments 
nationally which necessitate a refresh to the plan in order 
to acknowledge these developments. 
 
  

4b 
Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

Staff individuals and groups – community safety can 
affect everybody, including members of staff across the 
wider HCSP. Approximately 70% of staff members reside 
within the local community, and the remaining are 
commuting to Havering, therefore all are likely to be 
affected by the proposal to a higher or lesser degree. The 
impact on staff has therefore been considered as part of 
the community sections. 
 
Community individuals and groups (including voluntary 
organisations) – community safety can affect everybody 
including local residents, those working, educated in, or 
visiting the borough, and businesses. The risk and 
potential risk for victimisation, or becoming involved in 
offending, can vary by crime problem (i.e. burglary, 
violent crime), location, socio-economic status, age, 
gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation and disability for 
example. 
 
The rate of total recorded crime in Havering, that is crime 
reported to police and subsequently recorded as an 
official crime, is below the regional average for London. 
Havering was the 9th safest borough regionally of 32 at 

Page 68



5 
 

the last strategic assessment. However, it should be 
noted that the recorded rate of Domestic Abuse (14th 
worst), Serious Youth Violence (16th worst), Child Sexual 
Exploitation (2nd worst) and Motor Vehicle Theft (4th 
worst) performed less favourably in a regional and 
national context. This demonstrates that whilst overall 
crime is below average, when divided into specific areas 
we can identify variations in the level and type of need. In 
the case of Havering, there is greater level of identified 
need affecting women and children. 
 
As previously stated, the analysis of the strategic 
assessment is key to identifying varying degrees of risk 
and need, which takes into consideration offenders’ and 
victims’ main protected characteristics, types of problems, 
geographical variations and local prevalence. 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 

 
Please provide a clear and robust explanation on why 
your activity does not require an EIA. Please keep this 
checklist for your audit trail. 
 

 
 
Completed by:  
 

Diane Egan, Community Safety and Development Manager 

 
Date: 
 

28th March 2018 

 

Page 69



6 
 

2. Equality Impact Assessment  
 
The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the needs of 
individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its legal obligation 
under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
For more details on the Council’s ‘Fair to All’ approach to equality and diversity, please visit our 
Equality and Diversity Intranet pages.  For any additional advice, please contact 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 
Please note that EIAs are public documents and must be made available on the Council’s EIA 
webpage.  
 
 
Understanding the different needs of individuals and groups who use your service 
 
In this section you will need to assess the impact (positive, neutral or negative) of your activity on 
individuals and groups (with protected characteristics).  

Currently there are nine protected characteristics (previously known as ‘equality groups’ or 
‘equality strands’): age, disability, sex/gender, ethnicity/race, religion/faith, sexual orientation, 
gender reassignment, marriage/civil partnership, and pregnancy/ maternity/paternity. 
 
In addition to this, you should also consider socio-economic status as a protected characteristic, 
and the impact of your activity on individuals and groups that might be disadvantaged in this regard 
(e.g. carers, low income households, looked after children and other vulnerable children, families 
and adults). 
 
When assessing the impact, please consider and note how your activity contributes to the 
Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty and its three aims to: 
 

‐ eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
‐ advance equality of opportunity, and 
‐ foster good relations between people with different protected characteristics. 

 
Guidance on how to undertake an EIA for a protected characteristic can be found on the 
next page. 

Page 70



7 
 

Guidance on undertaking an EIA 
 

Example: Background/context 

In this section you will need to add the background/context of your activity. Make sure you include 
the scope and intended outcomes of the activity being assessed; and highlight any proposed 
changes. 

*Expand box as required

Example: Protected characteristic 

Please tick () the 
relevant box: 

Overall impact: In this section you will need to consider and note what 
impact your activity will have on individuals and groups (including staff) with 
protected characteristics based on the data and information you have.  You 
should note whether this is a positive, neutral or negative impact. 
 
It is essential that you note all negative impacts. This will demonstrate 
that you have paid ‘due regard’ to the Public Sector Equality Duty if 
your activity is challenged under the Equality Act. 
 

*Expand box as required

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence: In this section you will need to document the evidence that you have used to assess 
the impact of your activity. 
 

When assessing the impact, please consider and note how your activity contributes to the three 
aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) as stated in the section above. 
 

It is essential that you note the full impact of your activity, so you can demonstrate that you have 
fully considered the equality implications and have paid ‘due regard’ to the PSED should the 
Council be challenged. 
 

‐ If you have identified a positive impact, please note this. 
‐ If you think there is a neutral impact or the impact is not known, please provide a full 

reason why this is the case.  
‐ If you have identified a negative impact, please note what steps you will take to mitigate 

this impact.  If you are unable to take any mitigating steps, please provide a full reason 
why.  All negative impacts that have mitigating actions must be recorded in the Action 
Plan. 

*Expand box as required

Sources used: In this section you should list all sources of the evidence you used to assess the 
impact of your activity.  This can include: 
 

‐ Service specific data 
‐ Population, demographic and socio-economic data 

 
Suggested sources include: 
 

‐ Service user monitoring data that your service collects 
‐ Havering Data Intelligence Hub 
‐ London Datastore 
‐ Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
‐  

If you do not have any relevant data, please provide the reason why. 
 
 
 

*Expand box as required

 

Page 71



8 
 

 
The EIA 
 

Background/context: 

 
Community - According to the 2011 Census the total resident population for the London Borough 
of Havering was 237,232 whilst the Greater London Authority estimates the workday population to 
be 208,907. The most recent estimated population of the London Borough of Havering is 252,783. 
Other available data for usual residents show the following: 

 Havering has the oldest population in London with a median age of approximately 40, and 
19% of residents aged over 65. 

 From 2010 to 2015, Havering experienced the largest net inflow of children across all 
London boroughs. It is projected the largest increases in population will occur in children 
(0-17) and older people age groups (65 years and above) up to 2031. 

 Children and young people currently account for 23.2% of the population. 
 7,779 per 100,000 population aged 18-64 live with moderate physical disabilities, the 

second highest rate in London. 
 0.63% of residents in Havering have serious mental health problems whilst 3.03% have 

long-term mental health problems. Compared to other London boroughs Havering has 
amongst the lowest prevalence rates. 18% of working age people living in Havering have 
disclosed that they have a disability or long term illness. This is a similar proportion to 
England (19%). 

 Havering is one of the most ethnically homogenous places in London with 83% of its 
residents recorded as White British. Black African (4.0%), Indian (2.8%) and Mixed (2.2%) 
account for the largest ethnic groups in Havering. 

 Christian is the predominant religion followed in Havering (65.6%). Muslim (2.0%), Hindu 
(1.2%), Sikh (0.8%), Jewish (0.5%) and Buddhist (0.3%) are also followed. Over a fifth of 
residents (22.6%) stated that they had no religion. 

 There is no reliable information on sexual orientation in Havering. According to the Office 
for National Statistics in 2016, 2.0% of the UK population identified themselves as lesbian, 
gay or bisexual (LGB). The largest percentage of any age group was those aged 16-24 
with 4.1%. The London region had the highest average of total population identifying as 
LGB with 2.7%. 

 Havering has higher levels of employment than the national and regional averages. 
Locally 76.9% of working age residents in Havering were in employment (2017), 
compared to 73.6% and 73.9% in London and England respectively. The rate of working 
age people claiming out-of-work benefits at 7.0% was below the national average (8.6%). 

 Havering is ranked as the 166th (2015, Indices of Multiple Deprivation) most deprived of 
326 authorities in England (1st being most deprived).  This has worsened marginally from 
177th (2010, Indices of Multiple Deprivation). Two areas fall within the 10% most deprived 
(Gooshays and South Hornchurch wards). 

 Child poverty affects 1 in 5 children in Havering, estimated to be 8,800, with 
disproportionate representation in Gooshays and South Hornchurch wards. 

 Havering has high levels of owner-occupied housing (73%) and car ownership (77%) 
compared to regional and national averages. Levels of private sector-leasing (12%) are 
notably lower than the regional average. A higher proportion of residents rent from the 
local authority and social landlords (14%) when compared to the national average, but 
lower than the regional average. 

 
Data sources: https://www.haveringdata.net/jsna/ (This is Havering: a demographic and 
socioeconomic profile; Mental Health JSNA). 
 
Information from the latest strategic assessment for crime and disorder in Havering shows that: 

 There were 18,353 crimes reported to and recorded by police in Havering and 18,607 

Page 72



9 
 

reports of anti-social behaviour received across all agencies between October 2016 and 
September 2017.  

 Crime victimisation rates are above average for those aged 13-55, with the peak ages for 
victims being 15-42. Asian or Asian British suffer disproportionately higher rates of all 
types of crime. Black or Black British residents suffer all crimes types disproportionately, 
with the exception of sexual offences. 

 72% of all those accused of all crime are between the ages of 15 and 36. Offending peaks 
in adolescence and remains higher than average from ages 16-24. 

 Males accounted for 80% of offenders. 
 Those who commit crime in Havering are likely to have a number of needs relating to, for 

example, education, training and employment, finances and being able to manage on the 
money they have, alcohol misuse or dependency, drug misuse or dependency and 
emotional wellbeing and mental health. 

 Gender based violence is estimated to affect 9,780 women aged 16-59 annually in 
Havering. Women in pregnancy are at higher risk of becoming domestic violence victims. 

 Violence against women and girls and domestic abuse (affecting the 16-59 age range) is 
estimated to impact on 13% of Havering’s total population. 

 Triangulation of health and ambulance data alongside police recorded crime data reveals 
that as much as 75% of physical assaults are not reported to and recorded by the police. 
This is particularly notable for offences involving 18-25 year olds which take place within 
the night time economy. 

 Serious violence and street crime, such as robbery, disproportionately affect young people 
in Havering with 57% of robbery victims being aged 12-22 despite accounting for just 12% 
of the population. 82% of those accused of this crime were aged 13-25, again 
demonstrating large over-representation. 

 Burglary affects all households, however, those households which are owner-occupied 
and headed by adults aged 30 and over were more likely to be victimised than younger 
headed households and private or socially rented households in Havering. 

 Vehicle owners aged 25-34 were more at risk of becoming victims of vehicle crime than 
older drivers. Males in particular are disproportionately represented, accounting for over 
75% of reporting victims. 

 Anti-social behaviour, and repeated calls for assistance for anti-social matters, occurred 
disproportionately in areas of social housing (26% of calls in social housing areas which 
account for 10% of properties in Havering). 

 It was identified that a number of crime and disorder problems are chronically 
underreported and therefore only limited information was available.  These include: 

o Domestic abuse and sexual violence – it is estimated from the Crime Survey for 
England and Wales that just 22% of domestic abuse victims will notify the police 
whilst less than a fifth of rape victims are believed to report to police. 

o Hate crimes – crimes which are motivated by prejudice of race, religion, faith, 
sexual orientation or disability for example are rarely reported. It is estimated less 
than 10% of such crimes are reported to police. There were 322 crimes reported to 
and recorded by police in Havering in the last 12 months, the majority being 
racially and religiously aggravated. There were 25 reports of homophobic and 7 
reports of disability hate crimes. These figures have fallen from 35 and 15 in the 
previous year. 

o Crimes affecting businesses, particularly shoplifting – it is estimated that 91% of 
shoplifting offences go unreported to police (British Retail Crime Survey 2015), 
however, those businesses which did report crimes witnessed high levels of repeat 
victimisation (75%). 

o Female Genital Mutilation - 20 maternity units identified FGM of women residing in 
Havering in the last year. The largest population groups from countries which 
practice FGM in the UK were from Ghana, Kenya, Nigeria, Somalia and Uganda. 
The 2011 Census estimated that 1.4% of Havering residents were born in the 
aforementioned nations. 

o Honour Based Violence and Forced Marriage – it is identified from national 

Page 73



10 
 

datasets that those most likely to be affected are from South Asian countries 
(Bangladesh, India and Pakistan). Twelve incidents have been reported to and 
recorded by police in Havering in the previous year, compared to seven in 
2016/17. According to the 2011 Census, 1.7% of Havering residents were born in 
the aforementioned countries, whilst a total of 5.3% of residents self-defined as 
being Asian or Asian British and Mixed Asian and White. 

 
Data sources: Strategic Assessment of Crime and Disorder for Havering 2017n, Violence Against 
Women and Girls Strategic Problem Profile 2016, MOPAC Hate Crime Dashboard, Female 
Genital Mutilation Datasets HSCIC 

 
*Expand box as required

 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
 Children and young people aged 14-24 are disproportionately represented 

as both victims and offenders of crime. It is important that victim and 
offender interventions are designed with young people in mind. 

 The 0-17 age group is projected to increase notably in Havering, including 
the peak offending years (which are 16-24). There is an associated risk 
that reported crime levels will increase as a result if there is no plan to 
address key risk and protective factors of youth offending. 

 The Youth Justice Plan for Havering addresses risk factors associated 
with offending and victimisation of children and young people (poor 
parental supervision, families with attitudes that condone anti-social 
behaviour and criminality, low income, poor housing, low achievement 
beginning in primary school, aggressive behaviour, living in 
disadvantaged communities for example). 

 By the time offenders come to the notice of community safety partnership 
services (typically between the ages of 13-18), the opportunity for early 
prevention and intervention may have been missed. 

 Adverse childhood experiences, including abuse by adults, time spent in 
public care and domestic abuse, can disproportionately impact on risk of 
offending and victimization in later years. 

 Priority areas of the HCSP are focused on crime and disorder problems 
which adversely affect children and young people, therefore will seek to 
address this inequality. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:   
 

‐ Early Help services 
‐ Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub 
‐ Serious Group Violence Strategy and Serious Group Violence Panel 
‐ Troubled Families 
‐ Youth Justice Plan 
‐ Youth Offending Team 

Sources used:  
 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Havering Data Intelligence Hub 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 
- Youth Justice Board: Risk and Protective Factors Report 
 
Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 

Page 74



11 
 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Information that would be useful for strategic analysis and service provision 
remains underdeveloped in respect of disability, with crime and incident data 
significantly underreported. Qualitative research shows that those with 
disabilities are more likely to be targeted for hate crime, financial and sexual 
abuse and exploitation (i.e. labour). The HCSP has in place a VAWG strategy 
(to be renewed in Spring/Summer 2018) which seeks to address sexual 
violence and exploitation. The repeat victims’ strategy seeks to address 
financial abuse of vulnerable adults in the borough. The revised hate crime & 
cohesion policy seeks to support victims of hate crime. 
 

*Expand box as required

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:   
 
- Anti-Social Behaviour Panel and Community Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference 
(ASBMARAC), risk management panel for victims of hate crime, including disability prejudice. 
- Hate Crime Policy and Cohesion Strategy in development for Havering 
Sources used:  
 
- An overview of Hate Crime in England and Wales (Home Office, ONS and Ministry of 
Justice) 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 
 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
 Males and females are recorded locally as experiencing crime with a split 

of 59% of victims being males, and 41% being female; however, there are 
notable differences by type of crime. 

 Gender affects certain types of violence, and females are victims in 77% 
of domestic abuse offences, and 84% of sexual offences.  

 Stranger and alcohol-related violence and serious group/gang violence 
disproportionately affect men to the rate of 65% to 35% female 
(predominantly under the age of 24). 

 Males account for over 80% of all offenders, therefore services to address 
and support offenders should bear this in mind. 

 The Community Safety Partnership Plan will seek to reduce Domestic 
Abuse, and non-domestic violence with injury, therefore addressing 
inequalities which exist in these crime types. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:   
 
- Violence against Women & Girls Strategy, Strategic Group and Multi-Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference – established to identify, support and protect people at risk of domestic abuse, sexual 
violence, FGM, honour based violence and forced marriage, sexual exploitation and prostitution. 
- Equality Impact Assessment for Violence Against Women & Girls Strategy and Commissioned 
Services 
- Commissioned services to address violence within the night time economy (Street Triage), and 
Safe and Sound Night Time Economy Group 
- Reducing Reoffending Strategy, Equality Impact Assessment and Action Plan 

Page 75



12 
 

Sources used:  
 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 
- Violence against women and girls strategic problem profile 
 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
‐ BME groups are disproportionately represented as victims of crime 

generally, and in particular crime motivated by racial and religious 
prejudice, and targeting of Asian households for Asian gold. 

‐ The Asian community is over three times more likely to suffer burglary, 
vehicle crime, violence, or domestic abuse; and the Black community two 
times more likely to suffer violence.  

‐ There is no specific service which serves to protect BME groups in 
Havering, however, there is a BME forum which is represented at the 
Safer Neighbourhood Board. 

‐ There was previously a BME specific provision in respect of Domestic 
Abuse in Havering however funding for this ended. 

‐ A growing BME community in Havering, particularly within the Black 
African group, may require in the future specialist services should it be 
mirrored by disproportionate growth in incidence and prevalence of crime. 

‐ With priorities in the Partnership Plan covering burglary, violence, 
domestic abuse, and domestic abuse, these will seek to tackle the 
inequalities mentioned above, in addition to hate crime. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:  
 
- Anti-Social Behaviour Panel and Community Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference - risk 
management panel for victims of hate crime, including racial prejudice. 
- 1x Independent Domestic Violence Advisor (IDVA) case load reserved for prioritising domestic 
abuse affecting BME victims in Havering 
- Hate Crime Policy and Cohesion Strategy in development for Havering 
Sources used:  
 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 
- Violence against women and girls strategic problem profile 
 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no religion 
or belief 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Information that could be useful for strategic analysis and service provision is 
currently underdeveloped and underreported in Havering. Qualitative 
research identifies that individuals with particular religious beliefs are more 
likely to be victims of hate incidents and hate crime. 
 
The changing dimension of faith which may result from a growing BME 
community in Havering may require in the future specialist services should it 
be mirrored by a growth in the volume and prevalence of hate crime. There 
are clear gaps in data and reporting that need to be addressed and the 
partnership will be taking steps to engage with people from all religious 
groups and those with no religious belief to address those gaps. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 76



13 
 

Evidence:   
 
- Anti-Social Behaviour Panel and Community Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference 
(ASBMARAC), risk management panel for victims of hate crime, including religion/faith prejudice. 
- Hate Crime Policy and Cohesion Strategy in development for Havering 

Sources used:  
 
- An overview of Hate Crime in England and Wales (Home Office, ONS and Ministry of 
Justice) 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Information that could be useful for strategic analysis and service provision is 
currently underdeveloped in Havering. Nationally LGBT groups are much less 
likely to report hate incidents or hate crimes. Qualitative research found that 
this protected characteristic was more likely to be targeted as victims of hate 
crime, violence and domestic abuse. 
 
Whilst underreporting is significant and the volume of reported cases is low, 
there are specialist services available to LGBT residents of Havering, 
including a liaison police officer and same-sex domestic abuse services. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:   
 
- Anti-Social Behaviour Panel and Community Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference 
(ASBMARAC), risk management panel for victims of hate crime, including sexual orientation 
prejudice. 
- Hate Crime Policy and Cohesion Strategy in development for Havering 
- LGBT Police Officer within Havering 
- LGBT support services available for victims of domestic abuse in same-sex relationships 
Sources used:  
 
- An overview of Hate Crime in England and Wales (Home Office, ONS and Ministry of 
Justice) 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received gender 
reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from their gender at 
birth 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Information that could be useful for strategic analysis and service provision is 
currently underdeveloped in Havering. Nationally this protected characteristic 
is less likely to report victimisation, including hate incidents or hate crimes.  

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 77



14 
 

Evidence:   
 
- Anti-Social Behaviour Panel and Community Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference 
(ASBMARAC), risk management panel for victims of hate crime, including transphobic prejudice. 
- Hate Crime Policy and Cohesion Strategy in development for Havering 

Sources used:  
 
- An overview of Hate Crime in England and Wales (Home Office, ONS and Ministry of 
Justice) 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Services provided by Havering Community Safety Partnership are inclusive to 
all marital status’. In terms of community safety partnership issues, 
married/civil partners (or separated) are most notably overrepresented within 
domestic abuse crimes, given their nature. Domestic abuse services are 
available to everyone regardless of marital status. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:   
 
- Violence against Women & Girls Strategy, Strategic Group and Multi-Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference – established to identify, support and protect people at risk of domestic abuse, sexual 
violence, FGM, honour based violence and forced marriage, sexual exploitation and prostitution. 
- Equality Impact Assessment for the Violence Against Women & Girls Strategy and 
Commissioned Services 

Sources used:  
 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 
- Violence against women and girls strategic problem profile 

 
Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who are 
undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
This protected characteristic has been identified as at higher risk of domestic 
abuse. Previous research has identified that as much as 30% of domestic 
abuse begins during pregnancy, therefore requiring capacity within maternity 
and pre-natal services to identify risks and refer appropriately to relevant 
support services. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 78



15 
 

Evidence:   
 
- Violence against Women & Girls Strategy, Strategic Group and Multi-Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference – established to identify, support and protect people at risk of domestic abuse, sexual 
violence, FGM, honour based violence and forced marriage, sexual exploitation and prostitution. 
- Equality Impact Assessment for the Violence Against Women & Girls Strategy and 
Commissioned Services 
- Domestic Abuse Policy for BHRUT and Havering CCG 
- Independent Domestic Abuse Advisor within Queens hospital 
- Domestic Abuse training and DV Champions within pre-and post- natal staff, health visitors etc 

Sources used:  
 
- Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Information System (CRIS) 
- Violence against women and girls strategic problem profile 

 
Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick () 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Some categories of crime may disproportionately impact on people of 
different socio-economic status. For example: 

 Households with higher disposable income and means to purchase 
desirable items targeted by offenders are more likely to become 
victims of household burglary.  They may subsequently improve their 
home security. Households in lower income thresholds are less likely 
to afford more sophisticated home security measures to protect 
themselves. 

 Whilst all people can be affected by domestic abuse, reporting rates 
are disproportionately higher for low income thresholds, as are 
disclosure rates from victimisation surveys (Crime Survey for England 
and Wales). 

 Research for Havering’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment found a 
correlation between the number of domestic abuse incidents recorded 
in a ward, and the level of deprivation. 

 Robbery victims are more likely to be from middle and higher income 
backgrounds, whereas robbery offenders are disproportionately from 
lower income backgrounds, specifically targeting those they perceived 
to be better off. 

 Rates of violence generally disproportionately impact on those 
residing in the most multiply deprived areas. 

 
The rate of reported and recorded crime affecting those from low income 
households may be heightened due to the inability to protect themselves (i.e. 
do not have finances available for appropriate insurance; investing in security; 
covering the loss of stolen items and repairs; and the subsequent burden this 
may place on already stretched incomes). 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:   
 
Services provided by Havering Community Safety Partnership are inclusive to all socio-economic 
groups. 

Page 79



16 
 

Sources used:  
 
- Crime Survey for England and Wales 
- Youth Justice Board: Young People and Street Crime 
- Strategic Assessment 
- Metropolitan Police Crime Recording Incident System (CRIS) 

 

Page 80



17 
 

Action Plan 
 
In this section you should list the specific actions that set out how you will address any negative equality impacts you have identified in this 
assessment. 
 

Protected 
characteristic 

Identified 
negative impact 

Action taken to mitigate 
impact* 

Outcomes and monitoring** Timescale
Lead 

officer 

Disability Information that would be 
useful for strategic analysis and 
service provision remains 
underdeveloped in respect of 
disability. 
 
Qualitative research shows that 
those with disabilities are more 
likely to be targeted for hate 
crime, financial and sexual 
abuse and exploitation (i.e. 
labour). 

Identify and engage with 
disability groups within 
Havering. 

Gauge collective experiences of 
victimisation, access to services 
and satisfaction with services. 

Gauge opinions and insight that 
can be used to improve access 
and services for this protected 
group. 

 

 

Increased reporting of 
victimisation. 

Improved access to available 
services. 

 

 

September 
2017 

 

 

Equalities 
Officer 

 

 

Religion / Faith Information that could be useful 
for strategic analysis and 
service provision is currently 
underdeveloped and 
underreported in Havering. 
Qualitative research identifies 
that individuals with particular 
religious beliefs are more likely 
to be victims of hate incidents 
and hate crime. 
 
The changing dimension of 

Identify and engage with 
religious / faith groups within 
Havering. 

Gauge collective experiences of 
victimisation, access to services 
and satisfaction with services. 

Gauge opinions and insight that 
can be used to improve access 

Increased reporting of 
victimisation. 

Improved access to available 
services. 

September 
2017 
 
 

Equalities 
Officer 

 
 
 
 

P
age 81



18 
 

faith which may result from a 
growing BME community in 
Havering may require in the 
future specialist services 
should it be mirrored by a 
growth in the volume and 
prevalence of hate crime. 
There are clear gaps in data 
and reporting that need to be 
addressed and the partnership 
will be taking steps to engage 
with people from all religious 
groups and those with no 
religious belief to address those 
gaps. 

and services for this protected 
group. 

 
 
 
 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Information that could be useful 
for strategic analysis and 
service provision is currently 
underdeveloped in Havering. 
Nationally this protected 
characteristic is less likely to 
report victimisation, including 
hate incidents or hate crimes.  
 

Identify and engage with 
individuals who have undergone 
gender reassignment within 
Havering. 

Gauge collective experiences of 
victimisation, access to services 
and satisfaction with services. 

Gauge opinions and insight that 
can be used to improve access 
and services for this protected 
group. 

 
 
 
 

Increased reporting of 
victimisation. 

Improved access to available 
services. 

September 
2017 

Equalities 
Officer 

 

All protected 
characteristics 

This EIA is an overview level 
assessment for the HCSP 
Partnership Plan. Specific 
areas of work and funding of 

Violence Against Women & Girls 
and Domestic Abuse services to 
have overarching EIA. 

Equality needs are identified and 
addressed for each respective 
specialist area. 

October 
2017 

DV/VAWG 
Officer 
 
IOM 

P
age 82



19 
 

commissioned projects will 
require bespoke EIAs to be 
completed. 

Serious Group Violence 
Strategy and commissioned 
services / risk panels to have 
overarching EIA. 

Reducing Reoffending Board 
and associated operational 
groups to have overarching EIA. 

MOPAC funded projects to have 
EIAs. 

Caseworker 
Equalities 
Officer 

 
* You should include details of any future consultations you will undertake to mitigate negative impacts 
 
** Monitoring: You should state how the negative impact will be monitored; how regularly it will be monitored; and who will be monitoring it (if 
this is different from the lead officer).   
 
 
Review 
 
To be reviewed during the annual refresh of the Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan, and revised at the end of the strategy period 
(March 2020). 

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
  
Subject Heading: 
 
 

Havering Community Safety Partnership, 
Annual Strategic Assessment 2017 

SLT Lead: 
 

Jane West, Chief Operating Officer 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

Kit Weller 
Community Safety Analyst 
Kit.Weller@Havering.gov.uk 
01708 433465 

Policy context: 
 
 

Our vision, ‘Havering – making a Greater 
London’, is about embracing the best of what 
Havering has to offer, and how we as a 
borough can play an active role in the success 
of the whole of London. Our vision is focused 
around the borough’s communities, places, 
opportunities and connections. The Council 
has a statutory duty under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to produce an annual 
analysis of crime and disorder in the area, 
which will then be used to create a strategy to 
reduce these. This is relevant to our vision by 
ensuring the safety of our communities, and 
creating safer places; thereby improving 
opportunities for individuals and businesses. 

 
Financial summary: 
 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report which is for information 
only.  Whilst delivery of the plan itself will 
have financial implications the expectation 
is that it delivered within existing 
resources. 

 

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council 
Objectives 

 
Communities making Havering                                                                                                    [X] 
Places making Havering                                                                                                                [X] 
Opportunities making Havering                                                                                                   [] 
Connections making Havering                                                                                                     []      
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Diane.egan@havering.gov.uk


Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
The Council has a statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 
produce an annually refreshed community safety plan. In order to produce this 
plan, the Council is required to carry out an analysis of crime and disorder in the 
local area. 
 
The Strategic Assessment 2017 uses data from partner agencies as well as 
publicly-available information to consider crime levels and trends in Havering. The 
findings of the Strategic Assessment will be used to refresh the Havering 
Community Safety Plan 2017-20. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
That the members note the Strategic Assessment 2017, which was approved by 
Havering Community Safety Partnership on 16th January 2018. 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
 

Havering Community Safety Partnership is comprised of five responsible 
authorities1 who, by law, are required to work together to tackle crime, disorder, 
substance misuse and reoffending. There is also a statutory requirement that the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership produces an annual strategic assessment 
of these issues in coordination with a community safety strategy (or plan). 
 
The strategic assessment assesses and evaluates the progress towards priorities 
set out in the community safety partnership plan and recommends any changes 
required to the strategic priorities, if applicable, for the forthcoming years. The 
Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2016 identified 
three strategic themes together with one cross-cutting area. The findings of the 
Strategic Assessment 2017 are that our strategic themes are still very relevant and 
there is no necessity to alter these. The partnership plan will now be updated in a 
‘2018 refresh’ in order to refine actions based on what has been achieved over the 
past year, and presented to the Community Safety Partnership in April.    
 
The strategic themes and cross-cutting areas identified are as follows: 
 

 Protecting vulnerable individuals/victims – we want to reduce the 
number of victims and repeat victims of crime and anti-social behaviour in 

                                            
1
 London Borough of Havering, Clinical Commissioning Group, Metropolitan Police, London Fire & Emergency Planning 

Authority and National Probation Service/Community Rehabilitation Company. 

Page 86



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 
 

 

Havering. Areas of particular focus, where volume and risk of repeat 
victimisation are greatest, will be violence against women and girls, serious 
group violence, child sexual exploitation, and preventing hate crime and 
extremism. Tackling youth violence and weapon enabled crime are also key 
areas under this theme. 

 Supporting the most prolific and/or high harm offenders – we want to 
reduce the harm and risk of reoffending posed by known offenders residing 
in Havering and work with neighbouring boroughs to minimise the impact of 
offenders travelling into Havering. Areas of particular focus, where risks 
associated with reoffending and harm are highest, will be offenders with 
drug and alcohol misuse, reoffenders, and those with links to gangs. The 
Mayor’s Policing Plan for London includes the priority area a better Criminal 
Justice Service for London, which aims to reduce reoffending and support 
persistent offenders with chaotic lifestyles. 

 Creating Safer Locations – we want to reduce the volume of crime in 
areas which are disproportionately affected. Our town centres are known to 
experience violence linked to night-time economy hours; and burglary is 
also a prevalent crime which affects both the individual location and wider 
area. Therefore, Non-domestic violence with injury, and residential burglary 
will be two priorities under this theme. 

 Throughout this work, a key cross-cutting area will be community 
engagement and public confidence. This is to enable communities to 
report and receive information, as well as being part of potential solutions. 
This will also help to close the gap between perceptions of crime and actual 
levels of crime in the borough. 

 
Havering’s identified strategic priorities are broadly aligned to current and emerging 
regional and national strategies. Both within the national and regional context there 
continues to be a greater emphasis on prioritisation of crimes that present the 
highest levels of risk and harm, notably Violence against Women and Girls, Ending 
Gang Violence and Exploitation and reducing knife crime. In addition to this the 
new Police and Crime Plan for London has prioritised tackling extremism, hatred 
and intolerance.  
 
Appendices 

1 Havering Strategic Assessment 2017 
 

 
  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 

 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
There are no financial implications arising from this report which is for information 
only.  Whilst delivery of the plan itself will have financial implications the 
expectation is that it delivered within existing resources within both the Council and 
the Metropolitan Police service.  Certain initiatives within the plan are funded via a 
grant by the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime. 
 
 

Page 87



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 
 

 

Legal implications and risks: 
This strategy is in line with sections 5 -7 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, Police 
and Justice Act 2006 and The Crime and Disorder (Formulation and 
Implementation of Strategy) Regulations 2011/1830. The Council and other 
statutory partners including Health have a duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 to produce a Strategy to reduce crime and disorder within the borough for 
combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances and for reducing re-
offending. There are no apparent legal implications in noting the Strategy.  
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
There are no HR implications in this decision. 
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
The Equalities Impact Assessment for the Havering Community Safety Partnership 
Plan has been completed and is a background document to the plan. 
 

Page 88



 

Kit Weller 
 

1Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

 
 

Havering Community Safety Partnership 
Strategic Assessment 

 
 

 
   

Title & Version  Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Relevant to  Havering Community Safety Partnership

Summary / Purpose 

An analysis and overview of crime, disorder, substance misuse and offenders
adversely affecting  the  residents of Havering. To be used as a background 
document  for  the  annual  refresh  of  the  Havering  Partnership  Plan  2017‐ 
2020(crime reduction strategy). 

Author  Kit Weller

Unit  Havering Community Safety Partnership

Date Created  September – December 2017

Page 89



 

Kit Weller 
 

2Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Table of Contents 
 
 

1. Context  3

   1.1 Background  3 

   1.2 Purpose  3 

   1.3 Methodology and data sources  3 

   1.4 Socio‐economic and demographic profile  3 

2. Performance and recent trends  4

   2.1 Havering crime data  4 

   2.2 Police recorded crime summary  5 

   2.3 Partnership data summary  8 

   2.4 Reoffending, detections and outcome data  10 

   2.5 Crime Harm Index  11 

3. Community safety problems 13

   3.1 Victims and targets  13 

    3.1.1 Age, gender and ethnicity  13 

    3.1.2 Repeat victimisation  16 

    3.1.3 Hot Products  17 

    3.1.4 Risky facilities / environments  19 

    3.1.5 Fears and perceptions  21 

    3.1.6 Crime and health  22 

    3.1.7 Demand for service (LB Havering)  23 

   3.2 Offenders  24 

    3.2.1 Age, gender and ethnicity  24 

    3.2.2 Criminogenic Needs  27 

    3.2.3 Alcohol and Drugs  28 

    3.2.4 Known gangs or offending groups  29 

    3.2.5 Weapons  29 

    3.2.6 Reoffending  30 

    3.2.7 Young Offenders  30 

3.2.8 Outcomes  31 

   3.3 Places and locations  32 

    3.3.1 Recorded crime  32 

    3.3.2 Incidents of Anti‐Social Behaviour  34 

    3.3.3 Victim groups  36 

    3.3.4 Offenders known to police  39 

    3.3.5 Offending linked to employment  41 

    3.3.6 Serious violence and weapon use  41 

4. Safeguarding risks and horizon scanning   42

   4.1 Safeguarding areas of risk  42 

   4.2 Horizon scanning  44 

5. Priorities  46

   5.1 Suggested strategic priorities  46 

   5.2 Recommendations  46 

Appendix  48

 
   

Page 90



 

Kit Weller 
 

3Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Figure 1.1 Problem Analysis Triangle

1. Context 
 
1.1 Background 
 
The Strategic Assessment is an annual statutory requirement of all Community Safety Partnerships in England and Wales, as 
stated in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  
 
1.2 Purpose 
 
The purpose of the strategic assessment of crime and disorder is to help decision makers set the strategic priorities for the 
future.  It  should  also  be  used  to  support  future  commissioning  processes,  including  the  commissioning  of  intelligence 
products and more detailed problem profiles (e.g. for agreed priorities and where there are key information gaps), to gain a 
better understanding of crime, fear of crime, anti‐social behaviour and offenders. 
 
1.3 Methodology and data sources 
 
This assessment  includes an analysis of  the  level and patterns of crime, disorder and substance misuse/offending  in  the 
London Borough of Havering. 
 
It utilises a range of data from appropriate sources as detailed in the Appendix, although it is necessary to mention at this 
point that certain pieces of data which have been used  in previous years are no  longer provided. Multi‐agency data used 
includes Metropolitan Police, British Transport Police, London Fire Brigade, London Ambulance Service, and Transport for 
London, Crime Survey for England & Wales and London Public Attitude Surveys. Where possible, the data used is within the 
period October 2016 to September 2017, however, exceptions to this are noted within the report. 
 
Data  referred  to  relating  to  specific  aspects  of  crime will  often  be  taken  directly  from  the Metropolitan  Police  Crime 
Recording Information System (CRIS). These figures are live, in as much as totals can change as crimes are re‐classified from 
one type of offence to another. The figures are also extracted from the system using purpose built  ‘queries’ which select 
from thousands of possible pieces of  information. It  is therefore possible that figures which seemingly relate to the same 
information may differ throughout the report, and may not add up to totals shown if scrutinised to this degree. 
 
Analysis included a range of techniques such as hotpot and thematic mapping, and 
creation of  indices which highlight disproportionality  (Offender  and Victim  Index 
Scores).  
 
The assessment is structured around the Problem Analysis Triangle elements of: 

‐ Victim/vulnerable people/vulnerable groups/targets 
‐ Offenders 
‐ Places/priority communities 

 
Unlike some assessments, the purpose has not been to provide detailed analysis of 
each and every crime problem  in Havering;  rather,  it has been used as a  tool  for 
strategic decision makers. The  information provided  is a measure of the problem rather than a full analysis, which  is the 
purpose of problem profiles. This approach enables the analysis to identify both cross‐cutting issues and underlying drivers 
and motivations for offending.  
 
1.4 Socio‐economic and demographic profile 
 
A socio‐economic and demographic profile of Havering is available here: http://www.haveringdata.net  
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 91



Ki
 

2.
 
Th
Ha
Ap

 
2.
 
Ov
St
 
Fig
vic
ax
1,2
po
de
 
As
re
Fig
Da
 
Th
ca
off
 

M

To

Vic

Sta

F

t Weller 

 Performan

his section giv
avering, notin
ppendix A alon

1 Havering c

ver the previo
rategic Assess

gure 2.1 below
ctim,  i.e. poss
xis on  the  left
276  in  last ye
ositive aspects
emonstrate th

s figure 2.1 sh
cent years, co
gure  2.1,  are
ashboards). 

he red and gre
lculations  to 
fences were lo

PS Havering 

otal Notifiable

ctim Based Cr

ate Based Crim

Figure 2.1 Victim

nce and rec

ves an overvie
ng  long and sh
ng with detail

crime data 

ous 12‐month
sment.  

w shows the t
session of can
t of  the graph
ears’ assessm
s to take from
hat victims’ co

ows, state ba
orrelating wit
e  available  fo

een ‘control li
show  the var
ower than the

 Offences 

rime 

me 

m Based and State

H

ent trends 

ew of crime, d
hort  term  tre
s on where to

hs there has b

trend in recor
nnabis or offe
h. Victim base
ent. The unfo

m an increase 
onfidence in po

ased crimes (w
th declines  in 
or  all  categor

nes’ shown fo
riation which 
e regular rang

Oc

e Based crime tre

Havering Co

disorder and 
ends  to highlig
o retrieve perf

been a rise of 

ded victim ba
ensive weapon
ed crimes  incr
ortunate para
in some victim
olice is improv

with the corre
stop and sea

ries  of  record

or both victim
can be consi
ge in February

ct‐16 to Sep‐
17  

18,353 

17,109 

1,104 

end in Havering, 

 ommunity S

anti‐social be
ght key perfo
formance dat

5.1% against 

ased crimes an
ns) recorded 
reased  in  the
adox of meas
m based crim
ved, or that re

esponding leve
arches of  indiv
ded  crime  in 

m and state ba
dered as  the 
y 2017, and hi

Oct‐15 to S
16 

17,456

16,179

1,146

Metropolitan Po

Safety Partn

ehaviour (ASB
ormance  issue
a from online

the level of T

nd state based
each month 

e  last 12‐mont
suring all  crim
e, such as dom
eporting prac

els shown on 
viduals. Long 
Havering  us

ased offences 
regular range
gher than reg

Sep‐
Varia

+89

+93

‐42

olice monthly dat

nership Stra

) problems w
es. A breakdo
 open sources

Total Notifiab

d (crimes with
since October
ths  to averag
me  in  this way
mestic abuse 
tices have imp

the axis to th
term trend c
ing  sources  i

over the past
e seen over  t
gular in May 2

ance 
% 

16‐17

97  +

30  +

2 

ta Oct‐11 to Sep‐

ategic Asses

within the Lon
own of all dat
s.  

ble Offences s

hout an identi
r 2011, corre
ge 1,426 per m
y  is of  course
and hate crim
proved. 

he right) have 
charts, such a
in  Appendix 

t year use sta
this period. T
017. 

Change 
7 vs. 15‐16 

+5.1% 

+5.7% 

‐3.7% 

‐17 

ssment 2017

don Borough
ta  is  included

een in the 20

ifiable individu
sponding to t
month, up  fro
e  that  there a
me, where it c

fallen rapidly
as that shown
A  (see MOP

ndard deviati
he victim bas

% Change
16‐17 vs. 14‐

+14.9% 

+18.3% 

+4.8% 

47 

 of 
  in 

016 

ual 
the 
om 
are 
can 

y in 
n  in 
PAC 

ion 
sed 

‐15 

 

Page 92



 

Kit Weller 
 

5Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

80.4
70.2

12.4

22.3

93.0

81.3

19.2

23.0

74.0 69.5

14.4

24.5

0.0
10.0
20.0
30.0
40.0
50.0
60.0
70.0
80.0
90.0

100.0

All Crime Victim based
Crime

Serious
Acquisitive
Offences

Violence Against
The Person

England & Wales London Havering

Figure 2.2 Rate of offences per 1,000 residents, Iquanta and MPS data

Since  the  last  strategic  assessment  there  has  been  a  rise  in  recorded  crime  locally,  regionally  and  nationally. Havering 
recorded a 5.1% increase in recorded crime, which was lower than the average for London (5.7%) and that of England and 
Wales (13.0%). In Havering, the increase in crime has been driven by a 73.9% increase in robbery; a 24.8% increase in motor 
vehicle crime; and a 20.4% increase in sexual offences. These are set against London increases of 30.5% for robbery; 16.1% 
for  vehicle  crime;  and  an 8.5%  increase  in  sexual offences. Nationally  robbery has  risen 20.5%;  vehicle  crime 9.0%;  and 
sexual offences 14.7% 
 
The local increases of 66.3% for personal robbery and 172.7% for robbery of business property are high in comparison with  
increases of 31.5% and 19.1% respectively for the London‐wide level, however the business rate was very low last year (29th  
lowest rate per 1,000 population of the 32 London boroughs), with 22 offences equalling  less than two each month. The 
increase in robbery locally coincides with a 67.6% increase locally in robberies of mobile phones (against a 29.5% increase 
for London). While gun crime and knife crime have risen  locally, figures of gun enabled robbery of personal property and 
knife enabled robbery with injury (the only knife robbery statistic available for comparison) were very low between October 
2015 and September 2016, at two offences recorded for each, compared to eight gun enabled robberies in October 2016 to 
September 2017, and seven knife injury robberies. 
 
When examining the rise  locally  in motor vehicle crimes, the majority of the  increase  is caused by theft of motor vehicle 
(46.5%  increase)  and motor  vehicle  interference  (essentially  attempted  theft  –  up  46.2%).  Across  London  these  have 
increased  by  19.8%  and  17.9%  respectively.  The  third  offence  type  in  this  category  –  theft  from motor  vehicle  saw  a 
relatively  small  increase  of  3.1% 
locally  compared  to  a  14.0% 
increase across London. 
 
Figure  2.2  displays  Havering’s 
rate  of  certain  crime  types 
compared to the London average 
rate per  thousand  residents, and 
the  rate  for  England  and Wales. 
In  last  year’s  assessment, 
Havering’s  TNO  rate  was  1.6 
crimes  per  thousand  population 
higher  than  that  for England and 
Wales,  and  16.5  lower  than 
London. Our position,  for  serious 
acquisitive  crime  was  the  same; 
between England and Wales, and 
London. Our acquisitive  rate was 
virtually  the  same  at  14.2 
offences  per  thousand 

population, while  the  rates  for  London and England and 
Wales have increased over the past year. 
 
2.2 Police recorded crime summary 
 
The  data  table  on  the  following  page  shows  the  current  trends  for  various  categories  of  recorded  crime  in  Havering 
(Metropolitan Police Official Crime Data).  
 
The table shows a variety of data including the volume of crime for each category, numerical and percentage changes over 
rolling 12‐month periods, proportionate breakdowns against the Havering total, short term direction of travel and how the 
rate of crime ranks among the 32 London boroughs, where 1st is the highest rate of offending (worst) and 32nd is best. The 
latter is shaded according to quartiles (1st to 8th red, 9th to 16th orange, 17th to 24th yellow and 25th to 32nd green). 
 
The column headed ‘% of TNO’ shows how each category of crime contributes to the volume of Total Notifiable Offences in 
Havering. The category names shown on the left hand side may relate to several types of crime grouped together because 
of a common  feature, such as hate crime, or gun crime;  therefore  the  total notifiable offences  figure  is not a sum of all 
other categories shown. The biggest contributors to recorded crime  in Havering  in the 12‐months to September 2017 are 

Rate of Offending by Crime Group, Oct‐16 to Sep‐17, Area Comparison 

Page 93



 

Kit Weller 
 

6Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Violence against the Person (33.0%, 6,063 offences), Theft & Handling (21.8%, 4,004), Motor Vehicle Crime (13.8%, 2,528) 
and  Burglary  (10.8%,  1,995). More  serious  crimes  such  as  Rape  (0.8%,  150),  Child  Sexual  Exploitation  (0.6%,  116)  and 
Serious Youth Violence (1.4%, 248) accounted for much  less significant proportions of crime, although cause considerably 
more harm to victims and communities (see section 2.5 Crime Harm  Index). Crimes affecting businesses (Business Crime, 
which  includes all types of offending, with the main contributor being theft from shops) contributed to more than one  in 
ten crimes in Havering (10.9%).  
 
The column headed ‘variance’ highlights the numerical change in recorded crime in October 2016 to September 2017 when 
compared with October 2015 to September 2016. The columns headed ‘% change’ show the change in volume of offences 
in October 2016 to September 2017 compared with the previous two 12‐month rolling periods. The  largest reduction by 
percentage was recorded within the business crime offences (‐41.8%); over 1,400 fewer than in last year’s assessment. The 
most significant reduction in terms of risk and harm however was violence with injury; with nearly 11% fewer offences than 
were  seen  in  the 2016 assessment.   A 26.4%  reduction was  seen  in hate  crime. A positive, given  the  impact  that  these 
offences have on  the  lives of victims, although  this could also demonstrate a  reluctance of victims  to  report matters  to 
police. 
 
Indicators relating to domestic abuse demonstrate mixed results from the previous year, although again must be taken with 
consideration to victim confidence in reporting matters. The level of DA violence with injury is the same as last year (0.3% 
reduction), while there is a minor increase in the overall level of crimes flagged as domestic abuse (by 1%). The level of DA 
incidents, which refers to incidents between partners or family members where no crime has been committed, however has 
reduced by 407 incidents, or 8.6%. 
 
The  final  column  indicates where Havering  ranks  among  the  32  London  boroughs  in  terms  of  rate  of  crime  per  1,000 
residents, where  1st  is  the  highest  rate  (worst)  and  32nd  is  the  lowest  rate  (best).  At  the  last  assessment  child  sexual 
exploitation was  the only area where Havering ranked  in  the worst quartile  for London  (2nd highest) and remains at  this 
position this year. In the current 12‐months, theft of motor vehicle (4th) and youth violence with injury (8th) have moved into 
the worst performing quartile. Havering’s rank has worsened notably  for burglary non‐dwelling,  falling  from 27th  to 15th; 
and business  robbery,  from 29th  to 13th. There has however been a  significant  improvement  in our position  for burglary 
dwelling from 8th to 19th.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



 

Kit Weller 
 

7Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

 
Source: Metropolitan Police Recorded Crime 

 
Oct‐16 to 
Sep‐17 

Oct‐15 to 
Sep‐16 

Variance 
15/16 to 
16/17 

% of TNO 

% Change  % Change 
Direction 
of Travel 
12mnths 

Rank of 
Rate MPS 
(1=worst)  

(Oct‐Sep 16‐
17 vs Oct‐
Sep 15‐16) 

(Oct‐Sep 16‐
17 vs Oct‐
Sep 14‐15) 

Violence with Injury  1,999  2,237  ‐238  11.0  ‐10.6  20.8   20 

‐of which Domestic Abuse  708  710  ‐2  3.9  ‐0.3  13.5   14 

‐of which Youth Violence  631  585  46  3.5  7.9  25.2   8 

Violence without Injury  3,951  3,716  235  21.5  6.3  40.6   21 

Offensive Weapon  113  62  51  0.6  82.3  61.4   25 

Violence Against Person  6,063  6,015  48  33  0.8  33.6   21 

                          

Domestic Abuse Crimes  2,284  2,261  23  12.5  1.0  22.9   16 

Domestic Abuse Incidents  4,333  4,740  ‐407  N/A  ‐8.6  19.7   15 

VAWG*  8  9  ‐1  0.0  ‐11.1  14.3   27 

Domestic Abuse  6,625  7,010  ‐385  N/A  ‐5.5  20.8   12 

                          

Hate Crime  315  428  ‐113  1.7  ‐26.4  12.1   21 

                          

Serious Youth Violence  248  204  44  1.4  21.6  26.5   16 

                          

Gun Crime  56  52  4  0.3  7.7  7.7   21 

Knife Crime  301  181  120  1.7  66.3  62.7   21 

Weapon Enabled Crime  357  233  124  2.0  53.2  50.6   22 

                          

Rape  150  114  36  0.8  31.6  42.9   27 

Other Sexual  287  249  38  1.6  15.3  10.8   23 

Sexual Offences  437  363  74  2.4  20.4  20.1   25 

Child Sexual Exploitation  116  121  ‐5  0.6  ‐4.1  34.9   2 

                          

Burglary Dwelling  1,434  1,443  ‐9  7.8  ‐0.6  ‐0.6   19 

Burglary Non‐Dwelling  561  496  65  3.1  13.1  5.6   15 

Burglary  1,995  1,939  56  10.9  2.9  1.1   18 

                          

Personal Robbery  474  285  189  2.6  66.3  41.9   22 

Business Robbery  60  22  38  0.3  172.7  106.9   13 

Robbery  534  307  227  2.9  73.9  47.1   21 

                          

Theft from M/V  1,040  1,009  31  5.7  3.1  ‐2.2   31 

Theft/Taking of M/V  1,165  795  370  6.3  46.5  50.5   4 

M/V Interference  323  221  102  1.8  46.2  31.3   22 

Motor Vehicle Crime  2,528  2,025  503  13.8  24.8  21.4   21 

                          

Other Theft & Handling  2,122  2,220  ‐98  11.7  ‐4.4  0.3   25 

Theft from Shops  1,318  1,166  152  7.2  13.0  16.6   14 

Theft of Cycle  174  153  21  1.0  13.7  2.4   28 

Theft from Person  390  395  ‐5  2.1  ‐1.3  19.6   23 

Theft & Handling  4,004  3,934  70  21.8  1.8  7.0   24 

                          

Business Crime  1,979  3,400  ‐1421  10.9  ‐41.8  ‐31.2   15 

Serious Acquisitive Crime  4,113  3,554  559  22.6  15.7  12.9   22 

                          

Total Notifiable Offences  18,353  17,456  897  100  5.1  15.8   24 

 
  

                       

Page 95



Ki
 

2.3
 
Th
M
Lo
 
Sim
ca
cri
 
Th
Se
illn
se
Pe
lev
inc
Bo
in 
inc
ne
 
Th
re
Ha
ind
las
 
Ou
re
qu
in 
re
 
Fig
an
off
En
se
7 
Lo
da
sli
ha
 
W
co
At
wh
W
ta
T
w

P

P

V

N

t Weller 

3 Partnership

he data table 
etropolitan P
ondon (TfL), Lo

milar  to  the  c
tegory, nume
ime ranks aga

he  largest  vo
eptember  201
ness/injury  (6
rvices. The co
erformance ha
vel  of  anti‐so
cidents), with
orough of Hav
last year’s str
crease  of  17.
etwork); and t

he  final colum
sidents, and t
avering  in  the
dicator has  im
st year, and H

ur  rate  of  c
corded  matt
uartile  (at 25th

the  best‐pe
lating to assau

gure 2.3  show
nti‐social  beha
fences  in  H
ngland  and W
en  last year, 
ASB  inciden

ondon and En
amage  offenc
ghtly in Londo
as remained th

ithin London t
omparable res
ttitude Survey 
ho are concer
ales; despite t
ble 2.1. 
able 2.1. % of res
with each ASB typ

eople using or de

eople being drun

Vandalism, graffiti

Noisy neighbours 

p data summa

on the follow
olice  recorde
ondon Ambula

crime data  ta
erical and per
ainst the 32 Lo

lume  of  reco
17,  of  which 
627)  and Assa
olumns heade
as varied acro
ocial  behaviou
h  reductions a
vering howeve
rategic assess
2%  for  items
the MPS recor

mn  indicates w
there are sev
e worst posit
mproved to 5t

avering’s pos

combined  AS
ers)  remain 
h place  from 
erforming  qu
ults and gun/k

ws  the  rate p
aviour  inciden
avering,  all 

Wales.  The  ra
with Havering
nts  fewer  pe
gland and Wa
ces  recorded 
on (7.4, up fro
he same at 7.2

there is a disc
sponses from t
(July 2016 to 

rned about AS
the rate of inc

spondents saying
pe 

ealing drugs 

nk or rowdy in pu

i and other delibe

or loud parties 

H

ary 

wing page sho
ed crime data
ance Service (

able  in  section
rcentage chan
ondon boroug

ords  is  Anti‐S
5,710  were 
ault  Patients 
ed  ‘Variance’ 
oss categories 
ur  recorded  b
also  seen  in A
er meant that
ment. Overall
s which  fall  u
rded a 17.5% 

where Haverin
veral measure
ion  in  Londo
th place. Have
ition for crimi

SB  (for  polic
in  the  best
32), and Hav
artile  for  LA
/knife/weapon

er  thousand 
nts  and  crimi
London  bor

ates  are  simil
g again recor
er  1,000  res
ales. The rate
this  year  ha

om 7.2 last ye
2 offences pe

crepancy betw
the Crime Sur
June 2017); t

SB issues is sig
cidents record

g there is a 'very/f

blic places 

erate damage to 

Havering Co

ows the curren
  (abbreviated
(LAS) and Lond

n 2.2,  the  tab
nges over 12‐
ghs per thousa

Social  Behavio
logged  by  th
(tended  to  b
and  ‘Directio
and service a
by  the Metro
ASB  recorded
 the overall le
l criminal dam
under  their  re
increase in cri

ng ranks amo
s for which w
n  for  TfL  inci
ering’s positio
inal damage r

ce  and  TfL 
t‐performing 
ering  is also 
AS  incidents 
n injuries. 

residents of 
inal  damage 
roughs,  and 
ar  to  those 
ding around 
idents  than 
e of criminal 
as  increased 
ear) and Engla
r thousand po

ween percepti
rvey for Englan
he percentag
gnificantly high
ded in Haverin

fairly big problem

property 

 ommunity S

nt trends for 
d as MPS  in  t
don Fire Briga

ble  shows a v
‐month perio
and populatio

our  (ASB)  an
he Metropolit
by  LAS,  287) w
on of Travel 1
areas, althoug
opolitan  Polic
 by TfL and B
evel of ASB in
mage has redu
eporting  remi
iminal damag

ong the 32 Lo
we are  in the 
dents of  crim
on for crimina
recorded by B

and and Wales
opulation.     

ions of anti‐so
nd and Wales
e of responde
her than the p
ng being lowe

m in their area' 

Figure 2.3 Rat
and MPS Crim

Safety Partn

various partn
he  table), Bri
ade (LFB).  

variety of dat
ds,  short  term
on. 

nd  Disorder  w
tan  Police.  C
were  other m
12mnths’ high
h there have 
ce was  the  sa
BTP. A 48.3%
cidents record
uced over the 
it  (generally  d
ge to dwellings

ndon boroug
worst perfor

minal  damage
al damage to 
TP remains un

s (9.5 up from

ocial behaviou
s (to June 2017
ents from Hav
percentage of
er than for Eng

England & 
Wales 

             23 

             16 

             15 

             10 

te of offences/inc
me data

nership Stra

nership datase
tish Transpor

a  including  th
m direction o

with  6,033  re
riminal  Dama
major  volume
hlight changes
been reductio
ame  as  that 
increase  in A
ded in the bo
past year, (by
damage  at  st
s. 

hs  in terms o
ming quartile
e, however  th
vehicle has  im
nchanged from

m 9.3 last year

ur and reporti
7) and the Me
vering and the
f respondents 
gland and Wa

London 

57 

47 

37 

31 

cidents per 1,000

ategic Asses

ets  in Haverin
rt Police  (BTP

he volume of
of  travel and h

ecords  in  the
age  (1,770),  A
e  contributors
s  in  the previ
ons shown in 
seen  last  yea
ASB  recorded
rough was 26
y 13.8%) howe
tations  or  to 

of rate of  inci
e. Last year’s a
his  year our p
mproved by t
m 7th place. 

r), while the ra

ng levels. Wh
etropolitan Po
e Metropolitan
 concerned in
les, as shown

Havering 

53 

37 

34 

28 

0 residents by ca

ssment 2017

ng. This  includ
P), Transport  f

f  crime  for ea
how  the  rate 

e  12‐months 
Alcohol  Relat
s  to  Partnersh
ous 12‐mont
most areas. T
ar  (seven  few
d by  the Lond
6.8% higher th
ever BTP saw 
part  of  the  r

dents per 1,0
assessment sa
position  for  t
two places sin

ate for Haveri

en examining
olice Public 
n Police area 
n England and 
 by examples 

tegory, Iquanta 

87 

des 
for 

ach 
of 

to 
ted 
hip 
hs. 
The 
wer 
don 
han 
an 
rail 

000 
aw 
his 
nce 

ing 

g 

in 

Page 96



 

Kit Weller 
 

9Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Source: Metropolitan Police Recorded Crime & ASB, London Analyst Support Site (BTP, LAS, LFB, TfL Data Sets) 
  
 

Oct‐16 to 
Sep‐17 

Oct‐15 to 
Sep‐16 

Variance 
15/16 to 
16/17 

% Change 
(Oct‐Sep 16‐17 
vs Oct‐Sep 15‐

16) 

% Change 
(Oct‐Sep 16‐17 
vs Oct‐Sep 14‐

15) 

Direction of 
Travel 

12mnths 

Rank of 
Rate 

London 
(1=worst) 

ASB & Disorder (BTP)  71  97  ‐26  ‐26.8  ‐29.7   16 

ASB (MPS)  5,710  5,717  ‐7  ‐0.1  22.8    24 

ASB & Disorder (TfL)  252  379  ‐127  ‐33.5  ‐35.1   18 

ASB & Disorder  6,033  6,193  ‐160  ‐2.6  17.4    25 

Environmental ASB (LB Havering)  12,574  8,479  4095  48.3  52.9   N/A 

ASB Total (inc. authority)  18,607  14,672  3935  26.8  39.2   N/A 

                   

Criminal Damage (BTP)  68  58  10  17.2  83.8    7 

Criminal Damage (TfL)  62  165  ‐103  ‐62.4  ‐51.6    5 

Damage to Dwelling (MPS)  382  325  57  17.5  14.0    18 

Damage to Vehicle (MPS)  810  859  ‐49  ‐5.7  16.5    7 

Damage Other (MPS)  448  647  ‐199  ‐30.8  ‐23.4    19 

Criminal Damage  1,770  2,054  ‐284  ‐13.8  ‐0.6    16 

                   

Robbery  4  4  0  0.0  100.0    21 

Sexual Offences  13  14  ‐1  ‐7.1  116.7    21 

Theft  77  92  ‐15  ‐16.3  0.0    22 

Violence  101  93  8  8.6  42.3    20 

Other Notifiable  8  72  ‐64  ‐88.9  ‐68.0    22 

British Transport Police*  271  275  67  ‐1.5  24.3    19 

                   

Alcohol Related   627  1,551  ‐924  ‐59.6  ‐60.0    23 

Assaults  287  894  ‐607  ‐67.9  ‐63.7    27 

Gun/Knife/Weapon Injury  40  43  ‐3  ‐7.0  ‐20.0    28 

London Ambulance Service  954  2,445  ‐1491  ‐61.0  ‐60.4    25 

                   

Deliberate Fires (Primary)  61  69  ‐8  ‐11.6  8.9    6 

Deliberate Fires (Secondary)  111  115  ‐4  ‐3.5  ‐7.5    3 

London Fire Brigade  172  184  ‐12  ‐6.5  ‐2.3    4 

                   

Fraud  109  159  ‐50  ‐31.4  ‐40.4    22 

Robbery  2  0  2  ‐  0.0    16 

Theft  6  5  1  20.0   ‐      14 

Violence  24  38  ‐14  ‐36.8  ‐41.5    11 

Transport for London*  203  367  ‐226  ‐25.7  ‐42.7    20 

               

 
*Includes criminal damage recorded by respective organisations 
   

Page 97



 

Kit Weller 
 

10Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

2.4 Reoffending, detections and outcomes data 
 
Previous Strategic Assessments examined  reoffending  rates, as provide by  the Ministry of  Justice. This  information  is no 
longer provided by the Ministry, so does not feature in the year’s document. 

 
Sanctioned Detections   
 
The table below shows the proportion of crimes by category which resulted in a sanctioned detection. Most crime recorded 
by police in Havering, London and nationally goes undetected. Overall in Havering, less than 2 in 10 crimes were detected 
between April 2016 and March 2017. While there are many rates which are worse than last year, there is a positive in the 
detection rate for sexual offences increasing.  
 
Although rates seem low, they are not dissimilar to those calculated for all crimes across London. There are only two of the 
seven categories shown below  in which we perform worse than the London rate;  in three we are within one percentage 
point  of  the  London  rate;  and  in  the  aforementioned  sexual  offences  and  robbery  categories  we  have  a  sanctioned 
detection rate which is noticeably higher than the London rate.  
 
Source: Metropolitan Police Internal ‘Borough Scanning’ Dashboard 

 
2016‐17 
Financial 
Year % 

2015‐16 
Financial 
Year % 

2014‐15 
Financial 
Year % 

Change % 
Points 

(16‐17 vs. 15‐16) 

Change % 
Points 

(16‐17 vs. 14‐15) 

Compared 
against London 
Av. % Rate 
16/17 

Violence Against the Person  19.9  22.2  27.2  ‐2.3  ‐7.3  Similar (20.4%) 

Sexual Offences  17.6  14.4  14.3  +3.2  +3.3  Better (14.4%) 

Robbery   14.1  16.9  26.1  ‐2.8  ‐12.0  Better (9.2%) 

Burglary  5.2  11.2  9.5  ‐6.0  ‐4.3  Worse (6.6%) 

Theft & Handling  7.3  8.9  12.8  ‐1.6  ‐3.5  Similar (7.1%) 

Criminal Damage  11.4  13.0  10.8  ‐1.6  +0.6  Worse (12.5%) 

Total Notifiable Offences  16.2  18.1  20.3  ‐1.9  ‐4.1  Similar (16.7) 

 
   

Page 98



Ki
 

2.5
 
In 
th
ha
eff
cri
to 
by
co
Ha
th
tim
cu
be
su
ha
lon
op
se
th

ac
ar
 
Th
cu
of 
 
Fig
ac
typ
ha
me
 
Th
ex
re
of 
ag
sy
‘ot
sco
Co
typ
ca
ind
fac
wo
sh
ind
we
CR
ind
fro
dif

t Weller 

5 Crime Harm

previous  Str
e  Cambridge
as been used 
fect  caused b
ime by applyi
allow  the  le

y  each  type
ompared.  The
arm  Index bas
e minimum n
me  offender 
stodial  sente
eing  that  mor
ch  as  murd
arm, and aggr
nger  senten
ptions  for  c
rious assault 
an  a  shoplif

knowledged 
e examined. 

his year,  the O
stodial senten
time it would

gure 2.4 show
count for 38.
pes  in Haveri
arm rating. Th
ethod. 

he ONS harm 
xample  66  dif
corded on  th
these were  t

ggregated  cat
stem,  such 
ther theft’ in o
ore  to  be  c
omparing  the
pes  taken  f
tegories  ava
dex  is  not  a
ctors  such as 
ording  affect
ould  be  co
dex.  In  partic
ere  not  easy
RIS  figure  to 
dex; with  the
om CRIS not a
fferences cau

m Index 

rategic  Assess
e  Crime  Harm
to demonstr
by different  ty
ng a common
evel  of  harm 
e  of  crime 
e  Cambridge 
sed  its weigh
umber of day
could  receiv

ence;  with  th
re  harmful  o
er,  grievous 
ravated burgla
nces  availab
ourts;  and 
has a greate
fting  so  sho

as more harm

Office of Nati
nce options; c
d take to comp

ws  the non‐se
9% of all harm
ng; with griev
he other crime

system conta
fferent  fraud 
e CRIS system
therefore pla
tegories  on  t
as  ‘other  fra
order to allow
calculated  for
e  totals  of 
from  CRIS,  a
ailable  on  th
a  simple  tas
minor differe

ting  where  a
unted  on  th
cular,  sexual 
y  to  convert 
a  count  on  t
e  classification
allowing the t
sed by ages o

H

sments, 
m  Index 
ate  the 
ypes of 
n factor 
caused 
to  be 
  Crime 
ting on 
ys a first 
ve  as  a 
he  logic 
offences 
bodily 

ary had 
ble  as 
that  a 
r effect 
ould  be 

mful when  cr

ional Statistics
converting com
plete the com

erious violenc
m caused in H
vous bodily ha
es  in figure 2

ains a rating f
offences.  In 

m. Some 
ced  into 
the  ONS 
aud,’  or 
w a harm 
r  these. 
offence 

and  the 
he  ONS 
sk,  with 
ences  in 
a  crime 
he  ONS 
offences 
from  a 

the  ONS 
ns  taken 
technical 
of victims 

Havering Co

ime  figures 

s has develop
mmunity (serv

mmunity order

ce crimes whi
Havering. The
arm having be
.4 represent 2

for 248 offenc
Havering  ove

 ommunity S

Figure 2.4 Cat

ped an additi
vice) orders a
r; or the amou

ich account  fo
e crimes show
een removed
25% of crime

ces; although 
er  the  assess

Safety Partn

tegories of Crime

onal weightin
and penalty fin
unt of time it w

or  just under 
wn are the fift
 to demonstr
es by volume, 

many of thes
sment  period

nership Stra

 as a percentage

ng method wh
nes into a tim
would take to

75% of crime
een most pro
rate how non
but 61.1% of

se are variatio
  there were 

ategic Asses

e of total recorde

hich  takes  int
e value based
o earn the cos

es  in Haverin
ominent non‐s
‐violent crime
f harm accord

ons on a type
332  differen

ssment 2017

ed crime

to account no
d on the amou
t of a fine. 

g. These crim
serious violen
es carry a  low
ding to the O

e of offence, f
t  offence  typ

117 

on‐
unt 

mes 
nce 
wer 
ONS 

for 
pes 

Page 99



 

Kit Weller 
 

12Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

and suspects to be easily captured. For this reason, sexual offences have been grouped together on figure 2.5 rather than 
displaying the 11 separate offence types which were recorded over the assessment period.  
 
Using the ONS index, in Havering, residential burglary is the single most harmful type of crime, accounting for 16% of the 
harm  caused  by  crime;  with  all  other  types  of  burglary  offences  –  aggravated,  attempts,  artifice,  and  business  and 
community  crimes, accounting  for a  further 9% of harm  from all  crimes. The  two  categories of GBH offence have been 
aggregated for the purpose of the graph, and  in this form account for 13% of all harm. While this may sound  low for an 
offence  in which serious  injury  is caused, the offence of GBH without  intent carries a relatively  low weighting on the ONS 
index (333), and the scores applied to crime in Havering have been calculated based on how matters are recorded on CRIS, 
for which there are only 109 GBH with intent offences compared with 534 without intent offences. While officers can only 
classify  the crime based on  the circumstances  they encounter and are often not  in a position  to know  the perpetrator’s 
intent; if a greater number of the GBH’s recorded had been classified as a with intent offence then it would have increased 
the  proportion  of  harm  caused  by GBH  as  calculated  using  this  system.  Residential  burglary  carries  a  score  of  438,  so 
multiplied by in excess of a thousand offences which occurred, gives the largest numerical harm score. 
 
The information shown above confirms the relevance of the priorities to which the CSP are already working, in which non‐
domestic violence with injury and burglary have been selected as our two discretionary priorities in addition to those set by 
the Mayor of London. 
 
One significant aspect of Partnership work which this system cannot consider is non‐crime anti‐social behaviour. Although 
ASB isn't considered to be a serious crime, persistent ASB can result in significant harm to certain individuals if the actions 
of perpetrator actions are targeted against them; or towards groups who may perceive general behaviour as intimidating or 
distressing.    

Page 100



Ki
 

3.
 
Th
an
 

3.
 
Th
pr

 
3.1

sit
pe
Th
be
of 
gro
14
 
Ta
wh
av
da
 
Th
pr
Ro
re
 
 
 

t Weller 

 Communit

he following s
nd anti‐social b

1 Victims an

his  section  ide
operties and 

1.1 Age, gend

tting above th
eak ages  for v
hose aged 15 t
eing higher th
crime and lo
oup  in Haver
43).  

able 3.1 below
hich contribut
verage index s
ata).  

he most  vulne
edominant ag
obbery highlig
corded robbe

Age pro

ty safety pr

ections give a
behaviour inc

nd targets 

entifies  those
products whic

der and ethnic

he ‘100’ line b
victims are m
to 42 are at t
an 150, mean
cation as will 
ing, rising qu

w shows the m
te to a dispro
scores exceed

erable  age  g
ge  range high
ghts  the 12‐2
ery victims des

H

ofile of vict

roblems 

a broad overv
cidents across 

e people who
ch are most so

city 

etween these
mid 20’s and e
he greatest ri
ning they are 1
be discussed
ickly  from un

most vulnerab
portionate sh
 150, one‐and

group  row  hig
hlights where 
2  ages  as be
spite making u

Havering Co

tims in Have

view of all vic
Havering. 

o  are most  vu
ought after by

e ages (with th
early 30’s, wit
isk of becomin
1.5 times mor
 below. In the
derrepresent

ble age groups
are of crime i
d‐a‐half times

ghlights  the  b
the greatest 
ing most  vuln
up just over 1

 ommunity S

ering

ctims and targ

ulnerable  to  c
y offenders in

he population
th victimisatio
ng victims of 
re likely to be
e last 12‐mon
ation at age 

s for violent c
in comparison
s more at risk 

broad  age  ra
t percentage v
nerable,  and 
12% of Haverin

Safety Partn

gets, offender

crime  and AS
 Havering.  

n index score s
on  rates decli
crime in Have
e a victim than
nths the index
13  (score of 9

crime categori
n to their shar
than if they w

anges  whereb
volume of vic
this  age  grou
ng’s populatio

nership Stra

rs, places and

SB, or  alterna

 
Figur
of  vi
the v
repo
by  v
score
of  v
equa
age 
the 
equa
whic
repre
refer
score
over
score
unde
 

Have
victim
demo

shown on the
ining as age  i
ering generally
n average). Th
x score has inc
91), to overre

ies. Here, ‘vul
re of the tota
were represen

by  victims  are
ctims are  reco
up  accounts  f
on. 

ategic Asses

d  locations of 

atively where 

re 3.1  shows 
ictims  in Hav
victim age on
orts  from  Oct
volume  and p
e, whereby if
victims  of  a 
al to the perc
in  question 
whole  po

ates to an ind
ch  is  taken 
esentation, 
rred to as ave
e  above  100
rrepresentatio
e  below  100
errepresentat

Those  ag
ering are ove
ms  of 
onstrated  by
e right side of 
increases bey
y (based on t
his may howev
creased withi
epresentation

lnerable’ refe
l Havering po
nted proportio

e  at  greater 
orded. For ex
for  approxima

ssment 2017

crime, disord

relevant,  tho

the  age prof
ering  (based 
 recorded crim
t‐16  to  Sep‐1
opulation  ind
the percenta
certain  age

centage that t
contributes 

opulation,  t
ex score of 10
as  proportion
which  can 
erage. Any ind
  equates  to 
on,  and  a
  equates  to 
tion.  

ged  13  to  55
rrepresented 
crime, 

y  the  red  li
the graph).  T
yond  this grou
heir index sco
ver vary by ty
n the 14‐17 a
n at 14  (score

rs to those ag
pulation (whe
onately in vict

risk,  whilst  t
xample Person
ately 50% of 

137 

der 

ose 

file 
on 
me 
17) 
dex 
age 
is 

the 
to 
his 
00, 
nal 
be 
dex 
an 
any 
an 

  in 
as 
as 
ine 
The 
up. 
ore 
ype 
age 
 of 

ges 
ere 
tim 

the 
nal 
all 

Page 101



 

Kit Weller 
 

14Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

 

 
Since last year there have been some changes in the most vulnerable age groups for violent crimes. The upper age of the 
most‐vulnerable  range  for  serious  wounding,  and  violence  without  injury  has  increased  by  eight  years  and  six  years 
respectively, meaning that a disproportionate amount of people in their early‐to‐mid thirties are suffering such crimes. 
 
The upper age of the most‐vulnerable group identified for sexual offences has decreased from 30 to 24. Those aged 12 to 
18 are shown as being between 1.8 and seven times more at risk than average. Separate research has shown various social 
media, games, and other online apps to contribute to a significant amount of sexual offences, which often take place on‐
line and could perhaps be tackled through educating both the age groups suffering, and parents who may not understand 
the full nature of the threat.  
 
Excluding domestic abuse, over half of all violence, robbery and sexual offence victims are aged 10‐29 despite accounting 
for just under a quarter of Havering residents. For robbery the largest single age group affected is those aged 13‐20 (50% of 
victims), who are anything between 1.8 and 9.8 times more likely to be a victim than average. 
 
Table 3.2 provides similar information on victim ages for property and acquisitive crime categories within Havering.  
 
Table 3.2 Vulnerable groups and ages for selected property / acquisitive offences in Havering (based on Metropolitan Police Crime 
Recording Information System/CRIS data rolling 12‐months to September 2017) 

Crime Type 
Burglary 

(residential) 
Criminal Damage  Other Theft 

Theft from 
Person 

Vehicle Crime 
(Theft from) 

Vehicle Crime 
(Theft of) 

Most vulnerable 
age (Index Score) 

29‐42  30‐49  19‐33   21‐32  30‐39  21‐40 

Predominant age 
range (% of 
victims) 

29‐42 / 53+ 
(29% / 39%) 

30‐49 
(47%) 

19‐33 
(33%) 

21‐32 / 79‐86 
(25% / 10%) 

25‐34 
(23%) 

21‐40 
(50%) 

 
Other theft and theft from person categories have a much less distinct pattern of risk compared to the other types of crime. 
Theft person has higher proportions of victims between 18 and 34, and there are other age groups in the fifties, sixties, and 
seventies which are visible as accounting for a higher proportion of victims than average. 
 
The majority  of  residential  burglary  victims  are  between  their  early  twenties  and mid‐sixties;  however  the  age  group 
experiencing a disproportionate amount of this are those between their late twenties and mid‐fifties. This may be the age 
group most  likely  to  be working  residents;  following  regular  daily  routines  and  leaving  properties  unattended  for  the 
majority of the day.  
 
The predominant age groups for both theft from and theft of motor vehicles are relatively young. For theft from victims in 
the predominant age group, the majority of cars stolen from were less than 10 years old (52%). Cars that were three years 
old accounted for the highest proportion of thefts from a vehicle; 8% of the total. The types of property most frequently 
taken  from  the  cars  in  this age group were  tools/hand  tools  (17%),  followed by other property  (9%), Credit Cards/Cash 
Cards  (7%)  and  Currency  (6%).   It  is  likely  that  these  types  of  property  are  being  left  in  cars  overnight  or  unattended, 
consequently attracting thieves. 
 
Regarding theft of vehicle offences, and the predominant victim range of 21 to 40, 74% of vehicles reported as stolen by this 
age group were  less than 10 years old; with the highest proportion of cars being only two years (14% of total) and three 
years old (13% of total). The most common make of car to be reported as stolen was a ‘Ford Fiesta’, accounting for 52%.  

Table 3.1 Vulnerable groups and ages for violent and personal crime categories in Havering (based on Metropolitan Police Crime 
Recording Information System/CRIS data rolling 12‐months to September 2017) 

Crime Type 
Domestic 
Abuse 

Violence With 
Injury (Non 

DV) 

Serious 
Wounding  

Violence 
without Injury 

Personal 
Robbery 

Sexual 
Offences 

Hate 
Crime 

Most vulnerable 
age (Index 
Score) 

19‐44  12‐23  18‐36  13‐36  12‐22  12‐24  21‐39 

Predominant 
age range (% of 

victims) 

19‐44 
(68%) 

12‐30 
(55%) 

18‐36 
(59%) 

13‐36 
(54%) 

12‐22 
(57%) 

12‐28 
(53%) 

21‐39 
(45%) 

Page 102



Ki
 

Fig
br
ge
ca
Ha
re
No
ar
do
ma
cri
in 
un
ma
vio
ar
an
W
off
ab
vic
ar
in 
pe
im
wo
 
La
M
74
 

t Weller 

gure  3.2 
eakdown  of
ender  for 
tegories  of
avering  (wher
corded).  Of
otifiable  Offe
e  not  ma
omestic  abu
ales  are  victim
imes compare

41%. 
nderstandable
ajority  of 
olence  agains
e male, along
nd  motor  ve
hen  cons
fences marke
buse, females 
ctims  in 77% 
e also predom
other  thefts 

erson  (71%) a
mbalance  in do
omen and girl

st year, other
ales were vic
4% of robberie

Victim

provides  a
f  victims  by
  selected
f  crime  in
re a gender  is
f  the  Tota
fences  which
arked  as  a
use  incident
ms  in  59%  of
ed  to  females

This  is
e  when  the
victims  of

st  the  person
g with robbery
ehicle  crimes
idering  al
d as domestic
are shown as
of  these, and
minantly victim
(54%),  other
nd  sexual off
omestic abuse
ls. 

r theft person 
tims  in 68% o
es last year to

m Self‐Defin

H

a 
y 
d 
n 
s 
l 
h 
a 
, 
f 
s 
s 
e 
f 
n 
y 
. 
l 
c 
s 
d 
ms 
r  theft 
fences  (84%). 
e and sexual 

crimes were 
of serious wo
 80% this yea

Ge

ed Ethnicity
Notifia

Havering Co

In  last year’s
offence matt

imbalanced a
unding  last ye
r.  

ender of vic

y by percen
ble Offence

 ommunity S

s assessment,
ters demonstr

at the same ra
ear compared

ctims in Hav

ntage of Ha
es

Safety Partn

,  females we
rate the  impo

ate as this yea
d to 69% this 

vering by pe
victim

vering Tota

nership Stra

re victims  in 
ortance of wo

r, with female
year; and ma

Se
re
co
po
su
or
gr
sh
Ha
th
et
po
ac
Th
re
in 
ac
vic
un
to
of
 
Th
Ha
un

ercentage s
ms

al 

ategic Asses

89% of  sexua
ork to tackle v

es comprising
ales  increased

elf‐defined  e
efers  to  how
oming  into 
olice,  either 
uspect, descri
rigin  from  o
roupings.  Fig
hows  a  b
avering  victim
heir  SDE, 
thnicity  of 
opulation 
ccording to th
he  largest  eth
eport being a 
 Havering  are
ccounting  fo
ctims, 
nderrepresen
otal resident p
f 83.3%. 

here  are  no 
avering  whic
nderrepresen

split and nu

ssment 2017

al offences. T
violence again

g 71% of victim
d from sufferi

ethnicity  (SD
w  an  individu

contact  w
as  a  victim
bes their eth
one  of  sixte
gure  3.3  (le
breakdown 
ms  of  crime
compared 
the  gene

in  Haveri
he 2011 Cens
hnic  group w
victim of crim
e White  Briti
or  71.2% 

margina
ted  against 
population sha

communities 
ch  are  nota
ted  as  victi

umber of 

157 

The 
nst 

ms. 
ing 

DE) 
ual 

with 
or 
nic 
een 
eft) 
of 
by 
to 

eral 
ing 
us. 

who 
me 
sh, 
of 

ally 
a 

are 

in 
bly 
ms 

Page 103



 

Kit Weller 
 

16Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

for total notifiable crime; however, there are disparities when  looking at specific categories of crime  (see Table 3.3). For 
example, White British or White Other communities were significantly underrepresented for hate crimes.  
 
Communities which were overrepresented as victims of total notifiable crime  in Havering  included Other Black (over four 
times more  likely  to be a  victim  than  the percentage of  the population would  suggest); Bangladeshi  (three  times more 
likely); Other Asian (nearly three times more likely); and Pakistani (two and a half times more likely). All Black and Minority 
Ethnic Communities in Havering were overrepresented as victims of hate crimes, whilst Asian or Asian British communities 
were overrepresented as victims of all categories of crime  in Havering (see Table 3.3). Asian or Asian British communities 
were also disproportionately at risk for all crime types in last year’s assessment. This year, the risk has increased for Asian 
or Asian British groups for all crime types, with the risk of hate crime increasing from nine times the population index last 
year, to nearly fifteen times the population index this year. 
 
Black and Black British communities have seen a  reduction  in  the  risk of becoming a victim of sexual offences,  from 1.8 
times the population index last year, to 0.7 of the index rate this year. Victims describing themselves as of mixed ethnicity 
have seen a reduction in the likelihood of being a victim of hate crime. In last year’s assessment, Mixed Ethnicity groups saw 
a hate crime risk of two times the population index, compared to a rate which demonstrates slight over‐representation this 
year (a score of 108, where a score of 100 would represent the proportion of the population being equal to the proportion 
of victims). 
 
Table  3.3 Victim  Index  Score  by  crime  and  ethnic  group  in Havering  (based  on Metropolitan  Police  Crime  Recording  Information 
System/CRIS  data  rolling  12‐months  to  September  2017)  – White  Black  Asian Mixed  only, which  account  for  98.8%  of  Havering 
residents. 

Ethnic Group / Crime Type 

B
u
rg
la
ry
 

C
ri
m
in
al
 

D
am

ag
e 

R
o
b
b
er
y 

Se
xu
al
 

O
ff
en

ce
s 

O
th
er
 T
h
ef
t 

Th
ef
t 

P
er
so
n
 

V
eh

ic
le
 

C
ri
m
e
 

V
io
le
n
ce
 

To
ta
l 

N
o
ti
fi
ab
le
 

D
o
m
es
ti
c 

A
b
u
se
 

H
at
e
 C
ri
m
e
 

Asian or Asian British   355  526  656 267 472 303 312 347  234  287 1479
Black or Black British  91  122  117 67 147 120 146 198  150  159 521
Mixed   44  62  121 229 56 55 29 111  76  76 108
White British or Other  96  93  87 108 88 95 94 89  91  95 42

 
3.1.2 Repeat Victimisation 
 
The highest levels of repeat victimisation in Havering, as identifiable from recorded crime data, are experienced by business 
and retail venues. Those businesses which were most likely to report thefts were larger national and regional stores, such 
as supermarkets and well‐known high street chains. These businesses are more  likely  to have  the means  to  identify and 
report  crime –  such as CCTV and  security guards. Smaller businesses,  including  local  shops and  convenience  stores, are 
likely to lack the presence of a guardian such as CCTV, security guards, or electronic tagging, to detect offences taking place. 
 
It should be noted that the British Retail Consortium 2016 survey estimates that 75% of crime experienced by respondents 
are customer theft, followed by fraud at 18%, and violence at 4%. The survey acknowledges that the upwards trend in theft 
relates to both the capacity of the UK police service to respond, and the impact of international organised criminal groups, 
who carry out bulk thefts, fraudulent payments, and trolley push‐outs. For a breakdown of such victims / targets of crime in 
Havering, please refer to the sub‐section Risky Facilities, and analysis of items stolen in the next section. 
 
Figure 3.4 provides a breakdown of Repeat Victims data for Havering in the 12‐month period to September 2017. Domestic 
Abuse is the area of crime whereby victims are most likely to have reported a repeat offence. Between October 2016 and 
September 2017 an average of 28.8% of Domestic Abuse victims had suffered an  incident of domestic abuse within  the 
previous twelve months. The average number of previous  incidents suffered by each repeat victim varied between 3.6 at 
the highest and 2.0 at the  lowest – with the figure of 2.0 corresponding with a month when an exceptionally  low level of 
domestic abuse was experienced by the borough, with the number of previous incidents typically between 2.6 and 3.0. 
Anti‐Social Behaviour was the second highest category in terms of repeat victimisation, with 10.4% of callers being repeat 
callers in Havering. Crimes such as Burglary (1.5%), and Robbery (1.4%) had very low reported rates of repeat victimisation. 
 
Havering had an overall repeat victimisation rate of 15.6% which was above the London average of 12.5%, and ranked 2nd 

e  

Page 104



Ki
 

3.1
 
Th
th
of 
La
 
Ta
pe
jew
va
ind
 
In 
pe
pr
off
 
Cr
an
inc
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

t Weller 

1.3 Hot Produ

here have bee
e most freque
burglary whe
ptop compute

able 3.4 gives 
ercentage for 
wellery was t
riety of crime
dividual offen

Havering, the
erson  offence
edominantly 
fences).  

edit cards (fr
nd burglary of 
cluded a num

Re

ucts / CRAVED

en significant 
ently stolen p
ere once freq
ers and jewel

a broad overv
each crime ty
aken  in 24% 
e types, for ex
nce types.  

e most freque
es),  jewellery
in  burglary  n

om personal 
f non‐domestic
ber of credit c

epeat Victim

H

D items (Conc

changes in th
product, and t
uently taken 
lery. 

view of the ty
ype relates to
of burglary d
xample curren

ently stolen p
y  (taken  pred
non‐dwelling 

thefts and th
c buildings) ar
card thefts. 

misation Ra

Havering Co

cealable, Rem

e longer term
here is more 
items such as

ypes of items 
o the proport
welling offen
ncy is one of th

products are m
dominantly  i
offences  and

eft person off
re items which

ate (%) by C

 ommunity S

movable, Avail

m regarding th
desire than e
s TVs, Deskto

most commo
tion of crimes
ces and 7% o
he most crave

mobile phone
n  burglary  d
  theft  from m

ffences) and h
h have increa

Crime/ASB T

Safety Partn

able, Valuabl

he types of ite
ever for more 
p Computers 

only stolen ac
s  in which the
of all acquisiti
ed items; bein

es (taken  large
dwelling  and
motor  vehicle

handheld pow
sed in popula

Type

nership Stra

high
Boro
Bark
repe
16.2
12.8
Abu
majo
an a
per 
mon
com
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

e, Enjoyable, 

ems stolen. M
portable item
and Stereos h

ross selected 
e stated prope
ve crimes. So
ng the second 

ely  in other th
street  robb

es)  and  comp

wer tools (from
rity in recent 

ategic Asses

hest  of  the
oughs,  behin
king & Dagen
eat  victim  rat
2%,  against  a 
8%. As  highlig
se victims ac
ority  of  repe
average of 108
month  in Ha
nth  for  all oth
mbined).  

 and Disposab

Mobile phones
ms, noted part
have now bee

crime types i
erty was take
ome  items are
 most stolen 

heft, street ro
bery  offences
uters  (taken 

m thefts from
years, and ‘th

ssment 2017

e  32  Lond
d  neighbouri
ham. Haverin
te  last  year w
London  rate 

ghted, Domes
counted  for  t
at  victims, w
8 repeat victi
vering  (127 p
her  crime  typ

ble) 

s continue to 
ticularly in shi
en overtaken 

in Havering. T
en. For examp
e taken across
item across fo

obbery and th
s);  tools  (tak
during  burgla

m motor vehic
heft of mail’ a

177 

don 
ing 
g’s 
was 
of 

stic 
the 
with 
ms 
per 
pes 

be 
ifts 
by 

The 
ple, 
s a 
our 

eft 
ken 
ary 

cles 
lso 

Page 105



Ki
 

 

 
As
to
Ap
wh
sto
sto
Ap
co
 

 
 
Fig
Fo
14
Of
th
 
Th
sto

F

t Weller 

Tab

Crime Ty

Burglary (Hou

Burglary (Non‐D

Other The

Street Rob

Theft from M
Vehicle

Theft from P

Theft from S

Total of Acqu
Offence

s shown  in Fig
tal. The secon
pple accounte
hereas this ye
olen. Of intere
olen less than
pple and Sams
onscious effort

gure 3.6 below
ord models we
4% of the UK v
f those, Ford 
e 180 Merced

here is a signif
olen being mo

Figure 3.5 Mob

ble 3.4 Type of 

ype 

usehold) 

Dwelling) 

efts 

bbery 

Motor 
es 

Person 

Shops 

uisitive 
es 

gure 3.5, App
nd most‐stole
ed for 45% an
ear Nokia is th
est is the pop
n the older iPh
sung product
t on the part o

w show the m
ere notably o
vehicle marke
Fiestas, and T
des vehicles st

ficant represe
otorcycles or 

bile Phone mak

H

Property Stole

1st 

Jewellery 

24% 

Tools 

14% 

Petrol 

16% 

Mobile Phone 

17% 

Tools 

25% 

Credit Card 

24% 

Foodstuff  

13% 

Currency 

10% 

ple  iPhones ac
n brand is Sam
d Samsung 25
e third most s
ularity of olde
hone 6. The s
s  it may be th
of criminals to

most common
overrepresent
t share, comp
Transit vans w
tolen were als

entation of po
mopeds; and 

kes stolen in Ha

Havering Co

n by Crime Typ

2n

Curre

9%

Curre

10

Credit

13

Curre

16

VRM Plate

13

Curre

16

Cloth

10

Mobile 

7%

ccount for the
msung, with 1
5%.  HTC, Nok
stolen make, a
er models, an
same can be s
he case that t
o target these

nly targeted v
ed as a targe
pared with Va
were the most
so variants of 

owered two‐w
Sym (Sanyan

avering, MPS CR

 ommunity S

pe, Havering Oc
nd 

ency 
La

% 

ency 
Lap

0% 

t Card 

3% 

ency 

6% 

es 

3% 

ency 

6% 

hing 

0% 

Phone 

% 

e vast majorit
19.8% of item
kia, and Sony 
at 4%, with al
d although th
seen with the
there are a  la
e older items.

vehicles for th
et, accounting
uxhall’s 11% o
t commonly t
their van rang

wheel vehicles
g Motor Co) a

RIS Data 12‐mo

Safety Partn

ct‐16 to Sep‐17

3rd 

Computers / 
ptops/ Console

7% 

Computers / 
ptops / Console

6% 

Currency 

11% 

Credit Card 

9% 

Credit Cards 

6% 

Mobile Phone

14% 

Cosmetics 

10% 

Petrol 

6% 

ty of mobile h
ms. This has se
accounted fo
l other brand
he iPhone 7 w
e Samsung S8
arger number
 

heft of (TO) an
 for 37% of T
of the market
taken; 263 an
ge. 

s in the theft o
and Lexmoto

onths to Sep‐17

nership Stra

7 (Metropolitan

4t

es 
Credit 

6%

es 
Pedal 

6%

Mobile 

11%

Hand

8%

Curre

5%

Pur

14%

Alco

9%

Credit 

9%

handsets stole
en a change o
r 5% each las
s each compr
as released in
(released Ap
older phones

nd theft from 
TO and 34% o
, and Volkswa
d 174 of the 

of list; with 13
brands featur

7

ategic Asses

n Police CRIS Da
th 

t Card 

% 

Cycle 

% 

Phone 

% 

dbag 

% 

ency 

% 

rse  D

% 

ohol 

% 

t Card 

% 

en  in Haverin
of share since
st year with B
rising less than
n mid‐Septem
ril 2017); alth
s  in circulatio

m (TF) motor v
of TF; despite 
agen’s 9%.  
577 Fords res

37 of the 146
ring alongside

ssment 2017

ata) 

5th 

Mobile Phone

3% 

Alcohol 

2% 

Purse/Wallet 

6% 

Jewellery 

6% 

Sat Nav 

3% 

Driving Licence

6% 

 

 

Jewellery 

7% 

ng; 60.1% of t
e last year, wh
lackberry at 4
n 2% of the to
ber 2016, it w
hough with bo
n, rather than

vehicle offenc
only making 

spectively. 98

6 Honda vehic
e the more we

187 

the 
hen 
4%; 
otal 
was 
oth 
n a 

 

es. 
up 

 of 

cles 
ell‐

Page 106



Ki
 

kn
sto
th
fro
cri

A 
re
ma
an
wh
 
W
Oc
po
su
ite
ma
th
Cr
 
3.1
 
Th
co
int
int
do
loc
 
M
vio
be
ho
inc
 
Th

F

t Weller 

nown makes o
olen‐from bei
e single‐large
om a vehicle)
imes, followed

related area f
sponsible for 
anifest thems
nd not being p
hich have phy

hen searching
ctober  2016  t
ossession  of  a
pplying an ar
ems  found du
ajority of onli
ey have prev
rime Survey of

1.4 Risky facil

he venue at w
onclusions. The
to  the  five  ‘l
terpretations 
o  not  have  ac
cation type be

ost crime  in H
olence (dome
e carried out v
ome  address)
cluding parks 

he  level of acq

Figure 3.6 Vehi

of Yamaha an
ing van mode
est group bein
 are not disp
d by Mercede

for which data
taking report
selves in crime
policed in the 
ysically occurr

g CRIS to asce
to  Septembe
an  article  for 
rticle for use i
uring a search
ne or telepho
viously provid
f England and 

lities and env

which a crime 
e information
ocation  types
of the catego
ccess’  has  bee
elongs in.  

Havering  is re
estic violence 
via malicious 
. Over  a  third
for example),

quisitive crime

icle makes stole

Ma

H

d Suzuki. For 
els. Vauxhall v
ng their van ra
played below, 
es (30); Honda

a is not availa
ts of fraud fo
e figures for in
 same sense t
ed within the 

ertain the leve
er  2017  perio
use  in  fraud 
in fraud (7 cri
h on  the stree
one scams. Ac
ed, however 
Wales releas

vironments 

occurs can b
n in Table 3.5 h
s’  shown  bel
ories from pre
en  added  thi

ecorded as oc
for example),
communicati
d  (36%)  of  cr
, and this has 

es occurring  i

en/stolen from

ake of Vehi

Havering Co

thefts from m
vehicles suffe
ange. The figu
however are

a (26); BMW (

ble is Fraud o
r several year
ndividual forc
that our stree
borough, and

el of fraud sti
od.  The  three
(33  crimes) 
mes). These o
et or  in police
ction Fraud ha
it  seems  tha
es. 

be classified  in
has been com
ow.  A  chang
evious years, 
s  year  to  att

ccurring at a p
, criminal dam
ons online or
rime  took pla
increased fro

n a public op

m in Havering, M

cles Stolen

 ommunity S

motor vehicles
er the second‐
ures for moto
e similar  to  th
21); Volkswag

offences. Actio
rs, having the
ces. With the 
ets are, it see
d action is coo

ll recorded lo
e  largest  offe
and  passing 
offences are l
e custody,  thu
ave been con
at  their  statist

nto one of a s
mpiled by class
ge  of  author 
however the 
empt  to  nega

place of resid
mage (a dwel
r via phone, a
ace  in  an ope
m 24% of tota

pen space has

MPS CRIS Data 

or Stolen F

Safety Partn

s, vans also fe
‐highest perc
or vehicle inter
he  trend seen
gen (20) and V

on Fraud, the 
e effect of red
internet acco
ms logical tha
ordinated nati

ocally, there a
nce  types  wi
a  counterfeit
ikely to relate
us demonstra
tacted to enq
tics are  limite

small number
sifying 150 pre
for  this  year
new category
ate  any  subje

ence (40%), f
ling window, 
lthough the lo
en  public  spac
al notifiable o

 risen to 32%

12‐months to S

From in Hav

nership Stra

eature heavily
entage share 
rference (esse
n  in  the subst
Vauxhall (19). 

national frau
ducing the fig
unting for a si
at these are re
onally. 

re 74 offence
thin  the  frau
t  note  or  coin
e to acts of fr
ating  that Act
quire as to the
ed  to  the gen

r of  ‘location 
e‐set ‘venue’ o
’s  assessmen
y of ‘business 
ective  differen

for example a
door or wall)
ocation would
ce  (predomin
ffences in last

% from 16%  in

Sep‐17

vering

ategic Asses

y, with 233 o
 of theft  from
entially attem
tantive offenc

d reporting se
gures of fraud
ignificant pro
ecorded diffe

es shown reco
ud  and  forge
n  (14  crimes) 
raud carried o
tion Fraud are
e availability o
neric  informat

types’ to assi
options from 
nt may  accou
premises to w
nces  as  to w

a burglary, sex
) or harassme
d be recorded
nantly  in  the 
t year’s assess

n  last year’s a

ssment 2017

f the 422 For
m offences, w
mpted theft of 
ces; Ford at 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ervice, has be
 offences wh
portion of fra
erently to crim

orded during t
ry  category  a
and making 

out in person; 
e picking up  t
of the data pa
tion  released

ist with drawi
the CRIS syste
nt  for  differe
which the pub

which  category

xual offences 
ent (which cou
d as the victim
street, but  a
sment. 

ssessment; w

197 

d’s 
with 
or 

126 

een 
ich 
aud 
mes 

the 
are 
or 
or 
the 
ack 
  in 

ing 
em 
ent 
blic 
y  a 

or 
uld 
m’s 
lso 

with 

Page 107



Ki
 

th
re
inc
me
 
Ta
Sy

Lo

A p

Str

‘Co
fac

Bu

Ot
rel

 
Ty
su
so
ch
gro
6p
vo
 

Fig

Inf
ve
co
su
ac
av
 
Ra
wi

t Weller 

e proportion 
sidential prem
creasing in pr
edical building

ble  3.5  Venue
stem/CRIS data

cation Type 

place of residen

reet or public o

ontrolled’ Publi
cilities, Transpo

usiness premise

her (i.e. hospita
ligious premise

ypes  of  facilit
permarkets, a
me of the bu
art, with the 
ouped on the
pm), ‘Night Tim
olume location

gure 3.7 Offenc

finite  factors 
enues,  footfal
ontributors.  Th
bsequent  cri
curate  indica
vailable.  

ates of crime a
thout payme

in every othe
mises has  inc
roportion, acc
gs, religious b

e  location  desc
a rolling 12‐mo

nce 

open space (inc.

ic areas (Shops,
ort methods and

es without gen. 

al, school, polic
s) 

ties  which  at
and  late open
siness venues
offences con

e chart as ‘Day
me Economy’ 
ns for petrol d

ces by business

will  contribu
ll,  floor  spac
he  figures  sh
me  reduction
tion  as  to wh

affecting busi
nt (petrol the

H

er category  fa
creased  from 
commodated 
buildings, polic

cription  for  cri
onths to Septem

. car parks) 

, Pubs, Sports 
d stations) 

public access 

ce station, 

ttract  or  gen
ning  licenced 
s which repor
nsidered  in th
y‐Time Econom
(offences pre

drive off offen

s venue in Have

te  to  the  vol
e,  accessibilit
own do not 
n  work  unde
hich premises

inesses overa
eft) offences. 

Havering Co

alling slightly 
41%  last  yea
by a fall in vi
ce stations, co

me  recorded  i
mber 2017) 

Acquisitiv

nerate  high  v
venues withi
t the highest 
e chart below
my’ (offences 
edominantly o
ces reported 

ering, MPS CRIS

ume of  crime
ty  and  so  on
display  the  re
rtaken  by  Co
s  are  the  risk

ll are higher i
Figure 3.8 sh

 ommunity S

to accommo
ar  to 46%  this
olent crimes
ourts and pris

in Havering  (b

ve Crime (%) 

36 

32 

28 

2 

2 

volumes  of  c
in the night t
volume of cri
w accounting 
predominant
of violence oc
and recorded

S Data Oct‐16 t

e  reported by
n,  therefore 
elationships d
ommunity  Saf
kiest; howeve

in Havering, p
ows compara

Safety Partn

odate  this  incr
s  year, with  v
at ‘other’ pre
ons. 

based  on Metr

Violen

rime  include 
ime economy
imes in Haver
for 17.2% of 
tly of theft occ
curring mainly
d in Havering).

to Sep‐17 

y  each name
this  should 
developed  as
fety  partners
er, data need

particularly cu
ator data for 

nership Stra

rease. The pr
violent  crimes
emises, which 

opolitan  Police

t Crime (%) 

46 

38 

11 

<1 

4 

petrol  statio
y  for example
ring. There are
all recorded c
curring during
y from 10pm‐
. 

d business,  s
not  interpret
part of  a pr
.  An  index  sc
ed  to perform

stomer thefts
Havering and 

ategic Asses

roportion of v
s  in public op
 covers educa

e  Crime  Recor

Total Not

ons,  departm
e. Figure 3.7 b
e 30 business
crime  in Have
g core busines
‐4am) and ‘Pe

such  as numb
ted  as  a  list 
roblem‐solving
core  would  p
m  this  analys

s (shoplifting)
 London (to D

ssment 2017

violent crimes
pen  spaces  a
ational faciliti

rding  Informat

tifiable Crime (%

40 

36 

19 

2 

3 

ment  stores  a
below highligh
ses shown in t
ering. These a
ss hours of 9a
etrol Theft’ (hi

ber of  individu
of  the  ‘wor

g  approach  a
provide  a mo
is  is not  read

) and making 
December 201

207 

s  in 
lso 
es, 

ion 

%) 

and 
hts 
the 
are 
m‐
igh 

 

ual 
rst’ 
and 
ore 
dily 

off 
16: 

Page 108



Ki
 

th
ta
ba
ab
ra
do
co
Ha
co
co
th
las
ro
th
 
3.1

 
It 
so
cri
W
cre
ca
is 
 
Th
At
ap
inc
 
A s
th
th
re
inc
 
W
ex

Figu

t Weller 

e most recen
ken  from  the
ar chart shows
bove the boro
nking  9th  hig
own from 439
onsiderably ab
avering  comp
ompared  to  5
ompared  to 
emselves the
st  year’s  ass
bbery  rates  a
e London ave

1.5 Fears and

is not just crim
cial disorders
ime  perspec
indows’). Min
eate  messag
using fear, w
degenerating

he  Metropolit
ttitude  Surve
pproximately 
cluding worry

summary of s
an the averag
at the police w
spondents  in 
crease from 6

hilst confiden
xample, respo

ure 3.9 Haverin

% R

nt data availab
e MOPAC  Bu
s that rates o
ough average 
ghest  (374  c
9 and 8th high
bove  average 
pared  to  114 
55)  and  maki
28);  howev
re has been a
essment.  Bu
against  busin
rage. 

 perceptions 

me that drive
s can impact o
ctive  and 
nor crime (gra
es  that  are 
orry and anxi
. 

tan  Police  co
ey  (PAS),  w
400  residents
y about crime 

ome of the qu
ge when cons
were doing a 
Havering  felt

62% over the s

nce was highe
ondents  in Ha

ng Public Attitu

Responden

H

ble at  the  tim
siness  Crime 
f crime agains
across Londo
rimes  per  1,
est place  last
for  theft  fro
in  London), 
ing  off  witho
er  in  terms
a slight reduct
rglary,  crimin
nesses  were  c

s fear. A rang
on feelings of 
incivility  th
affiti) and anti
destructive 
iety and a be

ommission  a 
which  gauges
s per boroug
and anti‐socia

uestions perta
sidering Londo
good job loca
t  that  the po
same period la

r than averag
vering were m

de Survey cove

ts concerne

Havering Co

me of writing)
Dashboard. 
st businesses 
on, with Have
,000  busines
t year). Rates 
om  shops  (144
other  thefts 
out  payment 
s  of  the  lev
tion seen aga
nal  damage 
comparable  w

e of physical 
safety (i.e. sig
eories,  ‘Bro
‐social behavi
to  communi
lief that the a

quarterly  Pu
the  opinio

h, per  year, o
al behaviour, 

aining confide
on as a whole
ally (73%, com
lice provided
ast year. 

ge in Havering
more  likely to

ering Jul’16‐Jun

ed about iss

 ommunity S

), as 
The 
are 
ring 
ses, 
are 
4  in 
(81 
(57 
vels 
ainst 
and 
with 

and 
gnal 
oken 
iour 
ities 
area 

ublic 
ons  of 
on  topics 
police effectiv

ence found th
e. Almost thre
mpared to 69%
a visible pat

g, responses re
o agree that p

n’17 – Publishe

sues in the 

Safety Partn

veness and en

at residents o
ee‐quarters o
% for London);
rolling presen

elating to driv
police underst

ed Sep 2017

Figure 3.8 MO

local area

nership Stra

ngagement.  

of Havering he
f respondents
 up from 72%
nce, compared

vers of confide
tand  issues af

OPAC Business 

ategic Asses

eld the police 
s  in Havering

% in Havering l
d  to 54%  for 

ence were als
ffecting the  l

(83%  ri
last  ye
police  d
that  m
commun
from  7
with mi
up from
 
 
When 
perceive
respond
Haverin
likely  t
specific 
problem
than 

Crime Data Lo

ssment 2017

in higher rega
were confide
ast year. 63%
London and 

o improved. F
ocal commun
sing  from  76
ear),  and  th
deal with  thin
matter  to  t
nity  (78%  risi
3%),  and  de
nor crimes (72

m 69% last yea

asked  abo
ed  problem
dents
g  were  le
to  think  th
issues  were

m  in  their  ar
compared 

ndon.gov.uk

217 

ard 
ent 
% of 
an 

For 
nity 
6% 
hat 
ngs 
the 
ing 
eal 
2% 
r). 

out 
ms, 
in 

ess 
hat 
e  a 
rea 
to 

Page 109



 

Kit Weller 
 

22Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

London  as  a whole  (Figure  3.9).  For  example,  53%  thought  drug  use  and  dealing was  a  ‘fairly  or  very  big’  problem  in 
Havering compared to 57% in London; and 10% think gangs are an issue compared to 16% in London as a whole. 
 
Perceptions of anti‐social behaviour generally, graffiti, vandalism and criminal damage and noisy neighbours or loud parties, 
were also lower for Havering than for London. With the exception of those considering ‘general crime being a fairly or very 
big problem,’ which has reduced this year, all other  indicators are the same or higher than the corresponding period  last 
year. 
 
3.1.6 Crime and health 
  
Data is now being provided on assault patients presenting at the Accident & Emergency unit at Queens Hospital, as part of 
the  Information Sharing to Tackle Violence (ISTV) scheme. Last year’s assessment considered that the data available then 
was insufficient to conduct any analysis on, and while there are still issues with the quality of some entries, which may be 
down  to attendees being drunk, un‐cooperative, or  staff  training  issues;  there are a  large enough number of  records  to 
conduct some investigation into factors in line with the wide‐ranging and non‐specific purpose of the Strategic Assessment. 
As we are considering victims of assaults; which may include domestic abuse or youth violence; it is necessary to look into 
available factors to attempt to identify any trends in victims. 
 
Considering data from April 2017 to September 2017, of the 364 attendees, 94 are female and 270 male. For both genders 
the predominant ages of attendees are 19 to 30, with a peak around the early twenties. This is more visible in males due to 
the larger numbers. When considering the self‐defined ethnicity of attendees, the persons identifying themselves as of 
White British ethnicity made up 51% (185) of attendees.  13% of records showed ‘not known’ or ‘not stated’ in the ethnicity 
field. The only other groups which had more than 20 attendees were those identifying as being from an ‘Other White 
background’ (9.3% of total) and ‘Black African/British’ (5.76% of total). 
 
Of the 34 persons classifying themselves in the ‘Other White background’ group, 10 were female and 24 male; four of the 
females were under 30; and 12 of the males were under 30, with no particular concentration around an age. For those 
identifying as ‘Black African/British’ six were female and 15 male. The majority of the Black African/British female attendees 
were over 30 (5 of 6), and the majority of the males were under 30 (10 of 15). Those identifying as ’White British’ were split 
130 male to 55 female. Thirty‐six of the females were under 30, and 19 over; compared to 78 males under 30, and 52 over 
30. 
 
The majority of the 364 assaults were listed as occurring in public places, with ‘street’ being listed for 156 cases, and ‘open 
space’ accounting for another 60 assaults. Perhaps the most concerning finding of this analysis is that 66 assaults were 
listed as occurring in the attendee’s ‘own home;’ with the obvious assumption being that this can be attributed to domestic 
violence. In all other locations, males account for the majority of A&E attendees, however the ’own home’ category has 35 
females listing this as the venue compared to 31 males (with ‘other home’ given as the location of the assault by 15 females 
to 18 males). 
  
For the White British group, 22 females experienced the assault in their own home, compared to 14 males; with 10 White 
British females suffering an assault in an ‘other home’ compared to eight males. For both locations the majority of females 
were under 31. Twelve assaults were by a spouse or partner, 11 by a family member, and 7 by an ‘acquaintance’ 
 
Five of the 55 assaults on ‘White British’ females’ were repeat assaults, compared to six of the 130 on males. Of these 
assaults which occurred in the attendees own home, two of the 20 assaults on females were repeated incidents, and one of 
the 12 assaults on males were. Considering assaults on all ethnicities which occurred in the attendees ‘own home,’ Police 
had attended 31 of the 35 assaults on females, and 21 of the 31 assaults on males. The age of the victim did not seem to 
have an impact on whether police were called or not. 
 
Across all demographics, ‘Body Part, no weapon,’ and ‘pushed’ were the most frequent methods of assault. 
Of the 40 assaults involving ‘sharp bladed’ objects, there was a spread across age ranges, with this by no means being 
limited to the younger age groups. There were five assaults involving chemicals, with all victims under 30. There was only 
one assault involving a firearm. 
 
 
 

Page 110



 

Kit Weller 
 

23Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

3.1.7 Demand for service (LB Havering) 
 
The  demand  pressures  for  community  safety  are  managed  over  four  areas  (Anti‐Social  Behaviour,  Domestic  Abuse, 
Integrated Offender Management and Serious Group Violence). In 2016‐17 there were 580 cases managed across the four 
areas, rising from 558 the previous year. Projected demand is expected to grow in line with increased reporting of domestic 
abuse, increasing volumes of adult offenders in Havering and East London, and as a result of continued inward migration of 
individuals linked to serious group violence and gangs from inner London boroughs.  
 
The  Havering  Community  Safety  Partnership  Performance  Report  Table  shows  the  projected  demand  for  the  risk 
management  panels  in  Havering  as  set  out  in  2015‐16.  The  Domestic  Abuse MARAC  and  Serious  Group  Violence  are 
expected to exceed the projected demand levels for 2017‐18. 
 

HCSP Performance Report Table: Demand Volumetric, Community Safety Risk Management 
Panels 

Area Outturn  Outturn  Projected Demand 
  2015/16 2016/17  2017/18 2018/19 
ASB Panel and 
Community MARAC 

192 211 200 200 

Domestic Abuse MARAC 250 259 275 300 
Integrated Offender 
Management Panel 

75 78 80 80 

Serious Group Violence 
Panel 

41 32 40 40 

 
There has been some disruption to the delivery of these groups in the early part of the 2017‐18 financial year; with a period 
of time spent with a vacant Violence Against Women and Girls Officer post; and also the restructure of the policing area and 
formation of the joint gangs unit meaning that there were minor issues in receiving information which led to the SGV group 
being suspended between March and June. 
 
Violence against Women and Girls continues to be a significant safeguarding and vulnerability concern affecting the  local 
authority and partners. Domestic Violence accounted for 2,064 contacts recorded by the Multi‐Agency Safeguarding Hub, 
compared to 1,634 contacts the previous year; and the Metropolitan Police recorded 6,349 victims of domestic abuse.  
 
  
   

Page 111



Ki
 

3.
 
Th
 
3.2

(lo
 
Cr
de
Ha
 
Ta
co
av
 
Th
ra
13
de
 
Sin
of 
cri
 
Ta
re
th
sh
 
 

F

t Weller 

2 Offenders 

his section ide

2.1 Age, gend

ower than ave

ime offending
eclining with 
avering genera

able 3.7  show
ontribute  to  a
verage index s

he highest‐risk
nge highlights
3‐22 ages as b
espite making 

nce the last as
‘high risk’ age
imes to a disp

able  3.8  show
sponsible for 
ose offenders
oplifting offen

Figure 3.10 Age

ntifies those p

der, ethnicity 

erage).  

g rates are ab
age  beyond 
ally, this varie

ws  the highest
a  disproportio
cores exceed 

k age group ro
s where the g
being most ris
up just over 1

ssessment the
es have increa
proportionate 

ws  the  highes
70% of total r
s aged 35 and
nces. 

e profile of offe

Ag

H

people who a

and relations

bove average 
this  point. W
es by type of c

t‐risk age gro
onate  share  o
150; one‐and

ow highlights 
greatest perce
sky, and the a
15% of Haveri

ere have been
ased in some 
degree.  

st‐risk  age  gr
recorded crim
d over, the ca

enders accused

ge profile of

Havering Co

re most likely

ship to victim

for those age
Whilst  those  a
crime as will b

ups  for violen
of  crime  in  co
d‐a‐half times 

the broad ag
entage volum
ge group 13‐2
ing’s populatio

n no major cha
cases to dem

roups  for  acq
me in Havering
ategories of c

d of crime in Ha

f accused in

 ommunity S

y to commit cr

ed 14 to 39. T
aged  16‐24  a
be discussed b

nt  crime  cate
omparison  to
more at risk t

ge ranges whe
me of perpetra
25 accounts f
on. 

anges to the g
monstrate that

quisitive  crime
g. Males aged 
rime whereby

avering, MPS C

n Havering

Safety Partn

rime and ASB 

he peak age f
re  at  the mo
below. 

egories. Here,
o  their  share 
than average)

ereby offendin
ators are reco
for approxima

groups respon
t a wider spre

e  categories. 
18‐34 are the
y they are mo

RIS Data Oct‐16

nership Stra

in Havering. 

 
F
p
H
a
c
S
a
i
a
e
p
i
a
c
a
H
t
1
r
s
a
(
p
s
a

for offending 
ost  overrepre

  ‘highest  risk
of  the  total 
.  

ng is greatest,
orded. For exa
ately 82% of a

nsible for thes
ead of ages are

Overall  thos
e main cohort 
ost overrepre

6 to Sep‐17

ategic Asses

Figure  3.10 
profile  of 
Havering  (b
accused  age
crime reports
Sep‐17) by vo
accused)  an
index  score  (
age of a grou
equally propo
population th
index  score  o
average  –  so 
comprise  1.8
accused;  a
Havering’s po
this  would  g
100,  showing
representatio
score  above 
an  ove
(higher  than 
particular age
score  below 
an  unde

is 16‐24 with
esented  age  f

k’  refers  to  th
Havering  pop

t, whilst the p
ample robber
all recorded ro

se crimes, alth
e becoming in

se  aged  34  a
t of offenders 
esented are th

ssment 2017

shows  the  a
accused 

based  on  t
e  on  record
s from Oct‐16
lume (% of to
nd  populati
(whereby  if  t
up of accused
ortionate  to  t
is equates to 
of  100, which
if  21  year  o

8%  of  all  tho
nd  1.8% 
opulation are 2
give  a  score 
g  proportiona
on).  Any  ind
100  equates 
errepresentati
average)  by

e group and a
100  equates 
errepresentati

 offending rat
for  offenders 

hose ages wh
pulation  (whe

redominant a
ry highlights t
obbery suspe

hough the ban
nvolved in the

and  under  we
in Havering. F
heft person, a

247 

age 
in 

the 
ded 
 to 
otal 
ion 
the 
d  is 
the 
an 

h  is 
lds 
ose 
of 
21, 
of 
ate 
dex 
to 
ion 
y  a 
any 
to 
ion 

tes 
in 

ich 
ere 

age 
the 
cts 

nds 
ese 

ere 
For 
and 

Page 112



Ki
 

 
 

 
Fig
20
wh
do
 
Th
vo
of 
Ha
th
wi
Vio
th
ca
inc
ca
sh
inc
Ab
Re
wi
wa
Do
wi
Ot
1,0
 
As
pe
on
ac
of 
sh

Ta
to 

C

H
a
(

In

Pr
ag

Ta
da

C

M
a
(

In

t Weller 

gure 3.11 show
017.  Suspects
here someone
oes not repres

he  larg
olume of suspe

crime 
avering  du
is  period  w
thin 
olence  aga
e  Per
tegory  (wh
cludes  ot
ategories  a
own  separat
cluding Dome
buse  and  Alco
elated  Cri
th  4,935.  T
as  followed 
omestic  Ab
th  1,851 
ther  Theft  w
008. 

s  indicated 
ercentage  bre
n  Figure  3.11
counted for 8
crime, rangin
opliftings and

ble 3.7 Highest
September 20

Crime Type 

Highest risk 
age group 
(based on 
ndex Score) 

redominant 
ge range (% 
of total 
accused) 

ble 3.8 Highest
ta; 12‐months 

Crime Type 

Most risky 
age group 
(based on 
ndex Score) 

Fig

ws the volum
 has been use
e has been ch
sent all crimes

gest  
ects 
in 

ring 
were 
the 

ainst 
rson 
hich 
ther 
also 
tely, 
estic 
ohol 
ime) 
This 
by 

buse 
and 
with 

by  the 
eakdown 
, males  acco
80% of person
ng from fewer
d 32% of other

t‐risk groups an
17) 

Robbery 

13‐22 

13‐25 
(82%) 

t‐risk groups an
to September 

Burglary 
(residential) 

18‐37 
81% 

H

Figure 3.11

gure 3.11 Gend

e of suspects 
ed here rathe
arged (or ano
s, merely thos

ount  for  the 
ns suspected o
r than 10% of 
r thefts.  

nd ages for viol

Serious 
Wounding 

14‐28 

17‐32 
(56%) 

nd ages, acquis
2017) 

Criminal 
Damage 

14‐34 
81% 

Havering Co

1 Age profile of 

er profile of of

in Havering b
r than accuse
other disposal
se where the v

majority  of  p
of crime in Ha
those suspect

lent and person

Sexual 
Offences 

12‐20 / 25‐
30 

12‐20 
(27%) 

sitive crime cat

Other Theft 

13‐26 
51% 

Gend

 ommunity S

f offenders accu

ffenders suspec

by crime categ
ed, as this prov
 option which
victim was ab

persons  suspe
avering. Fema
ted of burglar

nal crime categ

Violence 
with Injury 

17‐31 

17‐31 
(48%) 

egories and tot

Theft from 
Person 

28‐44 
67% 

der breakdo

Safety Partn

used of crime in

cted of crime in

gory and gend
vides a larger 
h would lead t
le to provide 

ected  of  crim
ales are unde
ry, robbery an

gories (based o

Violence 
without 
Injury 

16‐34 

16‐34 
(56%) 

tal notifiable o

Vehicle 
Crime (Theft

from) 

14‐31 
60% 

own of susp

nership Stra

n Havering, MP

n Havering, MP

der, for the 12
sample than 
to them being
a gender for t

mes  for  all  ca
rrepresented 
nd vehicle crim

on Metropolitan

Alcohol 
Related 
Crime 

18‐31 

18‐31 
(50%) 

ffences (based

t 
Vehicle 
Crime 

(Theft of) 

15‐36 
85% 

pects in Hav

ategic Asses

PS CRIS Data O

PS CRIS Data Oc

2‐month perio
if we looked 
g considered a
the suspect. 

ategories,  and
as offenders 
me; to being s

n Police CRIS d

Domestic
Abuse 

18‐46 

18‐46 
(84%) 

d on Metropolit

Theft From
Shops 

20‐40 
60% 

vering 

ssment 2017

ct‐16 to Sep‐17

ct‐16 to Sep‐17

od to Septemb
only at offenc
as accused). T

d  overall ma
in all categor
suspects for 29

ata; 12‐months

c 
Hate Crim

30‐39

22‐39
(52%)

tan Police CRIS 

m 
Total 

Notifiab
Crime

15‐36
72%

257 

7

7

ber 
ces 
his 

les 
ries 
9% 

s 

me 

le 

Page 113



Ki
 

Ta
(b
ac
pr
we
cri
su
Off
 
Ta
Se

Eth

As

Bla

Mi

Wh

 
Fig
mo
fo

Fig

t Weller 

able 3.9, using
ased on the o
count for 99%
oportionately
ere overrepre
ime) and dom
spects descri
ffences and ha

ble 3.9 Named
ptember 2017)

hnic Group / Cr

ian or Asian Bri

ack or Black Brit

ixed 

hite British or O

gure 3.12 sho
onth period t
r example, 83

gure 3.12 Self‐d

Suspect Se

g  index scores
offenders self
% of Havering
y or underrep
esented in a n
mestic abuse. 
bing themselv
ate crime, the

d Suspect  Index
) – White Black

rime Type 

itish  

tish 

Other 

ws a breakdo
o September 
3.3% of  resid

defined ethnicit

elf‐Defined 

H

s, shows whic
f‐defined ethn
g’s population
presented in a
umber of cate
Asian or Asia
ves as Black o
en overreprese

x Score by crim
k Asian Mixed o

B
u
rg
la
ry
 

C
ri
m
in
al
 

181  76

204  17

104  76

90  95

own of those s
2017. This is 
ents  in Haver

ty of offenders

Ethnicity, a

Havering Co

ch ethnic gro
nicity, groupe
n). Those susp
all categories 
egories of crim
an British off
or Black Britis
ented in all ot

me and ethnic 
only, which acc

D
am

ag
e 

R
o
b
b
er
y 

6  128 

74  521 

6  723 

5  56 

suspected of c
compared ag
ring are Whit

s in Havering, M

as % of Have

 ommunity S

ups were mo
ed by ethnic g
pected of crim
of crime. Tho
me including s
fenders were
sh were repre
ther categorie

group  in Have
count for 99% o

Se
xu
al
 

O
ff
en

ce
s 

O
th
er
 T
h
ef
t 

356  227

239  397

109  113

77  72

crime in Have
gainst each et
te British, whe

MPS CRIS Data 

ering Total 

Safety Partn

ost over or un
groups Asian, 
me who were
ose suspected
serious acquis
also most ov

esented propo
es of crime. 

ering (based on
of Havering res

Th
ef
t 

P
er
so
n
 

7  0 

7  174 

3 
1190 (3 
offences)

  57 

ering, by the o
thnic group’s 
ereas 63.4% o

Oct‐16 to Sep‐1

Notifiable 

nership Stra

nder represen
Black, Mixed 

e White British
 of crime who
sitive crimes (b
verrepresente
ortionately as 

n Metropolitan
idents. 

V
e
h
ic
le
 

C
ri
m
e
 

V
i
l

154  1

157  2

205  1

92  8

offender’s self
total share of
of people  sus

17

Offences 

ategic Asses

nted as offend
d and White, w
h or Other we
o were Asian 
burglary, robb
ed  for  sexual 
 suspects for 

n Police CRIS da

V
io
le
n
ce
 

To
ta
l 

N
o
ti
fi
ab
le
 

130  142 

271  98 

154  168 

88  87 

f‐defined ethn
f the Havering
spected of cr

were  als
–  wh

under
Where 
breakdow
offender
are  s
offending
proportio
populatio
White  B
for  the 
proportio
suspecte
(63.4%), 
ethnic gr

overrepr
suspects
White – A
backgrou
Accessio
such as B
and  Ro
populatio
suspects
African 
populatio
suspects
other  Bla
(0.4% of 

ssment 2017

ders  in Haveri
which combin
ere represent
or Asian Brit
bery and vehi
offences. Tho
Total Notifiab

ata 12‐months

D
o
m
es
ti
c 

A
b
u
se
 

H
at
e
C
ri
m
e

148  3

204  9

78  22

93  10

nicity for the 1
g population. 
ime  in Haveri
so White  Brit
ich  is 
rrepresentatio
the  populati
wn  a
r  breakdow
similar,  th
g 
onate  to  t
on.  Wh
British  accoun
single  highe

on  of  tho
ed  of  crim
there  are  fo
roups which a

nota
resented 
in  Havering

Any other Wh
und  (i.e. 
n  countri
Bulgaria, Pola
mania:  3% 
on and 10.9%
);  Black 

(3.2% 
on  and  4.7% 
);  Black  –  A
ack  backgrou
population a

267 

ing 
ned 
ted 
ish 
cle 
ose 
ble 

s to 

H
at
e
 C
ri
m
e
 

8 

9 

27 

00 

12‐
So 
ing 
tish 
an 
on. 
ion 
and 
wns 
hen 
is 

the 
ilst 
nts 
est 
ose 
me 
our 
are 
bly 
as 

g  – 
hite 
EU 
es, 
and 
of 

% of 
– 
of 
of 

Any 
und 
and 

Page 114



Ki
 

4.3

se
re
we
 
3.2
 
In 
Na
se
 
Th
da
40
Us
of 
an
ho
be
‘bl
les
 
44
se
Na
to 
80
49
3%

   
1 M
req

t Weller 

3% of suspect

xual offences
sponsible for 
ere current or

2.2.1 Crimino

previous yea
ational Probat
rvice users. 

he NPS groups
ata so it canno
0% of this coho
sing the NPS C
the Barking &

nd 35‐44 both 
owever White 
eing Black or B
lank’ for this f
ss than 4% of 

4% of the Lond
xual offences 
ational Probat
the public; th

0% of the Lond
9% are MAPPA
% low. 2% are 

                  
MAPPA Leve
quire multi ag

Rela

ts); and Black 

s, 60.3%  knew
nearly a quar
r former intim

ogenic Needs –

ars data on o
tion Service (

s its service us
ot be used for 
ort reside in H
Caseload Over
& Dagenham a
making up 21
British/Englis

Black British: C
field, and 7% c
the London c

don cohort we
 not against a
tion Service d
herefore this d
don NPS coho
A level 1, and 
on the Integr

                  
el 1 (Ordinary 
gency meeting

ationship be

H

Caribbean – 1

w  their  victim
rter of offence
mate partners 

– National Pro

ffending has 
NPS) and Com

sers from Hav
 identifying ch
Havering. 
rview profile c
and Havering 
1% of the BDH
sh/Welsh/Sco
Caribbean (17
classified them
ohort. Six per

ere being mon
a child, then 8%
eal with offen
does not refle
ort being Mult
2% level 21. O
rated Offende

          
Agency Mana

gs. Level 2 inv

etween vict

Havering Co

1.2% of popul

m  in  some wa
es reported (2
of their victim

obation Servi

been made a
mmunity Reha

ering in a coh
haracteristics 

completed in N
(referred to a
H cohort. Data
ttish/Irish com
7%) and Black 
mselves as Wh
rcent of the BD

nitored follow
% for sexual o
nders sentenc
ect the offend
ti Agency Publ
Of the BDH coh
er Managemen

agement) invo
volves an activ

tim and sus

 ommunity S

ation against 

ay, with  intim
23.7%). For cr
m and 23.1% w

ice 

available  thro
abilitation Co

hort together w
unique to ser

November 20
as the BDH) co
a on ethnicity 
mprises 27% o
or Black Britis
hite: other. Ea
DH cohort we

wing a convict
offences again
ed to more th
ing of all thos
lic Protection 
hort, 1% are d
nt programme

olves sharing 
ve approach th

spect by % 

Safety Partn

3.5% of suspe

mate partners 
imes of dome
were other fam

ough  centralis
mpany (CRC) 

with residents
rvice users fro

016, the caselo
ohort were ag
and offence c
of the London
sh: African  (1
ach other self‐
ere classified a

ion for violenc
nst a child. It i
han one year’s
se who pass th
Arrangement
deemed very h
e. 

information o
hrough multi-

of each crim

nership Stra

ects. 

(15.4%)  and 
estic abuse in 
mily members

sed  resources
have been as

s of Barking &
om Havering, h

oad was 96% m
ed 25‐34 (35%
committed on
cohort, with 
2%). Nine per
‐defined ethn
as foreign nati

ce, followed b
s worth remin
s imprisonme
hrough the cri
t (MAPPA) sub
high risk, 54%

on a subject be
agency meetin

me type

ategic Asses

 
Figure 
breakd
relatio
betwe
victims
record
(77.6%
offend
to  the
stated 
include
victim 
unknow
strange
seen  c
offenc
of  c
offend
likely 
victims
offenc
and do
 
For  tho

other  relativ
Havering, 57.
s.  

s.  In  the abse
sked to provid

& Dagenham, a
however an e

male. The larg
%), with those
nly exists at a 
the second la
rcent of cases
icity group ac
ionals. 

by 17% for rob
nding ourselve
nt, and those
iminal justice 
bjects. For the
% high risk; 42%

etween agenci
ngs. mappa.ju

ssment 2017

3.13 provide
down  of  t
nship  record
en suspects a
s.  For  mo
ed  crim

%)  data  on  t
er  relationsh
e  victim  is  n

(this  m
e  where  t
is a business)
wn  (i
er, or no one
committing  t
e).  Categor
crime  whe
ers  are  mo
to  know  th
s  are  sexu
es,  hate  crim
omestic abuse

ose suspected 
ves  (8.3%) bei
8% of offende

ence of  this,  t
de data on th

and aggregate
stimate is tha

gest age grou
e aged 18‐24 
London level,
argest groups 
s recorded 
ccounted for 

bbery, 11% fo
es that the 
who hold a ri
system; with 
e BDH cohort 
% medium; an

ies but does no
ustice.gov.uk 

277 

s a 
the 
ded 
and 
ost 
me 
the 
hip 
not 
may 
the 
 or 
i.e. 
e  is 
the 
ries 
ere 
ost 
heir 
ual 
mes 
e.  

of 
ing 
ers 

the 
heir 

es 
at 

p 

 

or 

isk 

nd 

ot 

Page 115



 

Kit Weller 
 

28Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

 
 

Table 3.10 Criminogenic Needs of National Probation Service Barking & Dagenham and Havering cohort, November 2016 
Caseload Assessment. 

Criminogenic need  % of BDH cohort with need %  Redbridge  cohort  with 
need 

% London cohort with need

Accommodation  36  40 39 

Education,  Training, 
Employment 

39  43 44 

Financial  50  52 56 

Lifestyle and associates  82  82 82 

‘Some’ or  ‘Significant’ financial 
problems 

Some – 40%; 
Significant – 14% 

Some – 33%
Significant – 21% 

Some – 38% 
Significant – 18% 

 
25% of  the BDH cohort disclosed a history of perpetrating domestic violence or abuse; while 1% had been  the victim of 
domestic abuse. The rates for Redbridge, and London are 28% and 27% respectively for perpetrators; and 1% for both areas 
for those who had been victims. 
 
3.2.2.2 Criminogenic Needs – London Community Rehabilitation Company 
 
The London Community Rehabilitation Company (CRC) caseload for Barking & Dagenham and Havering is 13.0% female to 
87.0% male. Of the cohort, 51.6% identified themselves as White British. The second largest group identified themselves as 
Black British: African (10.7%). The third largest was White – other at 8.0%. 
 
The majority of the cohort are being worked with for violence (30.1%); followed by drug possession/supply (12.4%); then 
theft (non‐motor related) at 9.7%. 
 
The CRC has assessed the BDH cohort to have 60.9% of service users at medium risk of (causing) harm, and 37.5% at  low 
risk. 7.6% are being monitored on Integrated Offender Management. 
 
When  examining  the  criminogenic  needs  of  the  CRC  cohort,  unfortunately  a  full  picture  cannot  be  provided  due  to 
administrative issues which mean that the information is unavailable for 28.4% (331 persons) for the first four of the factors 
listed below. While this makes it difficult to draw conclusions about overall levels of need and to what degree these drive 
offending,  it  is possible to say that the percentages prefixed by  ‘at  least’ will not get any smaller however may  increase, 
depending on how the missing 28.4% of the cohort would have been assessed. 
 

Table 3.11 Criminogenic Needs of CRC Cohort, as provided by CRC, November 2017

Criminogenic need  % of BDH cohort with need % BDH Cohort without need 

Accommodation  (at least) 17.3   (at least) 54.2

Education,  Training, 
Employment 

(at least) 24.9  (at least) 46.6

Drugs  (at least) 25.0  (at least) 46.6

Alcohol  (at least) 17.3  (at least) 54.2

Relationships  (familial 
difficulties or DA) 

(at least) 32.3  (at least) 39.3

Domestic Violence Victim  3.3  96.7

Domestic Violence Perpetrator  22.8  77.2

Mental Health*  14.4  85.6

 
*London CRC do experience a high number of under reported  low‐level chronic mental health needs; specifically around 
dual diagnoses; however the figure shown relates to cases where there is a clear need identified and recorded. 
  
3.2.3 Alcohol and Drugs 
 
Data provided  in the Public Health England PCC Support Pack 2018‐19: Key Drug and Alcohol Data estimates the  level of 

Page 116



 

Kit Weller 
 

29Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

drug and alcohol dependant persons in each borough who are not receiving specialist treatment. The data estimates that 
approximately 70% of opiate and/or crack cocaine dependant users in Havering are currently not receiving treatment. The 
national rate of this unmet need is approximately 50%. The highest rate of unmet need in London is approximately 76%, in 
Harrow; and the lowest approximately 45% in Tower Hamlets.  
 
For dependant alcohol users in Havering, the rate of those who are not currently receiving specialist treatment is estimated 
at 75%; compared to a national rate of approximately 80%. Barking and Dagenham has the  lowest rate of unmet need  in 
London at approximately 65%; and Bromley the highest at approximately 88%. 
 
From  the National  Probation  Service  report mentioned  above, we  can  see  that  61%  of  the  Barking &  Dagenham  and 
Havering  (BDH)  cohort has drugs misuse  as  a need  linked  to  their offending behaviour;  compared  to  a  rate of 63%  for 
neighbouring Redbridge, and 62% for the London cohort. 15% of the BDH cohort considered themselves to have (or have 
had previous to entering custody) a significant problem with class‐A substances. 
 
With 39% of the BDH NPS cohort considering themselves to have an alcohol need  linked to their offending, this  is higher 
than  neighbouring  Redbridge,  and  the  London  average  –  both  at  35%.  Binge  drinking  or  excessive  alcohol  use  was 
considered to be a significant problem by 11% of the BDH cohort, with a further 11% considering themselves to have some 
problems with binge‐drinking. These proportions are higher than both neighbouring Redbridge, and the London average; 
which both  saw 9% of  service users with  some problems and 11% and 8% with  significant problems  respectively. When 
considering  the effects of alcohol use, 78% of  the BDH cohort consider  that  they have significant problems with alcohol 
contributing to violent behaviour; against a Redbridge rate of 71%, and London rate of 75%. 
 
3.2.4 Known gangs or offending groups 
 
There  is  just one known fluid group operating within Havering. The London Borough of Havering have employed a Gangs 
and CSE Analyst who is developing understanding of the issues as monthly intelligence products are produced and shared 
with partners. 
 
Data is available on offences which are flagged as linked to gang activity. Only four crimes have been marked with this flag 
in Havering between October 2016 and September 2017. Two of these were violence with injury crimes; both of which took 
place on the same day, apparently as retaliation for a previous incident and involved a group from outside Havering. Of the 
other two crimes with a gang‐flag; one related to a CSE concern, and the final report referred to a minor assault with no 
outright mention of gang affiliation by the victim or suspects, with the only apparent reason for the flagging being that it 
involved a group of young people. 
 
3.2.5 Weapons 
 
Across Havering 2.0% of recorded crimes were weapon enabled  (1.7% knife crime and 0.3% gun crime), equating to 357 
offences.  
 
Of the 56 offences recorded as gun crime, 30 related to weapon discharges, and eight related to personal robbery offences. 
Of the 301 knife crimes, 87 related to offences where an injury was caused, and 87 related to offences of possession, while 
7 knife offences were classified as robbery of personal property. None of the gun crimes recorded  in Havering during the 
period were flagged as gang‐related. 
 
A crime type which has  increased  in prominence nationally  in recent years  is attacks with corrosive substances. Between 
October  2016  and  September  2017  there  were  21  acid  attack  offences  recorded  in  Havering.  This  relates  to  violent 
incidents against a person (rather than property) where a corrosive substance was used. This is the 6th highest number in 
London over this period, although is less than a fifth of the highest number seen (110), a third of the second highest (65), 
and half  (43) of  the  fourth highest.   Another measure  relevant  to  this crime  type  is  the number of acid  threat offences, 
which includes all crime types (rather than just violence as above) which are flagged as involving possession of a corrosive 
substance  or  a  threat  to use  such  a  substance. Havering  has  the ninth  highest  level  of  threat  offences,  at  15  offences 
compared to the highest level of 53. The East London boroughs have the highest levels for both attack and threat offences. 
 
 
 

Page 117



 

Kit Weller 
 

30Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

3.2.6 Reoffending 
 
The most recent offending data, available from the government Iquanta site, covers up to September 2015. Figure 3.14 
shows the number of offenders per 1,000 population in Havering, and how this rate has changed since October 2010. 
Between these time periods, there have been between 7.6 and 6.7 offenders per 1,000 population, with 6.7 being the rate 
seen most recently in the period covering October 2014 to September 2015. Over this period the amount of previous 
offences per offender has fluctuated between 7.1 and 8.8. The line representing the whole Metropolitan Police area 
demonstrates that across London the rate of offenders per 1,000 population has fallen from 10.5 in 2010‐11 to 8.8 in 2014‐
15. 
 
The percentage of offenders who reoffend has been falling since 2012‐13; from 22.6% in 2012‐13, to 19.1% in 2014‐15. This 
is in line with the trend seen for the London rate, which peaked at 25.1% in 2012‐13, and fell to 23.5% in 2014‐15. 
Information not shown below from the same source demonstrates that while the number of reoffenders is falling, the 
number of offences which each reoffender has committed is, on average, increasing; from 33.9 in 2012‐13 to 46.2 in 2014‐
15. This is in line with the trend for London, from 34.5 offences per reoffender in 2012‐13 to 42.7 offences in 2014‐15. 
 

 
 
 
In 2014‐15, re‐offending rates varied by crime, with the highest being 30.9% of offenders for theft crimes who re‐offended, 
then 20.4% for drug crimes, 16.5% for violence against the person, and 13.5% for weapons offences.  
 
3.2.7 Young Offenders 
 
The  Youth Offending  Service  (YOS)  for Havering  provides  information  in  a monthly  data  pack  on  re‐offending  and  the 
number of first time entrants (FTE) to the criminal justice system. Using data from the pack covering up‐to August 2017, in 
the 2016/17 financial year, YOS saw 100 young people who had received their first caution or conviction, thus entering the 
criminal  justice system for the first‐time. Between April 2017 and August 2017 there had been 22 FTE’s, compared to 43 
FTEs at the same point last financial year. Each month had seen roughly half the number of entrants as in the same month 
last year. 
 
Where cases resulted in a court hearing, in 2016/17 nine young people were given custodial sentences (0.39% of all court 
disposals.) Between April and August 2017, there had been no custodial sentences issued, compared to seven at the same 
point last year. In 2016/17, there were 32 Youth Cautions, 36 Youth Conditional Cautions and 113 Triage cases. 2017/18 to 
August has seen five youth cautions  (against nine at the same point  last year); nine conditional cautions (19 at the same 
point last year); and 41 cases assessed through triage (against 42 by the same point last year). There is a drive to reduce the 
unnecessary criminalisation of young people where suitable alternatives exist, therefore reductions in caution levels is seen 
as positive. 
 
An alternative to the options covered above  is restorative  justice; and although figures were  lower than  ideal  in previous 

% of Offenders who Reoffend

P
re

vi
ou

s 
O

ffe
nc

es
 p

er
 O

ffe
nd

er

O
ffe

nd
er

s 
pe

r 
10

00
 R

es
id

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

s 
O

ffe
nc

es
 p

er
 O

ffe
nd

er

%
 o

f O
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ho
 R

eo
ffe

nd

Offenders per 1000 Residents

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

O
ct

 2
01

0 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

1

O
ct

 2
01

1 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

2

O
ct

 2
01

2 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

3

O
ct

 2
01

3 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

4

O
ct

 2
01

4 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

5

Offenders per 1000 Residents

Previous Offences per Offender

Offenders per 1000 Residents - Metropolitan Police

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

O
ct

 2
01

0 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

1

O
ct

 2
01

1 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

2

O
ct

 2
01

2 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

3

O
ct

 2
01

3 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

4

O
ct

 2
01

4 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

5

% of Offenders who Reoffend

Previous Offences per Offender

% of Offenders who Reoffend - Metropolitan Police

Figure 3.14 Adult Re‐offending data for Havering, Oct ’10 to Sep ’15, Iquanta

Page 118



 

Kit Weller 
 

31Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

years with  only  32%  of  victims  contacted  to  have  a  restorative  justice  option  discussed,  the  YOS now  has  a dedicated 
worker  in place, which has significantly  improved this rate  in April to August 2017. At the end of 2016/17, the cohort of 
young people supported by YOS had an offending rate of 15.4%. Available data for April, May and June 2017 provides a rate 
of 13.4% for the year to date. This can fluctuate vastly depending on the size of the cohort at the end of the financial year; 
however it is felt from YOS that a reduction in re‐offending has been seen. 
 
Nearly a quarter of young people dealt with by YOS  in 2017/18 have an address out‐of‐borough; and  the second  largest 
group is the young people who reside in Gooshays ward. Violence Against the Person, accounted for the largest unique set 
of offences, with Court cases for this crime relating to incidents which took place around Romford Town Centre. 
 
When using  the most  recent Ministry of  Justice data available,  in  figure 3.15,  it  can be  seen  that  the number of young 
offenders per 1,000 residents in Havering fell from 1.5 in 2010‐11, to 0.4 in 2014‐15. This followed the trend seen across the 
wider Metropolitan Police area. The number of previous offences did however increase, from 1.6 to 2.6. 
 
The percentage of young offenders who reoffend has  increased  in Havering from 30.8%  in 2010‐11, to 46.2%  in 2014‐15. 
The number of re‐offences per re‐offender has increased slightly, from 5.2 in 2010‐11 to 5.6 in 2014‐15; lower than the 6.7 
and 7.5 seen in 2012‐13 and 2013‐14 respectively. London has also seen a rise and fall, from 5.3 in 2010‐11 to 5.6 in 2014‐
15, with a high of 6.1 re‐offences per re‐offender in 2011‐12. 
 

 
 
 
In  2014‐15,  re‐offending  rates  for  young  offenders  varied  by  crime, with  the  highest  being  60%  for  drug  crimes who 
reoffended, then 50% for weapons, 43.8% for theft and 28.8% for violence. 
 
3.2.8 Outcomes 

 
Figure 3.16 provides a breakdown of outcomes shown  for offences committed in Havering and London for the 12‐months 
from December 2016 to November 2017. For both Havering and London, more than 50% of crimes resulted in no suspected 
being identified, with 32‐34% being classed as under investigation (crime is open, offender yet to be identified or disposed). 

% of Offenders who Reoffend

P
re

vi
ou

s 
O

ffe
nc

es
 p

er
 O

ffe
nd

er

O
ffe

nd
er

s 
pe

r 
10

00
 R

es
id

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

s 
O

ffe
nc

es
 p

er
 O

ffe
nd

er

%
 o

f O
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ho
 R

eo
ffe

nd
Offenders per 1000 Residents

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

O
ct

 2
01

0 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

1

O
ct

 2
01

1 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

2

O
ct

 2
01

2 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

3

O
ct

 2
01

3 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

4

O
ct

 2
01

4 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

5

Offenders per 1000 Residents

Previous Offences per Offender

Offenders per 1000 Residents - Metropolitan Police

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%
O

ct
 2

01
0 

to
 S

ep
 2

01
1

O
ct

 2
01

1 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

2

O
ct

 2
01

2 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

3

O
ct

 2
01

3 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

4

O
ct

 2
01

4 
to

 S
ep

 2
01

5

% of Offenders who Reoffend

Previous Offences per Offender

% of Offenders who Reoffend - Metropolitan Police

Figure 3.15 Youth Re‐offending data for Havering, Oct ’10 to Sep ’15, Iquanta

Page 119



Ki
 

F

be
co
 

3.
 
Th
 
3.3
 
Th
(vi
sq
sh
th
co
 
Ho
ac
So
2. 
Th

t Weller 

Figure 3.16 Crim

e seen above. 
ode shown in 0

3 Places and

his section ide

3.1 Recorded 

he maps below
iolence,  sexua
uares and  th
ow as a hot s
is will  show a
oncentrations 

otspots  for ho
ross the boro
outh Hornchur
Personal crim

he most conce

Maps 1‐3 Left

me Outcomes f

In ascending 
0.01% of crim

d locations 

ntifies those a

crime 

w show hotsp
al  and  robbe
e  level of crim
spot, howeve
as a hotspot. 
were located 

ousehold crim
ough, with hig
rch and Rainh
mes  (robbery,
entrated hotsp

t to Right: Ma

H

for Havering De

size as repres
es; up to offe

areas of Have

pots  for  total
ry  offences). 
me seen acro
r if there is a 
There were 
 in areas of th

me  (burglary, 
ghly concentra
am and Wenn
, violence and
pots are Romf

ap 1 – Total N

Crim

Havering Co

ec 16 to Nov 17

sented from th
nder given su

ring where cr

 recorded cri
This  tool  loo

oss  the whole
clustering of 
18,353 TNO c
he highest ped

criminal dam
ated pockets 
nington to the
d sexual offen
ford Town Cen

Notifiable Offe

me Outcome
 ommunity S

7; www.police.

he top of the 
uspended priso

rime, disorder

me; househo
oks  at  each  1
e borough. A 
squares whic
crimes  record
destrian and v

age and vehi
of offending 
e south, and B
nces) were hig
ntre, Hornchu

ences; Map 2 

es for Haver

Safety Partn

.uk show
alth

graph, suspec
on sentence in

r, ASB and sub

old crime and
125m2  grid  sq
single grid sq
ch have seen 
ded  in  the 12
vehicular traff

cle crimes at 
in wards Hea
Brooklands wa
ghly concentr
urch Town Cen

– Household 

ring

nership Stra

wn above hav
ough some pr
ct charged as p
n 0.33% of crim

bstance misus

motor vehicl
quare within 
quare with hig
higher levels 
‐months  to S
ic (Map 1). 

home addres
aton and Goos
ard in the cent
rated within t
ntre; and Haro

Crime; Map 3

ategic Asses

The 
infor
from
show
upda
for 
18,29
recor
Have
5,054
remo
perce
are  c
recor
is  a
rema
 
All of

ve been used 
roportions are
part of anoth
mes. 

e are most pr

le crime; and
the  context  o
gher  levels of
of crime clos

September 20

sses) were m
shays to the n
tre of the bor
town centre a
old Hill – see M

3 – Personal/

ssment 2017

origin
rmation  tak
 www.police.

wed  stat
ate  unavailab
5,054  of  t
98  crim
rded 
ering,  so  the
4  have  be
oved,  a
entages  show
calculated  fro
rds  where  da
vailable  –  t
aining 13,244.

f the outcome
in Havering, 
e too small to
er case was th

roblematic. 

 personal crim
of  neighbouri
f crime may n
se together th
017. The highe

more widespre
north, Elm Pa
rough – see M
and retail are
Map 3. 

Violent Crime

327 

nal 
ken 
.uk 
tus 
ble 
the 
mes 
in 

ese 
een 
and 
wn 
om 
ata 
the 
. 

es 

o 
he 

me 
ing 
not 
hen 
est 

ead 
ark, 
Map 
as. 

e 

Page 120



 

Kit Weller 
 

33Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Appendix B of this assessment  includes a breakdown of all ward  level crime data for Havering. Table 3.12 as an overview 
shows the top 10 volume wards for a selection of crime types in Havering. 
 
Romford Town ward is the largest contributor to total notifiable crime in Havering, with 3,497 offences in the previous 12‐
months (19% of all crime in Havering). It is also worth noting that Romford Town ward has the 14th (up from 22nd) highest 
crime rate of all wards London wide, ranking as high as 6th for non‐domestic violence with injury and 8th for business crime. 
Gooshays and Brooklands wards  rank within  the worst 20% of  London wards by  rate of  crime  for a number of offence 
categories – Violence against the person, Taking of motor vehicle, Residential Burglary, and Criminal Damage. In contrast, 
there are six wards which are within the safest (lowest rates of TNO crime) 20%  in London, which are Cranham, Emerson 
Park, Hacton, Elm Park, Pettits, and Squirrel’s Heath.  
 

Table 3.12 Top 10 Wards, by volume, for selected areas of crime in Havering, 12‐months to Sep‐16 (Metropolitan Police ward data) 

Violent Crime  Burglary 
Motor Vehicle Theft 

of/from 
Other Theft & Handling  Total Notifiable 

Romford 
Town 

1,334 
Romford 
Town 

189 
Romford 
Town 

204 
Romford 
Town 

1,291 
Romford 
Town 

3,497 

Gooshays  719  Gooshays  163 
Rainham & 
Wennington 

182  Gooshays  333  Gooshays  1,638 

Brooklands  609  Brooklands  159  Brooklands  165  Upminster  268  Brooklands  1,456 

Heaton  472 
South 

Hornchurch 
158  Gooshays  164 

Brooklands/
St Andrews 

259  Heaton   1,063 

South 
Hornchurch 

450 
R&Wng/ 

H.Wd/ Up’sr 
124 

Harold 
Wood 

155 
Harold 
Wood 

252 
South 

Hornchurch 
1,041 

Rainham & 
Wennington 

368  Heaton  100  Heaton  154  Hylands  209 
Rainham & 
Wennington 

1,037 

Harold 
Wood  

355  Hylands  95 
South 

Hornchurch 
145 

Rainham & 
Wennington 

197 
Harold 
Wood 

1,026 

St Andrew’s  344 
Mawneys / 
St Andrew’s 

90 
Squirrels 
Heath 

126  Mawneys  189  St. Andrews  932 

Havering 
Park 

293 
Squirrels 
Heath 

89  Mawneys  119  Pettits  182  Upminster  836 

Mawneys  267  Pettits  88  St Andrew’s  108  Heaton  162  Mawneys  766 

 
Figure 3.17 below  shows  the  temporal pattern of  recorded  crime  in Havering,  in  terms of day and  time,  for household 
crime, personal crime and all other offences separately. For household crime there is limited variance throughout the week, 
although Saturday and Sunday are noticeably lower than Monday to Friday. Personal crime (predominantly violence) rises 
towards  the  end  of  the working week  and  over  the weekend, whilst  all  other  crime  has  a  similar  trend  to  household 
offences but peaks on Friday and drops on Sunday. 
 
 The  differences  in  time  of  offending  are  more  distinctive,  noticeably  the  peaks  in  other  offences  (business  crime, 
acquisitive crimes such as personal theft and other thefts) coinciding with the day time economy and the acute temporal 
spike in personal crime between 11pm and 2am, coinciding with the night time economy hours.  

 

Figure 3.17 Time and Day of crimes by type, Metropolitan Police CRIS Data Oct‐16 to Sep‐17

Page 121



Ki
 

Bu
 

Ta

Cr

Cr

Cr

Re

Vio

Ra

Th

Th

 
Th
or
fac
wh
ga
ta
 
3.3
 
Th
wi
 
Fig
de
am
int
Th
se
wh
fro
nu

Figur
16 to

t Weller 

uilding on this

able 3.13 High

ime Type 

iminal Damag

iminal Damag

esidential Burg

olence with In

ape & Sexual O

heft of Motor 

heft from Mot

hese times hav
lower than a
ctor  individua
hen perpetrat
in  to  the per
rget item is. 

3.2 Incidents 

his section wil
th environme

gure  3.18  be
epartments  fa
mbiguous  cate
timidated. Ve
his can be attr
veral pre‐plan
hen police are
om  last year, 
umber (down 

re 3.18 ASB calls 
o Sep‐17 

, we can exam

hest Risk time

ge to buildings

ge to M/V 

glary 

njury 

Offences 

Vehicle 

tor Vehicle 

ve been calcu
average. With
ally,  it could b
tors are unde
rpetrator,  for 

of Anti‐Socia

l examine ant
ental issues w

elow  provides
all within.  The
egory  coverin
ehicle Nuisanc
ributed largely
nned and ad‐
e unable to ha
when each  t
from 183 last

in Havering as ca

H

mine the time

es for offence 

s 

ulated using st
out having th
be assumed t
er  the  influen
which night  t

l Behaviour (A

ti‐social behav
ithin the Lond

s  a  breakdow
e majority  of
ng a  range of 
ce/Inappropria
y to anti‐socia
‐hoc operatio
ave a presence
type of substa
t year) howeve

ategorised by Po

Havering Co

s at which the

types 

Highest Risk

Mon‐Thurs; 1

Tues‐Thurs 1

Mon‐Fri  110
Wed & Sun 0

Mon‐Fri  150
0300; Sun 16

0001‐0100 M

All days 2100

Sun to Thurs
1400; Sat 100

tandard devia
e capacity wit
hat the crimi
nce of alcohol
time operatio

ASB) 

viour reported
don Borough o

wn  of  the  cat
f  calls  to  poli
behaviours, 
ate Use has in
al vehicle use 
ons by police,
e in the area. 
ance generate
er now accou

olice and LBH, DA

 ommunity S

e risk of certai

1600‐2000/Sa

900‐2359 / Su

00‐1900;  Mon
0300‐0400 

00‐2359;  Sat 
600‐2100 

Mon, Fri, Sat, S

0 to 0500, exc

0001 to 0200
00‐1200 

ation to asses
thin the time
nal damage o
l. Acquisitive 
ons allow a gr

d to either the
of Havering.

tegories  whic
ice  are  record
predominant
ncreased from
around the R
, yet  continue
The number
ed over 200 c
nt for 1% mor

ARIS (MPS system

Safety Partn

in crime types

at 0001‐0300

un 0001‐0200

n  0001‐0100;

&  Sun  0001‐

Sun; 

ept Saturday

0; Thurs 1200‐

s the times w
scale for com
offences occu
crimes occur
reater chance

e Metropolita

ch  ASB  calls 
ded  as  Rowd
ly groups  cau
m accounting 
Rainham Busin
es  to exist as
of drug and a
calls.   Calls  re
re of the total

m) and LBH CRM S

nership Stra

s occurring inc

Lowest Ris

Midweek b

Mon‐Sat b

;  Sat & Sun 0
2359 

‐ Lower  be
people wo

Other nigh
Wed aftern

All days 06

‐ Sat 1200 o
risk hours 
0800 to 20

when the risk o
pletion of thi
rring  in the n
rring overnigh
e of succeedin

n Police, or to

to  the  Metr
dy  and  Incons
using noise an
for 2% of call
ness Improvem
an attractive

alcohol calls re
egarding begg
 calls.  

 
Th
by
fly
so
ca
w
is 
ca
co
in
Th
of
nu
th
di

System CRIS Data

ategic Asses

creases. 

sk 

before 1000 

before 1600 

0600‐1200; W

efore  1000; 
ould generally 

ht time hours
noons.  

600‐1900 

onwards; Sun 
spread throu
000 

of a crime occ
is document t
night time ho
ht obviously h
ng  in stealing

o the departm

ropolitan  Poli
siderate  Beha
nd making  co
ls  last year, to
ment District,
e  location  for
eceived by po
ging have  red

he majority  o
y  LBH  relate 
y  tipping.  Th
omewhat misl
an  be  assigne
where a  single
left somewh
an be related 
ollection 
ntentional dum
he third most 
f  incident  rep
uisance  vehi
hat  the  abolit
isc’  in  rece

cont
percea Oct‐

ssment 2017

Wed to Sat 220

during hou
be sleeping.

; Midday hou

daytime; Low
ughout midwe

curring is high
to examine ea
urs are done 
have a potent
g whatever  th

ments which de

ice  and  Coun
aviour  (41%), 
omplainants  fe
o 18% this ye
 which has se
r  vehicle misu
lice has reduc
uced slightly 

of  calls  receiv
to  incidents 
his  category 
leading in tha
ed  to  inciden
e bag of  rubb
ere, which its
to a missed b
rather  th
mping of was
prominent ty

ported  to  LBH
icles.  It  see
tion  of  the  ‘t
ent  years  h
ributed  to  t
eption  that 

347 

00‐

urs 

urs; 

wer 
eek 

her 
ach 
so 
tial 
eir 

eal 

ncil 
an 
eel 
ear. 
een 
use 
ced 
by 

ved 
of 
is 
t it 
nts 
ish 
self 
bin 
han 
ste. 
ype 
H  is 
ms 
tax 
has 
the 
a 

Page 122



Ki
 

ve

ca
re
wa
wi
th
ca
21
wa
 
Fig
lef
nig
wi
ra
to 
inc
ve

M

t Weller 

ehicle is ‘aband

lls for drugs p
ported in Goo
ards but with 
th Gooshays,
rough calls, w
lls across the 
1 and 22 calls 
ards experien

gure 3.19 sho
ft). The peak 
ght time econ
th a notable 
nging from 49
9pm; domin
cidents were 
ehicles) and va

Figure 3.19 A

Map 4.ASB call

doned,’ rathe

paraphernalia
oshays and Ro
the highest n
,  St Andrews,
with six repor
borough, wit
respectively;
cing fewer tha

ws the tempo
hours  for Nu
nomy. Nuisan
increase (to a
9 to 62; highe
ated by dispu
first  reported
ary from 14 to

ASB calls to pol

ls by volume by

Type of 

H

er than there b

a at 14 inciden
omford Town. 
number seen 
,  and  Squirrel
ts overall, thr
th 99 of these
 Brooklands a
an ten inciden

oral pattern o
uisance ASB a
nce ASB, such 
around 650) o
est on Wedne
utes between
d  rather  than
o 23 on differe

ice by time and

y ward 

ASB by Day

Havering Co

being a vast n

nts. Although 
There were 1
in Brooklands
l’s Heath  all 
ree of which 
e originating f
and South Hor
nts. 

of ASB in Have
re  from 4pm 
as noise and

on weekends.
sdays. Person
n neighbours. 
n when  they a
ent days of the

d day Oct‐16 to

y 

 ommunity S

umber of veh

relatively low
14 reports of p
s (4), then Ro
reporting  one
were  in Romf
rom Romford
rnchurch had

ering, with vo
to 1am, with

d rowdy behav
 The daily var
nal ASB occurs
Time pattern
actually occu
e week.  

o Sep‐17; DARIS

Safety Partn

hicles which ar
 
Map  4  sho
received  by 
with the pre
highest  lev
available on
generic  in  th
caller; partic
and  ‘rowdy 
most wards 
one degree o
the  partner
fact  that  Ra
level of calls
 
There are  se
which are o
risk and safe
Rainham an

w, this is nearl
prostitution re
omford Town
e.  Street  drin
ford Town. Be
d Town Centre
 15 and 11 re

olume of incid
h notable spik
viour, occurs 
riation of Pers
s predominan
ns  for environ
rred  (i.e.  fly  t

S (MPS System

Type o

nership Stra

re truly aband

ows  thematic
the  Police, 

edominant typ
els.  As  men
a download 
heir descriptio
cularly with  te
or  inconsider
feature  all  o
or another. O
ship  from  pr
ainham  and W
around vehic

everal ASB co
f  interest from
eguarding; an
d Wennington
y three times
elated activity
(3). Upminste
nking was  not
egging/Vagra
e. Gooshays an
eports of begg

ents by day (b
kes  relating  to
throughout t
sonal ASB is l
ntly during the
nmental ASB 
tipping, offen

) 

of ASB by Ti

ategic Asses

doned. 

c  breakdown
by  ward  in 
pes  in the six
ntioned  abo
of ASB  inform
on of  the  issu
erms such as
rate  behaviou
of  the  types  o
Of note, and a
revious  devel
Wennington  h
cle use.  

odes which  re
m a perspect
nd  from  this w
n had the hig
s more than th
y over the yea
er experienced
t  brought  to 
ancy were the
nd Harold Wo
ging/vagrancy

below right) a
o after schoo
the week  (473
imited throug
e day and eve
are more  ref
nsive graffiti, 

ime 

ssment 2017

n  of  ASB  ca
Havering,  alo
wards with t
ve,  the  cod
mation are fai
ue  faced by  t
  ‘personal AS
ur.’ Due  to  th
of ASB  listed 
lready known
opments  is  t
has  seen  a  hi

elate  to matte
ive of  increas
we can see  th
ghest number
he five inciden
ar; spread acro
d two inciden
attention  oft

e reason for 2
ood experienc
y; with all oth

and time (belo
ol hours and  t
3‐560  inciden
ghout the wee
ening, from 3p
flective of wh
and abandon

 

357 

alls 
ong 
the 
des 
irly 
the 
SB,’ 
his, 
to 
 to 
the 
igh 

ers 
sed 
hat 
r of 
nts 
oss 
nts, 
ten 
222 
ced 
her 

ow 
the 
nts) 
ek, 
pm 
hen 
ned 

Page 123



Ki
 

3.3
Th
to 
re
 
M
 
M
yo
ide
 
M
ve
da
Hi
 

 
 
W
in 
an
dif
off
 
Fig
yo
17
24
ag
be
ac

3p
 

t Weller 

3.3 Victim gro
he maps below
September 2
lated crime, d

ap 5 and Map

ap 5 (below le
outh victimisat
entified as a ‘h

ap 6 (below ri
enues, due to t
ata for all offe
ll, with smalle

hilst the  large
geography  f

nd  18‐24  vict
fferences  in 
fending. 

gure 3.20 sho
outh  victims  a
7), and victims
4.  For  those 
ged  10‐17,  m
etween  midd
ute spike in th

pm to 5pm. 

oups 
w show hotsp
2017. The  firs
domestic abus

p 6 show the h

eft), showing t
tion reported 
hot spot’ (are

ight) shows vi
the link betwe
nces involving
er concentrati

est hotspots a
for  both  17  a
tim  groups, 
the  time  pa

ws the time p
and  suspects 
s and suspect
victims  and

most  offendin
ay  and  9pm
he after schoo

Map 5 Victim

H

pots and them
st  set of map
se, serious you

hotspot locati

the victims ag
occurs within

ea of significan

ictims aged 18
een violence a
g victims aged
ons of offenc

are similar 
and  under 
there  are 
attern  for 

pattern for 
(aged  10‐
s aged 18‐
d  suspects 
ng  occurs 

m  with  an 
ol hours of 

s 17 and under

Fig

Havering Co

matic distribut
ps  shows  key 
uth violence a

ons for victim

ged 17‐and‐un
n Romford Tow
nce) are within

8 to 24, and a
and young ad
d 18‐24. The m
es at Collier R

r; Map 6 Victim

gure 3.20 Time 

 ommunity S

ions by ward 
age  groups  a

and hate crim

ms of crime age

nder, includes
wn Centre and
n the same gr

lso includes t
ults in the nig
most concentr
Row, Elm Park 

ms 18‐24, MPS C

of offence by v

Crime 

Safety Partn

of specific vic
and  the  seco
e).  

ed 17 and und

s the distribut
d Gooshays w
rid square as a

he distributio
ght time econo
rated hotspot
Broadway, Ra

CRIS Data Oct‐1

victim and susp

by Time an

nership Stra

ctim groups in
nd  set  specif

der and aged 

ion of schools
ward, however
a school.  

n of public ho
omy. The hots
s are in Romfo
ainham and U

16 to Sep‐17 

pect age, MPS C

d Key Age G

ategic Asses

n Havering for
fic  types of o

18 to 24.  

s within Haver
r most of the o

ouse and late 
spots were ge
ford Town Cen
Upminster (We

CRIS Data Oct‐1

Group 

ssment 2017

r the 12‐mont
ffences  (alcoh

ring. Most 
other areas 

night drinking
enerated using
ntre and Harol
e R Fstvl site).

 

16 to Sep‐17

367 

ths 
hol 

g 
g 
ld 
. 

Page 124



 

Kit Weller 
 

37Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Volumes of offences suffered and perpetrated by those aged 18‐24 increase around midday. The number of victims drops, 
then increases gradually throughout the afternoon into the evening hours into a spike at midnight. The number of suspects 
remains higher throughout the afternoon, peaking at 3pm, dropping throughout the evening before spiking between 11pm 
and 1am; coinciding with the night time economy and the peak time for 18‐24 year olds to be victims. The 2016 Strategic 
Assessment saw a noticeable increase in youth crime between 10pm and midnight, and this year has also seen an increase 
in youth victims at midnight, from around 25 last year to over 80 this year. 
 
The next set of maps  (Map 7, Map 8, Map 9 and Map 10) show  the volume of alcohol, domestic abuse, hate crime and 
serious youth violence offences by ward in Havering in the 12‐months to September 2017. Map 7 shows that most alcohol 
related  incidents  are  located  in  Romford  Town,  reflecting  the  cluster  of  night  time  economy  venues  in  Havering.  The 
volume of incidents was significantly lower for the remaining wards in Havering. 
 

 
 
 
 
Map 8 shows the distribution of domestic abuse incidents. There are significant variations in the volumes recorded across 
different wards, with  the highest wards Gooshays, containing  three  times more  reports  than  the wards with  the  lowest 
volumes. 
 
Map 9 (below) shows the distribution of hate crimes. Last year’s assessment saw Romford Town Centre feature as having 
the highest number of hate crimes, with Brooklands also experiencing over 20 hate crimes. 
 
Map 10 shows the distribution of serious youth violence victims, Romford Town Centre, Brooklands, South Hornchurch, and 
Gooshays also featured as the prominent wards for SYV in last year’s assessment. Romford Town is joint sixth highest of all 
wards  in  London  for  serious  youth  violence, with  48  incidents  over  the  period  of  the  assessment.  The  highest ward  in 
London has 130; with the second highest recording 72 incidents.   

Map 7 Alcohol Related Incidents by ward  Map 8 Domestic Abuse Incidents by ward 

Page 125



Ki
 

 
 
Fig
Ha
wh
els

Do
inc
we
 
In 
sp
tim
ar
re
pe

t Weller 

Figure 3.21 Tim

gure  3.21  pro
avering during
here  this  data
sewhere.  

omestic Abuse
cidents. SYV o
eekends, with

terms of  tim
ikes  in  times 
me economy (
ound 11pm a
ported crimes
eak at 4pm; ho

M

me and Day tem

ovides  a  tem
g the previous
a  had  been  r

e incidents in
offences peak
h minor variat

me of offences
of  reporting 
(11pm‐2am). 
and 2am. Hate
s took place, 
owever saw th

Map 9 Hate Cri

Crime T

H

mporal charts o

poral  breakd
s 12‐months. 
recorded  corr

crease in volu
k on Saturday 
ions in hate c

s, domestic a
at midday, a
Alcohol relat
e crimes occu
particularly  i
he highest lev

imes by Ward  

Type by Tim

Havering Co

of crime types i

own  of  alcoh
The data on t
rectly  and  as 

ume towards 
and are also 
rime levels m

buse was gen
fter work ho
ed incidents w
urred more fr
n the  late aft
vel of offences

                         M

me 

 ommunity S

in Havering, M

hol,  domestic
the day and ti
a  result  doe

the end of th
higher on Su
aking changes

nerally highly
urs  (6pm‐9pm
were concent
requently dur
ternoon. Serio
s recorded be

Map 10 SYV vic

Safety Partn

PS CRIS Data O

c,  hate  crime
ime charts is b
es  not match 

he week, and 
nday than on 
s less apparen

  reported  thr
m), and signif
trated betwee
ing the day t
ous youth viol
tween  11pm 

ctims by Ward;

Crim

nership Stra

Oct‐16 to Sep‐17

and  serious 
based on Met
with  the  off

this pattern is
weekdays. H
nt. 

roughout  the 
icantly at hou
en 7pm and 5
ime, with 11a
lence rose be
and 11am. 

; both from MP

me Type by

ategic Asses

7 

youth  violen
tropolitan Pol
ficial  total  fig

s also seen in
ate crime is s

day  from 9a
urs consistent
5am in Haveri
am to 7pm be
etween 3pm a

PS Mapinfo, Oc

y Day 

ssment 2017

 

nce  offending 
ice CRIS recor
ures mention

 
 

n alcohol relat
slightly higher

m  to 2am, w
t with  the nig
ng, with a sp
eing when mo
and 9pm, with

ct‐16 to Sep‐17 

387 

in 
rds 
ned 

ted 
r at 

with 
ght 
ike 
ost 
h a 

Page 126



 

Kit Weller 
 

39Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Focussing specifically on all crimes which had been flagged as ‘victim or suspect had been drinking’, or ‘alcohol had been 
consumed at the scene’, the ‘highest risk’ times were 10pm to 5am on Friday and Saturday nights, with very few other of 
the hour‐block periods within the week registering above being ‘moderate risk’ for alcohol related crime. 
 
3.3.4 Offenders known to police 
 
On  the Police Crime Recording  Information System  there were 2,598 people  shown as  ‘accused’ on  crime  reports, with 
these persons suspected of committing 3,238 offences in Havering in the 12‐months to September 2017. 14.9% of the total 
number of  accused  (387  individuals) was  charged with  two or more offences, which would make  them  responsible  for 
31.7% of crime with an accused. 4.7% of individuals accused of crime committed three or more offences each, contributing 
to 15.4% of the total volume of crimes with an accused. 
 
30 people committed five or more offences; 19 individuals committed six or more offences; and of these, eight committed 
between seven and eleven crimes each. If we examine the group who have committed seven or more offences, this 0.003% 
of the accused population accounts for 2.1% of detected crime.  
 
There  is significant cross‐border movement of offenders both  into and out of Havering.  In the previous 12‐months there 
were 715 offences (31% of total offences with an accused) which took place in Havering perpetrated by those from other 
boroughs. During  the  same  period, Havering  residents were  responsible  for  committing  438  offences  in  other  London 
boroughs. Table 3.14 and Table 3.15 show the volume of offences exported and imported during the previous 12‐months. 
Table 3.14, showing exported offences, reveals that cross‐border offenders from Havering were most  likely to have been 
accused of violent crime (145 offences), and acquisitive crime (131 offences) elsewhere  in London. Last year’s assessment 
saw  Havering  offenders  contribute  to  192  crimes  in  Barking  &  Dagenham,  106  in  Redbridge  and  59  in  Newham.  By 
comparison, Havering  offenders were  accused  of  51  offences  in  both  Barking & Dagenham,  and  Redbridge;  and  42  in 
Newham, yet 256 offences were carried out in all remaining London boroughs compared to the 206 last year.   
 
Table 3.14 Volume of offences committed by offenders from Havering, outside Havering, Oct‐16 to Sep‐17 

Borough  Acquisitive 
Crime  

Drugs Offences   Violent Crime   Other   Total Notifiable 
Offences  

Number of offences (numerical change) 

Barking & Dagenham offences  15 (‐29)  4 (‐57)  18 (‐40)  14 (‐15)  51 (‐141) 

Redbridge offences  15 (‐13)  6 (‐27)  14 (‐21)  16 (+6)  51 (‐55) 

Newham offences  10 (‐4)  8 (‐13)  15 (+1)  9 (‐1)  42 (‐17) 

Tower Hamlets offences  7 (‐1)  6 (‐3)  16 (+3)  9 (+1)  38 (0) 

Other London Borough offences  84 (+26)  42 (‐19)  82 (+17)  48 (+26)  256 (+50) 

Total  131 (‐21)  66 (‐119)  145 (‐40)  96 (+17)  438 (‐163) 

 
Table 3.15 shows the volume of offences committed in Havering, broken down by where the offender resided at the time of 
offence.  The  percentage  rates  for  levels  committed  by  Havering  offenders  against  non‐Havering  offenders  for  Total 
Notifiable Offences, and other offences remain unchanged from last year. The percentage of those accused of violent crime 
who reside in Havering has reduced from 77% last year to 75% this year; and the rate of those accused of acquisitive crime 
living in Havering has increased from 50% last year to 53% this year. 
 
Table 3.15 Volume of offences committed in Havering, by borough of residence of accused, Oct‐16 to Sep‐17 

Borough  Acquisitive 
Crime 

Drugs Offences  Violent Crime  Other  Total Notifiable 
Offences 

Number of offences (numerical change) 

Havering offenders  263 (+40)  375 (+19)  1,023 (+275)  315 (+83)  1,976 (+417) 

Barking & Dagenham offenders  81 (‐29)  59 (‐11)  147 (+51)  59 (+17)  346 (+38) 

Redbridge offenders  41 (+12)  31 (+3)  55 (+23)  22 (+12)  149 (+50) 

Newham offenders  38 (‐2)  28 (+12)  57 (+22)  19 (+/‐0)  142 (+32) 

Other London Borough offenders  75 (+18)  48 (‐8)  79 (+19)  31 (‐4)  233 (+35) 

Total  498 (+49)  541 (+15)  1361 (+390)  446 (+118)  2,846 (+572) 

Total imported   235  166  338  131  715 

% committed by Havering offenders  53%  69%  75%  71%  69% 

% committed by non‐Havering offenders  47%  31%  25%  29%  31% 

*NB – table data reflective of only London residing accused due to inconsistent out of borough offender data being available 

Page 127



 

Kit Weller 
 

40Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Map 11 shows  the rate of  those accused of crimes  in 
Havering  per  1,000  residents,  based  on  offender 
addresses of all those accused of crime in the previous 
12‐months (where full address information exists). The 
map  displays  the  rate  for  each  Lower  Super  Output 
Area;  although  we  can  see  that  the  highest 
concentration  of  offenders  is  Gooshays  ward  in  the 
north  east  of  Havering  (188  offenders).  Other 
concentrated  locations  of  offenders  can  be  found  in 
Brooklands  (156),  Heaton  (132),  South  Hornchurch 
(118), Havering Park (112) and Romford Town (113).  
 
There  were  concentrations  of  different  offenders 
across  the  borough,  rather  than  equal  distributions. 
For example, of  the 43  residents of Havering charged 
with burglary Heaton housed seven, Gooshays six, and 
Pettits  five.  Brookands  (four)  and  South  Hornchurch 
(four)  contained  over  a quarter  of  the  26  individuals 
charged with robbery. 
 
When examining violence, rates of offenders per 1,000 
population  are  highest  in  Gooshays  (6.7),  Havering 
Park  (5.0),  Heaton  (4.5)  and  Brooklands  (4.1).  The 
highest rates for violence against the person offences marked as domestic abuse are Gooshays (2.7 accused per thousand 
pop) and Brooklands  (2.12).   Gooshays also has  the highest  concentration of  those accused of all TNO Domestic Abuse 
Offences, at (3.6), followed by Heaton (2.9) and Brooklands (2.7). Havering Park and Heaton had the highest number and 
concentration  of  the  46  offenders  charged with  hate  crime,  at  seven  people  each,  at  a  concentration  in  these wards 
equivalent to five people in ten thousand. 
 
Whilst map 11 highlights high rates of where offenders reside, these are not necessarily the locations where their offences 
are  committed. Wards with  commercial  areas  such as  town  centres  and  large  retail  areas  (Romford Town,  St Andrews) 
attract offenders from wards which are largely residential (for example, Havering Park, Gooshays and South Hornchurch).  
 
The average journey travelled to commit crime by offenders accused of a crime in Havering is 2.2 miles, although this varies 
by crime type as shown below in Table 3.16, which displays certain types of crime where the distance the offender travels 
may be of particular interest. In these calculations, crimes where the venue is the same as the accused’s place of residence 
have been  filtered out,  in order  to exclude domestic offences, and  crimes where  items have been  found as a  result of 
searches at the accused’s address. 
 
The average distances place  the accused  living  relatively close  to  the venue of  their crimes, with  the volumes of crimes 
perpetrated by  local residents cancelling out the offenders who may have travelled  from greater distances. The distance 
travelled to commit robberies suggests the offenders are willing to travel further to commit this crime than the majority of 
other offence types, with factors around not wishing to be identified pushing them beyond their usual nodes of activity. The 
seven occasions firearms offences (possession; to cause fear of violence; and to endanger life) have been detected result in 
an average distance of 2.7 miles between the location of the offence and the accused’s residence, suggesting that offenders 
for these crimes are local residents rather than travelling from other boroughs – this is however a small number on which to 
base  any  conclusions.  Of  particular  interest  is  the  fact  that  the  average  distance  doubles  when  comparing  distances 
travelled for shopliftings under £200, against those over £200. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAP 11 
OFFENDERS 
PER 1,000 
POPULATION 

Page 128



 

Kit Weller 
 

41Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Table 3.16 Offences and average distances travelled by persons accused 

Offence  Av. Dist (miles) 

Res. Burglary  3.7 

Robbery  5.7 

Theft of M/V  3.6 

Firearms (possession, Int. to Endanger Life, and Cause Fear)  2.7 

Possession of Point or Blade in public  3.5 

Shoplifting (Over £200)  4.3 

Shoplifting (Under £200)  2.2 

Criminal Damage  2.0 

Possession With Intent to Supply – Cocaine  2.5 

Supplying Cocaine  1.4 

Possession of Cocaine  2.4 

PWITS – Cannabis  1.9 

Possession – Cannabis  2.7 

ABH, GBH & Common Assault  2.9 

 
3.3.5 Offending linked to Employment 
 
A search of CRIS revealed only eight recorded crimes in which the officer completing the accused page had marked the 
‘accused’s occupation relevant to offence’ section as positive. Half of these were theft or fraud matters, with the remaining 
four crimes involving circumstances from which no useful conclusions can be drawn. 
 
3.3.6 Serious violence and weapon use 
 
Map 12 shows the location of firearm discharges and knife injuries in Havering. The knife injuries depicted are those where 
the suspects and victim are not know to each other; in order to assist in identifying areas where there is a risk of violence 
from strangers, rather than showing all  incidents, which  included a number of domestic matters which  involved knife use 
and other crimes where a knife was involved.  
 
Beyond  crimes  involving  knife  possession,  recognition  of  a  crime  as  a  having  a  knife  involved  depends  on  the  correct 
flagging when recording the crime. 

 
There were  just under 500 crimes  flagged as 
having a knife involved, however this included 
matters where a person may have been found 
in possession of a knife during a drugs arrest; 
or  it was used as an aid to shoplifting. 149 of 
the  494  crimes  featured  a  suspect who was 
known  to  the  victim; with 63 of  these being 
shown as domestic matters. Of the 79 crimes 
flagged  as  a  knife  injury matter,  45  of  these 
were shown as having no known link between 
the victim and the suspect. 22 of these crimes 
were flagged as domestic incidents.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 129



 

Kit Weller 
 

42Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

4. Safeguarding risks and horizon scanning: 
 
4.1 Safeguarding areas of risk 
 
CSE 
 
A dedicated Gangs and CSE Analyst has been examining information held on LBH Social Services records, as well as Police 
CSE records, both for the 2016‐17 financial year. The majority of exploitation takes place using online sites or applications, 
and due  to  this,  it  is difficult  for  activity  to be  linked  to  a particular  location, with perpetrator’s  identities often being 
unknown by the victims. Those aged 13 to 16 were considerably more at risk, and females also featured higher in relation 
to CSE on the Social Care system. 
 
From the Police system 82% of victims were female, with those aged 14 and 15 accounting for the largest single ages. 76% 
of victims were aged 13 to 15%, with rates falling from 16 upwards. 78% of victims were White British. 
 
Online  activity  was  the  predominant model  used  (78%  of  cases),  followed  by  the  peer‐to‐peer model.  Since  the  last 
assessment,  the  proportion  of  online  activity  has  increased  by  27%.  There were  44  suspects  recorded  across  the  114 
records; 73% male; 27% White European; and aged between 15 and 64.  
 
Human Trafficking and Modern Day Slavery 
 
The charity Hestia has been offering support to victims of modern slavery in London (excluding the City) since 2011, and in 
2016 supported 624  individuals.  In Havering, eight  individuals accessed Hestia’s services, although  this  is not necessarily 
where they were enslaved or trafficked to. This cohort was comprised of seven females and one male. Of the females, one 
was used for domestic servitude, while six were acting as sex workers. The one male was used for forced labour. 
 
Neighbouring Barking & Dagenham, and Redbridge both saw in excess of thirty individuals access Hestia’s services in their 
borough, while Newham saw 46. In accordance with the belief that characteristics of inner London are spreading to outer 
boroughs, this type of crime remains a threat in Havering. 
 
Over the period covered by this Strategic Assessment, there were three reports recorded in Havering on CRIS which were 
flagged as human  trafficking. The  circumstances of  these are very different and  there are no obvious  conclusions  to be 
drawn or Partnership action which can be taken based on these three reports in isolation.  
 
Domestic Abuse 
 
Section 2 of this report has already explained that while  levels of DA offences reported to police has remained similar to 
that of  the previous  year;  there was  a  reduction  in  the  level of non‐crime DA  incidents. The  rate of  repeat  victims has 
remained similar both years, at 29.9% last year and 28.8% this year. 
 
The  latest available estimates  from  the Crime  Survey  for England and Wales  (CSEW) estimated  that around  four  in  five 
victims (79%) of partner abuse did not report the abuse to the police. Violence against the person offences were the most 
likely to be domestic abuse related, comprising almost one third (32%) of violent crime. The offence group with the second 
highest proportion of offences being domestic abuse related was sexual offences (13%). 
 
Prevent and Counter‐Extremism 
 
The recruitment of a dedicated Prevent and Hate Crime Officer in mid‐2017 has allowed the London Borough of Havering 
Community Safety and Development team to increase focus on this area of work. Although Havering is not recognised by 
the Home Office as a priority borough, this is clearly an area of work for which demand exists, and in which dedicated co‐
ordination of the local response to issues of extremism is required. Another vital function carried out by the Officer is the 
co‐ordination and delivery of training to local authority staff, partners, and any other organisations that may be in a 
position to recognise signs of radicalisation. 
Operation Dovetail will transfer the management of the Prevent Channel process from police to local authorities, and has 
been postponed to Summer 2018. This will see all Channel Panels in East London being coordinated by three Local 
Authority Channel Coordinators (LACC’s), and final decisions on which cases make it to Channel will be made by the Channel 

Page 130



 

Kit Weller 
 

43Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Chair. There is potential for changes to the delivery model as it is rolled out to more areas in the upcoming months.  
 
 
 
 
   

Page 131



 

Kit Weller 
 

44Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

4.2 PESTELO Horizon Scanning 
 
Analysis of impending factors which may affect crime and disorder and the work of Community Safety Partnerships allow us 
to anticipate developments and plan accordingly.   There are many  complex  factors behind  the broad  topics  considered 

here, and it is not the purpose of this report to consider intricate details in each specific area. 
 
Area  Development

Political  ‘Brexit’  continues  to  be  the major  political  issue  for  the  country.  Keeping  discussion  brief; there  is 
uncertainty as  to exactly what  this will mean  for  the economy;  rights of  foreign nationals; and British 
citizens living abroad. 
 
Local elections are taking place in May 2018. 

Economic  As of 2nd November 2017,  interest  rates have been  increased by  the Bank of England  in an effort  to 
manage inflation. 
The minimum wage also increased in April 2017, to over £7.50 an hour for over 25’s. This is part of the 
Government’s promise to increase the minimum wage to £9 per hour by 2020.  
 

Social  Austerity measures, unemployment (rising in Havering), and welfare reform (universal credit) may cause 
difficult  circumstances  for  families,  which  could  drive  people  towards  acquisitive  crimes,  or  cause 
tensions which may result in domestic arguments, or escalate to behaviour falling under the definition of 
domestic abuse. 
 
Havering’s population will continue  to grow, which could cause discord between established and new 
communities. Migration and increased ethnic diversity will increase the need to tailor certain aspects of 
public  services.  Failure  to  plan  could  cause  barriers  to  aspects  of  work,  such  as  investigation  or 
engagement,  if appropriate provisions  (such as translation services) are not  in place and  factored  into 
budget planning at the appropriate level. 
 

Technological  Analysis  of  CSE  locally  reveals  that  the majority  of  this  activity  takes  place  using  online  sites  and 
applications. 
 
Each  year  brings  new  versions  of  the  major  companies’  desirable  flagship  phones,  along  with  an 
improvement in the technology in cheaper models. 
Home technology continues to integrate and automate appliances, including door locks. 
 
Major  companies and organisations  continue  to  suffer  internet‐based attacks and  ‘near misses’  fairly 
frequently (Uber, NHS) despite having significant IT resources to safeguard against online crime. 

Environmental  Havering continues to regenerate  in order to  improve  its offer to businesses and  individuals  looking to 
capitalise on a location on the outskirts of London; along with a bid to become the London Borough of 
Culture for 2019 or 2020. TFL Crossrail will be fully operational in the borough in December 2019. 
Shopping trends continue to affect the look and feel of high streets, and empty shops can impact on the 
confidence of residents. 
 
The next financial year will also see preparations for the launch of the Ultra‐Low Emissions Zone in April 
2019; a charge which will apply to all vehicles  (£12.50 for smaller vehicles, £100 for  lorries, buses and 
coaches) which fit certain criteria around emissions within the existing congestion charge zone, and will 
apply all week. This could see greater use of public transport for those travelling into central London 

Legislative  The Queen’s Speech in June 2017 outlined the proposal for a new Domestic Violence and Abuse bill, to 
improve  service  from  the  justice  system  to  victims,  and  allow  aggravated  sentences  for  offences 
involving children. 
Legislation around corrosive substances may also seek to restrict supply based on age. 
 
Locally,  a  new  Public  Spaces  Protection Order will  be  examined  to  prohibit  dog  fouling  and  related 
aspects of irresponsible dog ownership. 

Page 132



 

Kit Weller 
 

45Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Organisational  General Data Protection Regulations will apply from May 2018. While the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
will cover most transfers, extra consideration will need to be given to storage and sharing of personal 
data. 
 
As part of collaborative work with the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime to reduce operating costs, 
the Metropolitan  Police  is  closing  a  significant  number  of  front  counters  and  other  contact  facilities 
across London. This has understandably been met with disapproval from residents of boroughs affected 
across London, and talk of a legal challenge due to apparent flaws in the methods of consultation used. 
The result of challenges may take some time to finalise. 
 
The rollout of further collaborative policing areas may affect comparative figures for other areas; as was 
experienced during the early stages of the East Area pilot. 
 
Organisational pressures remain due to austerity measures and the increasing need for Local Authorities 
to  be  self‐funding.  Reviews  of  structures  and  remits  remains  as  an  option  for  exploring  cost‐saving 
measures.  
 
Local elections in May 2018 could influence the direction of the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



 

Kit Weller 
 

46Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

5. Priorities 
 
5.1 Suggested strategic priorities 
 
Based on the Strategic Analysis, the crime and anti‐social behaviour priorities identified during last years’ assessment and 
used  to set  the direction  for  the  three‐year Community Safety Partnership Action Plan are still very relevant, and should 
remain as the areas of work which the Partnership focuses on. 
 

Proposed Priorities  Outcomes

 Protecting vulnerable individuals / victims – we want to reduce the number of victims and 
repeat victims of crime and anti‐social behaviour (local focus young people, domestic abuse) 
The  Mayor’s  Police  and  Crime  Plan  (2017‐2020)  priorities  for  London  include  ‘Keeping 
children and young people safe’ (knife crime, gangs, CSE, serious violence); ‘Tackling Violence 
against  Women  &  Girls’  (victims  of  domestic  abuse,  protecting  victims);  and  ‘Standing 
together  against  hatred,  intolerance  and  extremism’  (reducing  hate  crime,  preventing 
extremism) 

 Support the most prolific and/or high harm offenders – we want  to reduce  the harm and 
risk of  reoffending posed by  known offenders, and  support offender needs  to desist  from 
offending  and  become  active  citizens  of  Havering  (local  focus  drug  and  alcohol  needs, 
reoffending) 
The Mayor’s Police and Crime Plan for London (2017‐2020) includes the priority area ‘A better 
Criminal Justice Service for London;’ aiming to improve support for victims and repeat victims, 
reduce reoffending, and support persistent offenders with chaotic lifestyles. 

 Create  safer  locations  –  we  want  to  reduce  the  volume  of  crime  in  areas  which  are 
disproportionately affected (local focus town centres and burglary hotspots) 
Since  last  year’s  assessment,  The Mayor’s  Office  for  Policing  and  Crime  has  empowered 
boroughs  to  select  two  local  priorities,  for  which  residential  burglary  and  non‐domestic 
violence with injury were selected for Havering due to the volume and potential for harm. 

 Community Engagement and Public Confidence  ‐ we want  residents and visitors  to  report 
crime  and  receive  information  which  empowers  them  to  prevent  themselves  becoming 
victims, as well as being part of potential solutions (communications strategy) 
The  London  Borough  of Havering  has  been  using  our  External  Communications Officer  to 
disseminate  ‘Stay  Safe  Friday’ messages  to  the  public.  The Metropolitan  Police  East  Area 
Command Unit has also appointed a Media & Communications Lead to ensure partners are 
informed of relevant information. 

 To  ensure  people 
are  free  from 
crime,  disorder 
and  substance 
misuse 

 To  ensure 
residents  are  free 
from harm 

 To  support people 
to  become  active 
citizens 

 To  create  a  safe 
environment 

 To  create  a 
supportive  family 
environment 

 To create cohesive 
communities 

 

Cross‐cutting themes throughout the analysis that the strategic priorities consider

 Identification of agencies and resources best suited to respond and deliver improvements to community safety 

 Responses  that  include  short, medium and  long  term  solutions and more  importantly  sustainable  solutions  that can 
maintain improvements and reductions over time 

 A balanced consideration between enforcement, prevention, risk‐reduction and reassurance methods 

 Each  problem  requires  consideration  of  how  responses  can  better  control  offenders,  improve  guardianship,  and 
improve the management of places. 

 
5.2 Recommendations 
 

 To agree on the strategic priorities for Havering; unchanged from last year. 

 To commission problem profiles for non‐domestic violence with injury, residential burglary, and gang crime. 

 Maintain a strong focus on reducing reoffending, especially for adults and those involved in gangs 

 Reducing  repeat  victimisation,  especially  violence  against women  and girls,  child  sexual  exploitation  and  anti‐social 
behaviour 

 Reducing substance misuse and the harm it causes 

 Reducing problems in communities experiencing disproportionate levels of crime 

 Improving feelings of safety through communications  
 
The key findings of this assessment will be used to refresh the Havering Community Safety Partnership Plan 2017‐20, which 

Page 134



 

Kit Weller 
 

47Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

is due to commence from April 2018. 
 
The next step would be to commission intelligence products and problem profiles relevant to the agreed priorities in order 
to understand  the problems  in depth; make  recommendations on how  to address  the problems holistically  from multi‐
perspectives  (i.e.  prevention,  early  identification,  enforcement,  support  and  rehabilitation;  using  problem  solving 
approaches); identify what resources are available and where there are gaps in resources and/or service provision; identify 
how these resources would be best distributed and located across the borough.  
 
The past  year has  seen  fewer problem profiles  completed  than  in previous  years, owing  to  staff  changes and delays  in 
obtaining the required level of access to Metropolitan Police systems; however external funding has now seen a dedicated 
Gangs and CSE Analyst in post, to accompany the Community Safety Analyst and Tactical Analyst (ASB and Environmental 
Crime). A CSE Problem Profile is currently being produced, with key findings to date referenced earlier. Ongoing assessment 
of  intelligence around gangs  is  carried out weekly, which will be  collated  into a more  structured understanding of gang 
offending  in Havering over coming months. Beyond this, additional problems profiles can be carried out as agreed by the 
Partnership and used to inform future strategies and work. 
 
These strategies would include: 

 Violence against Women and Girls Strategy and action plan (to be renewed for 2018‐2019 once MOPAC have released 
their VAWG Strategy;  to be delivered  through  the Violence against Women and Girls Strategic Group with oversight 
from Havering Community Safety Partnership) 

 Delivery of the Serious Group Violence and knife Crime Strategy 2017‐2021 and action plan (with oversight from the 
Havering Community Safety Partnership). 

 Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy and action plan (being finalised by Local Safeguarding Children’s Board) 

 Delivery of the Reducing Reoffending Strategy 2016‐2020 and action plan by Reducing Reoffending Strategic group and 
(with oversight from the Havering Community Safety Partnership). 
 

 Development of organisational Hate Crime Strategy, (in development within the scope of a social cohesion strategy) 

 Renewal of Preventing Violent Extremism plan 

 Delivery of the refreshed Drug and Alcohol Strategy for Havering 2016‐2019 

 Delivering the ‘Safer Havering’ communications plan which was developed by Community Safety and Communications 
team 

 
Reviews will also take place of projects funded by the London Crime Prevention Fund; namely the CSE and Gangs Analyst; 
Serious Youth Violence Diversionary work and Victim’s worker;  Independent Domestic Violence Advocate; Romford Town 
Centre Night‐Time Economy medical provision; and Substance Misuse co‐ordinator to inform future funding bids to MOPAC 
for 2019‐2021 . 
   

Page 135



 

Kit Weller 
 

48Havering Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2017 

Appendix 
 
Appendix A – Data Sources and Performance Data 
 
Data  Type  Source 

Mayor’s  Office  for  Policing  and  Crime 
London Borough Dashboards 

Performance Data  https://www.london.gov.uk/what‐we‐do/mayors‐office‐policing‐
and‐crime‐mopac/data‐and‐research  

Official Crime Data  Performance Data  Login Required https://iquanta.projectfusion.com/share/ 

British Transport Police  Record Level Data  Login Required https://lass.london.gov.uk/lass/ 

CRC and Probation Assessments  Record Level Data  Login Required https://lass.london.gov.uk/lass/ 

London Ambulance Service  Record Level Data  Login Required https://lass.london.gov.uk/lass/ 

London Fire Brigade  Record Level Data  Login Required https://lass.london.gov.uk/lass/ 

Metropolitan  Police  Computer  Aided 
Despatch  (CAD, aka DARIS), Call Data and 
ASB Data 

Record Level Data  Metropolitan Police internal data 

Metropolitan  Police  Crime  Recording 
Information System (CRIS), Crime Data 

Record Level Data  Metropolitan Police internal data 

Transport for London  Record Level Data  Login Required https://lass.london.gov.uk/lass/ 

Queens Hospital Statistics, assaults  Victim Data  Shared with partners under  Information Sharing to Tackle Violence 
scheme 

British  Retail  Consortium,  Business  Crime 
Survey 

Victim Data  www.brc.org.uk 

Crime Survey for England & Wales  Victim Data  www.crimesurvey.co.uk 

Metropolitan Police Public Attitude Survey  Survey  and 
Perception Data 

Metropolitan Police internal data 

Havering  Integrated  Offender 
Management Panel  

Offender Data  Havering Community Safety Partnership internal data 

Havering Serious Group Violence Panel  Offender Data  Havering Community Safety Partnership internal data 

Metropolitan Police Trident Gangs Matrix  Offender Data  Metropolitan Police internal data 

Proven Reoffending Data  Reoffending Data  https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/proven‐reoffending‐
statistics 

Metropolitan Police Ward Data  Location Data  www.met.police.uk  

 
 
Appendix B – Ward Crime Data 
 
Metropolitan Police ward crime data and rates per 1,000 for all wards can be found at www.met.police.uk 
Ward information and outcomes can also be found at www.police.uk 
 
 
 

Page 136



 
 

CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB-
COMMITTEE, 18 JULY 2018  
 

 
Subject Heading: 
 
 

Crime and Disorder Overview and 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee – Work 
Programme 2018-19 
 

SLT Lead: 
 

Kathryn Robinson 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

Victoria Freeman 01708 433862 
Victoria.Freeman@onesource.co.uk 

Policy context: 
 
 

A proposed work programme for the Sub-
Committee is submitted for review and 
agreement. 
 

Financial summary: 
 
 

No financial implications from agreeing a 
programme of work.  Support to the Board 
will be provided from within existing 
committee administration resources 

 

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council 
Objectives 

 
Communities making Havering                                                                                                    [X] 
Places making Havering                                                                                                                [] 
Opportunities making Havering                                                                                                   [] 
Connections making Havering                                                                                                     []      
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
 
At this stage of the municipal year, the Sub-Committee is required, so far as is 
practicable, to agreed its work programme for the forthcoming year.  This report 
provides Members with a suggested programme for scrutiny of the crime and 
disorder portfolio, during 2018-19. 
  

Page 137

Agenda Item 9



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
The Sub-Committee are asked to consider the proposed work programme for the 
2018-19 municipal year and adopt the final version of the programme. 
 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND 
 

The Crime and Disorder Sub-Committee is scheduled to meet four times in the 
forthcoming municipal year to scrutinise issues relating to crime and disorder in 
the borough.  To provide some structure to the Sub-Committee’s reviews, 
officers have prepared a suggested work programme, for Members to 
consider. 

 
2. PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME 

 
2.1. The attached Appendix sets out some topics which the Sub-Committee may 

wish to consider as part of its scrutiny functions this year. 
 

2,2 Members may well wish to select further issues for scrutiny.  In addition, 
previous experience has shown that it is beneficial to leave some excess 
capacity for scrutiny in order to allow the Sub-Committee to respond fully to any 
consultations or other urgent issues that may arise during the year. 

 
2.3 Additionally, the Sub-Committee has the power to select an issue for more in 

depth scrutiny as part of a topic group review.  Council has recommended that, 
in view of limited resources, only one such topic group is run at any one time.  
The Sub-Committee is therefore requested to consider what should be the 
subject of its next topic group review, if any. 

 
 

 
  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 

 
 
 
Financial implications and risks:  
 
No financial implications from agreeing a programme of work.  Support to the 
Board will be funded by exiting budgets within Committee Administration. 

Page 138



Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Committee, 18 July 2018 

 
 
 

 

 
 
Legal implications and risks: There are no apparent legal implications. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks: None of this covering report. 
 
Equalities implications and risks: None of this covering report. 
 

 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19 

Committee Date 
 

Report 

18 July 2018 Presentation of Community Safety Plan 
 Report on Annual Strategic Assessment 
 Policing Model 
 Quarter 4 Performance Report 
 Sub-Committee Work Programme 
  
11 September 2018 Presentation on Night Time Economy (Problem Profile) 
 Policing the Night Time Economy 
 VAWG Strategy 
 Presentation on Knife Crime 
 Quarter 1 Performance Report 
 Sub-Committee Work Programme 
  
28 November 2018 Managing Offenders 
 Update on implementation of Knife Crime Strategy 
 Update on Fire Services in Havering 
 Role of Community Rehabilitation Company 
 Update on Burglary Plan 
 Quarter 2 Performance Report 
 Sub-Committee Work Programme 
  
28 February 2019 Quarter 3 Performance Report 
 Annual Strategic Assessment 
 Sub-Committee Work Programme 

 

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING
	Minutes
	Minutes - 30 November 2017, Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee
	Notes of Inquorate Meeting, 27/02/2018 Crime & Disorder Sub- Committee
	Minutes


	5 CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - QUARTER 4 (2017/18)
	6 TRI BOROUGH POLICING MODEL AND CURRENT POLICING PROVISION IN HAVERING
	7 HAVERING COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2018/19 REFRESH
	HCSP Plan 2018-19 Refresh
	EIA - HCSP Partnership Plan 2018

	8 HAVERING COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP, ANNUAL STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2017
	HCSP Strategic Assessment 2017

	9 CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19
	Work Programme 2018-19 (Appendix)


